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 1      (COMMENCED AT 6:34 PM)
 2      MR. GAGNON: Okay.  I'd like to get
 3  started, please.  Thank you.  Welcome, everyone.
 4  Today is Wednesday, April 24, 2013, 6:35.  My name
 5  is Ron Gagnon.  I am chief of the Rhode Island
 6  Department of Environmental Management Office of
 7  Customer and Technical Assistance.  With me today
 8  is Russ Chateauneuf, who is chief in our office of
 9  Water Resources and Richard Bianculli, from the
10  DEM office of legal services.  Also here is
11  Michael Elliott, from the Army Corps of Engineers.
12  We are gathered at the Narragansett Town Hall
13  today regarding a public hearing concerning the
14  application of Deepwater Wind, LLC, for a State of
15  Rhode Island water quality certificate and a
16  dredge permit in accordance and with the
17  department's rules and regulations for dredging
18  and the management of dredge materials and the
19  state water quality regulations.
20      This hearing is being conducted under the
21  authority of the Administrative Procedures Act
22  located under Chapter 42-35 of the General Laws of
23  Rhode Island.  In accordance with the act's
24  requirements, public notice of this hearing were
25  published in the Narragansett Times, the South
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 1  County Independent, and the Block Island Times.
 2  Notice was also posted on the department's web
 3  site.
 4      The purpose of this hearing is to afford
 5  interested parties an opportunity to comment on
 6  the noted application.  This hearing is not
 7  intended as a means of providing a forum for
 8  discussion, debating, arguing, or otherwise having
 9  any dialogue at this time with members of the
10  department.  Please be silent when an individual
11  is making his or her comments.  Full copies of the
12  application have been placed in the public
13  libraries of Narragansett and New Shoreham.  We
14  have also extended the written public comment
15  period to 4 P.M. Wednesday, May 22, 2013.  A
16  second public hearing shall be held at the New
17  Shoreham Town Hall on May 8, 2013, at 5 P.M.
18      The procedure we would use for those who
19  wish to speak is as follows.  If you have not
20  already done so, please register in the rear of
21  the auditorium.  I will call the speakers in the
22  order of registration.  We will allow
23  approximately 5 minutes for each individual to
24  make comments on the record.  When your name is
25  called, please come to the podium here and speak
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 1  clearly and slowly so that the stenographer can
 2  accurate transcribe your comments.  Written
 3  comments may also be submitted before or after
 4  your presentation is made.  Please note that I
 5  will use a yellow cardboard sign to indicate you
 6  have approximately one minute remaining for your
 7  comments.  And at the end of the five-minute
 8  period, I will raise a red cardboard sign.  I'll
 9  try not to use those too much.  We ask that you
10  please respect the time limits so that all
11  commentors may be heard.  Thank you for your
12  cooperation.  After the time has elapsed for the
13  submission of the written comments, the department
14  will prepare a written response to all comments,
15  and then we will complete the review process and
16  issue the final determination.
17      At this time, we can start with the
18  registered speakers for public comment.  The first
19  registered speaker is Jackie Sotnik.
20      MS. SOTNIK: Good evening.  I notice
21  there's still a lot of confusion about the plan
22  and what is going to happen and comments about
23  proposals as to how the power will be transmitted,
24  and so I'm not completely fully informed.  And
25  it's good to know that there will be some more
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 1  advanced plans at the library to become more up to
 2  speed on that so I'm thankful for that.  Also, I'd
 3  like to state that I am a proponent of developing
 4  alternate energy sources.  I think that's
 5  obviously something we need to do.  The only thing
 6  I'm speaking of is in regard to not only the town
 7  of Narragansett, but the state of Rhode Island and
 8  all of its citizens because Narragansett is such
 9  an important part of the state.  It represents the
10  tourism industry, and it's the playground where
11  people come to try to enjoy and take advantage of
12  what we have here in our town.  I think the town
13  has a certain responsibility to try to preserve
14  that as much as possible.  So, whoever is
15  responsible for mandating some constraints or
16  requirements to the project, I'm hopeful that they
17  will be cognizant of the people of the state and
18  the town, especially regarding the esthetics of
19  how this is going to work, how it is going to
20  look, what types of structures would have to be
21  put up, so that they're being mindful of the
22  sensitivity of the ecology and the beauty of our
23  area.  That's all I'm saying.
24      MR. GAGNON: Thank you.  Next speaker is
25  Stanley, and excuse my pronunciation,
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 1  Wojciechowski.
 2      MR. WOJCIECHOWSKI: I know many will
 3  speak from a geographical perspective, so I'm
 4  going to limit my comments to the financial
 5  perspective here.  And, you know, are we in the
 6  Soviet Union where bribery causes a project to
 7  proceed, or is this America where capitalistic
 8  motives are used and that's what makes our country
 9  so great.  Now, speaking about, I used to work in
10  private industry; and unless we received a 15
11  percent return, the project wouldn't proceed.  You
12  know, you've got to have it to justify the
13  project, no matter how good it was.  I heard now
14  that our electric bills are going to increase.
15  Now, this is the absolute disincentive that should
16  stall this thing immediately.  If we're going to
17  increase the amount of money that people have to
18  pay for electric bills, it doesn't work.  Stop.
19  We must re-engineer it.  That's what I was told
20  when I worked in engineering and research.  I
21  don't care how good the idea was.  Financially, it
22  had to pass the muster, that 15 percent.  That's
23  the old days.  And until we have the commitment
24  that our bills will go down 15 percent with this
25  project, we're just engineering, so our bills are
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 1  reduced by 15 percent, you must disapprove this
 2  project.  Send it back to the drawing boards.
 3  This has to happen.  There's no discussion about
 4  that.
 5      On the other hand, should you allow some
 6  lump sum bribe given to Narragansett, whoever, I
 7  feel that this is so un-American and it's bribery,
 8  bribe the town, bribe somebody, give a lump sum
 9  payment to this, we'll do that.  You know, it will
10  make all our citizens have to pay more per month.
11  And, yes, it's only a dollar, seems like it's only
12  a dollar.  Half a million people, a dollar, that's
13  quite a bit of money.  And I feel that the state
14  of the government today may be just constantly
15  finding projects that are only costing us a
16  dollar, and these dollars are valuable.  I don't
17  think you should allow one more dollar be taken
18  away from the people of this state.  It must stop
19  somewhere, and I'm kind of asking and maybe
20  demanding that you stop this until there's a 15
21  percent return.  And there's no stealing of that
22  one dollar a month from all our people.  It sounds
23  like very little, but it's on top of the many
24  dollars and other projects that are in the past
25  and the future coming.  Therefore, please help
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 1  here.  Thank you.
 2      MR. GAGNON: Thank you.  Next speaker is
 3  David Maar.
 4      MR. MAAR: Can everyone hear me?  Thanks.
 5  My name is David Maar, and I'm a student at Unity
 6  College in Maine studying environmental policy and
 7  sustainable energy management.  But I've grown up
 8  on the waters of Rhode Island my entire life.
 9  It's a very special place near and dear to my
10  heart, as I'm sure it is to you as well.
11      The current level of CO2 in the
12  atmosphere is 398.36 parts per million.  As some
13  of you may know, this is a very dangerous level;
14  and as a community, if we don't make changes to
15  combat climate change, we must get used to the
16  norm of more winter storms, Nemo's, and Super
17  Storm Sandies.
18      THE REPORTER: Sir, you really need to
19  slow down just a little bit.  I'm having trouble
20  hearing you.  Thank you.
21      MR. MAAR: Rhode Island is in a unique
22  position where we can take the lead in combating
23  climate disruption.  This offshore wind project
24  does more good than harm.  The arguments posed
25  against the wind turbines at the CRMC hearing for
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 1  the intervener status are severely flawed.
 2      People have said that wind turbines will
 3  decrease their property value and this is
 4  inherently false.  A three-year study by the U.S.
 5  Department of Energy's Lawrence Berkeley National
 6  Laboratory concludes that neither the view of wind
 7  energy facilities nor the distance of the home to
 8  those facilities were found to have any consistent
 9  measurable and significant effects on selling
10  prices of nearby homes.  No matter how we looked
11  at the data, the same results kept coming back --
12  no evidence of widespread impacts.
13      People in the past and present have
14  complained about the annoyance of the flicker
15  effect and noise.  The Massachusetts Department of
16  Environmental Protection in collaboration with the
17  Massachusetts Department of Public Health convened
18  an independent panel of experts to study the
19  potential health impacts of wind turbines.  Their
20  result was that they found was insufficient
21  evidence that noise from wind turbines directly
22  causes health problems or disease.  And for those
23  worried about noise affecting the ocean, it is of
24  little environmental concern.  And this is from a
25  Ph.D. biologist at the University of Liverpool's
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 1  Center for Marine and Coastal Studies.  Flicker
 2  effect will not be an issue because the turbine is
 3  in the ocean three miles away from Block Island.
 4      The other argument is that wind turbines
 5  kill birds.  Yes, wind turbines kill birds, but
 6  more birds are killed by cats, power lines,
 7  communication towers, and windows annually per
 8  year.  People argue that wind turbines will
 9  decrease tourism, but the opposite is true.
10  According to a 2007 University of Delaware study,
11  44.5 percent of out-of-state tourists were more
12  likely to take a boat tour of a wind facility.
13      Now, in conclusion, some of you may
14  wonder why I'm here, coming down in the middle of
15  a school day kind of thing, and why I'm standing
16  here today, and I have a really simple answer, and
17  that's family.  I am blessed to have a grandfather
18  who taught me to fish, clam, lobster right out
19  there in Point Judith, and I don't want the
20  opportunity to be taken from other kids of my
21  generation.  It would just be a horrible loss.
22  So, on the positive note, we must move forward on
23  climate and this can be Rhode Island's first big
24  step.
25      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is Kirsten


Page 11


 1  Maar.
 2      MS. MAAR: Thank you very much.  I have a
 3  tough act to follow after my son, but I'm very
 4  proud of the fact that where we talk here about
 5  problems that are associated with wind turbines,
 6  my son works on them.  He's out there building
 7  them, working on them.  As a mother, do you think
 8  I would put my son in harm's way?  Absolutely not.
 9  So, what you hear tonight is you'll hear it's
10  going to decrease property values, we're going to
11  get radiation from power lines, we're going to get
12  all of these horrible things.  If any of this were
13  statistically or significantly true, please look
14  at Europe.  Please look at the amount of offshore
15  wind that is provided by in Europe, in Denmark.
16  Their electric bills are reduced.  There are no
17  health effects, tourism increases.  We're facing a
18  horrible future in Rhode Island if we look at last
19  storms.  If we don't go to renewable energy, if we
20  don't adapt to a post-carbon climate future, it's
21  not even going to be an issue about a power line
22  on the beach because the beach will be gone.
23  Those houses will be gone.  And we have an
24  opportunity to lead the country.  We're a small
25  state.  We can act like a big state and support
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 1  this wonderful project.  Thank you.
 2      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is John
 3  Thompson
 4      MR. THOMPSON: Thank you.  I'm a resident
 5  at 20 Narragansett Avenue, so I could see those
 6  power lines coming in now.  As it turns out, I
 7  went to the public hearing that the Waterwind had
 8  in December of 2011 for Narragansett residents
 9  where they showed us how the power lines, the
10  transmission line, will not affect us because it
11  will all be going underground.  Everything's going
12  to be underground, won't have to worry about it.
13  Hurricane wind comes through, you won't have to
14  worry about these high tension lines coming down.
15  In fact, it turns out, the latest plans had them
16  all above ground.  We hear about the (inaudible)
17  utility poles, upgraded poles.  To me, making a
18  pole larger and more ugly does not upgrade or
19  enhance it.  I'm all in favor of renewable energy,
20  but it should be done the right way, and the right
21  way is not to put high tension wires across the
22  most scenic part of Narragansett and destroy the
23  view.  Do we want to have to redraw the town seal
24  and put the high tension wires in front of
25  everything that's going to happen?  That's not how
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 1  we do things.
 2      We talk about Hurricane Sandy and the
 3  things that it has knocked down.  If you've lived
 4  in Narragansett the last couple of years, you know
 5  you can lose power a lot when those lines come
 6  down, and it's a big issue.  So, I'm very
 7  concerned about (inaudible) follow through because
 8  they haven't followed through on what they
 9  promised us in December of 2011.  They have
10  changed the plans, and we signed up for a
11  notification if there are any changes or any other
12  information they had, they would let us know.
13  We've never received notification that this had
14  changed.  In fact, we were astounded to find out
15  from others that they had changed.  The other
16  thing they don't tell you right now is is not just
17  (inaudible) lines, there's plans to put up
18  possibly a couple hundred more out there in
19  another area.
20      So, when you look at the environmental
21  impact statement that's now available, it just
22  talks about the minimal impact of 5 turbines.
23  What's going to happen when there's 200 turbines
24  out there?  It's going to have a huge impact so
25  that when they talk about minimal impact with just
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 1  five, multiply that by 40, then you can see what
 2  the impact is going to be.  So, the minimal impact
 3  that they're referring to here is really just to
 4  get a foothold.  So, once they have five in there,
 5  they can say, oh, well, there wasn't a big impact
 6  with five, so we'll put another 200 in.  In fact,
 7  if you actually read the environmental impact
 8  report, which, in fact, is quite tough reading
 9  because it's, at least the version I have, is 373
10  pages long, does seem quite repetitive in terms of
11  saying well, we don't know how this is going to
12  affect the fish, we don't know how this is going
13  to affect things because it hasn't been studied.
14  We don't know how this dredging is going to affect
15  marine life, and so we'll find out.  Again, the
16  studies started before installation, before
17  dredging, and then follow for afterwards.
18      Again, based on the behavior I've seen so
19  far, I don't believe that we're necessarily going
20  to have the follow-through and actually see what's
21  happening, what the impact of these stations are.
22  So, again, I'm, as the last two speakers, I'm
23  fully in favor of renewable energies sources, but
24  it has to be done the right way.  It has to be
25  done in an economically sound way and an
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 1  environmentally sound way.  Just because it's
 2  renewable doesn't mean it's environmentally sound.
 3  You can do things really badly, and under the
 4  guise of renewable energy, that's what (inaudible)
 5  we're talking about doing renewable energy, which
 6  everybody's in favor of, but only at the expense
 7  of Rhode Island rate payers, at the expense of the
 8  environment out in the ocean, because we don't
 9  know the impact of the dredging, we don't know the
10  impact of putting all these, not just five, but
11  hundreds of wind turbines out in the bay that we
12  rely on for both the scenic beauty as well as the
13  fishing and shellfish and everything else that's
14  out there.
15      It is going to be an impact that we don't
16  understand right now; and to approve this without
17  really understanding it, I think is a huge
18  mistake, especially since it is not economically
19  sound or else they wouldn't have to rely on the
20  Rhode Island taxpayers and rate payers to
21  subsidize this project.  And that's exactly what
22  it is.  It's not -- it's one thing if it's being
23  completely funded by Deepwater Wind.  In fact,
24  it's not.  It's being funded by Rhode Island
25  taxpayers, and that's something that I don't think
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 1  is the right thing to do.  If they can't fund this
 2  on their own, it shouldn't be built.  There are
 3  other alternatives for renewable energy sources
 4  beyond wind turbines that don't make economic
 5  sense, and we have unknown environmental effects.
 6  Thank you.
 7      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is Bob
 8  Donaldson.
 9      MR. DONALDSON: Good evening.  I have a
10  house at 75 Boon Street in Narragansett, and I
11  have actually been working on wind power for
12  private plants, being an electrical engineer, and
13  I've been doing this for like three or four years
14  now, and this, to me, is both economically and
15  environmentally unfeasible.  I subscribe to MIT
16  Technology Review.  Just published.  Be happy to
17  send anybody a copy of this if you'd like.  But
18  I'd like to quote here from David Victor, an
19  energy expert from the University of California in
20  San Diego, there's going to be a blood bath in
21  wind power, and the reason for that is that it
22  just doesn't make economic sense.
23      They are talking -- first of all, we pay
24  at the moment depending on whether you have
25  local -- a local generator or you're National Grid
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 1  or one of those, you pay between 4 and 8 cents a
 2  kilowatt hour for generation.  They are proposing
 3  to sell this stuff for somewhere around 20 cents,
 4  18 to 22 cents a kilowatt hour.  So, you're
 5  talking about at least a three-fold increase in
 6  the cost of generation.  People just aren't going
 7  to pay this.  That's too far out of bed.  There
 8  are alternatives.  I happen to have my whole house
 9  is filled with LED lights, and my energy bill has
10  gone down by approximately 25 percent since I've
11  install those.  Dow Chemical is building solar
12  shingles, which means you're going to put up a
13  panel, just outfit your house with solar shingles
14  that has proven to be economically feasible.  They
15  are currently building a huge plant in Michigan to
16  be able to supply the whole country.  At the
17  moment, they supply a few states, and it's working
18  out very well.  They're now building a big plant
19  to be able to supply more of these.  So, there are
20  other ways of providing energy.
21      I have maps, which you can get online.
22  This is Rhode Island average -- annual average
23  wind speed at a height of 80 meters.  I apologize
24  again.  I can give these to the people if you'd
25  like to see them.  If you look at Block Island out
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 1  here, and that's -- there, I believe on the
 2  southeast corner is where they're proposing to put
 3  these.  Those are marginally feasible to put wind
 4  turbines.  These are not the best places in the
 5  country to put a wind turbine.  And you can see
 6  like the yellow is completely -- it's half the
 7  average wind power you need.  So, I looked at this
 8  in some detail.
 9      Environmentally, if you look at what
10  they're now talking, I believe 30 megawatts; and
11  if you take 30 megawatts and you're running 35
12  kilowatt, 35 KV line, that amounts to, I believe,
13  somewhere between 5 and 600 amps.  You need to
14  look into that.  I don't know exactly what the
15  effects on humans are, but our bodies are made up
16  of several billion in magnetic di-poles, and
17  that's why MRI's work.  So, we may be imposing
18  24-7 MRI's on people, and that needs to be looked
19  into.  I don't know if that's true.  So, all I
20  know is when you have that much current, you have
21  a big magnetic field and there's wires, and some
22  distance away from them, I know in Massachusetts,
23  I play golf on a golf course where there's power
24  lines going overhead and the golf clubs in my bag
25  rattle.  Truly, it does.  I can tell you it's a
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 1  newer country club.
 2      So, anyway, I think that we need to look
 3  here.  First, the feasibility of the project is --
 4  there's just other methods that are better to do
 5  renewable energy.  I'm all in favor, but I think
 6  we need renewable energy.  We need to approach it
 7  systematically, analytically, and do it correctly,
 8  and I think this is jumping off a cliff.  We're
 9  going too fast.  We should -- I'm unaware of any
10  results from wind turbines, yet, that demonstrates
11  that these are literally a good thing to do.  So,
12  where are the test results from projects that
13  already exist because there are projects that
14  exist, and I don't know where there are any
15  results.  Thank you.
16      MR. GAGNON: Thank you.  Our next speaker
17  is Robert Malin.
18      MR. MALIN: Hello.  I'm a big supporter
19  of renewable resources, and I've personally been
20  toward a smaller scale, as you've heard a lot of
21  people for a lot of reasons.  However, in watching
22  this project develop over the years, what I've
23  seen is global warming has advanced at a much
24  faster rate, and we need to add these industrial
25  solutions.  It's not my first pick, but I think
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 1  it's been picked for us.  And I think that it also
 2  provides an economic opportunity for Rhode Island
 3  to become a leader in having the first wind farms
 4  and developing this technology and build the
 5  turbines at Quonset Point.  They can build it for
 6  a submarine.  They can build a turbine for a wind
 7  turbine.  I think that there are some issues that
 8  need -- the cable changing from the underground,
 9  underwater cable to the transmission line.  It's,
10  you know, in the air, I think is an outstanding
11  issue.
12      However, the economics of it I think are
13  unfairly waived for the fossil fuel industries.
14  Right now, Senator Whitehouse is working on a fee
15  and dividend system where fossil fuels will have
16  to pay for their byproduct.  You pay to have your
17  garbage picked up.  I pay for mine, but fossil
18  fuel industries don't pay for theirs, and that
19  plays into the economics of it.  Another thing
20  that's changed, as I have been watching this, is
21  the Federal Aviation Association reports a 70
22  percent -- I'm sorry, a 40 percent increase in
23  wind speeds.  So, we're basing some of these
24  output on, you know, on historic wind speed
25  average, but we're already seeing greater wind
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 1  speeds, and it makes sense to harvest it.
 2      So, for me, I think what's most important
 3  is to find the right mix, but this needs to be
 4  fast-tracked, and this symbolic nature of this, of
 5  this project going ahead in Rhode Island gives us
 6  an advantage in developing this industry in the
 7  future.  And we can't forget that our economy, I
 8  don't tell anybody any surprise, is essentially in
 9  a shambles.  And this provides an opportunity for
10  us to turn this around.  So, with a few
11  reservations, things that still need to do, needs
12  to be a fair deal for people.  That's been my big
13  reservation from the beginning.  I thought it
14  should be a public utility project, because when
15  we had Narragansett Electric and we paid the bills
16  from them, it was a lot less than what we're
17  paying through National Grid now.  But that being
18  said, I think that it's been rained in, and the
19  site -- the siting is very specific to where they
20  have those five turbines.  I was there at the
21  hearing where they did the siting map.  I don't
22  know who it was, a couple of Federal people came
23  down or something, and they were very specific
24  that to expand beyond this would take the same
25  sort of study and expansion isn't automatic.  Of
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 1  course, their record will speak loudly.  They
 2  don't perform well, then they're not going to get
 3  that chance to expand either.
 4      So, that's how I feel.  I feel that needs
 5  an industrial solution.  We need to go forward.
 6  However, we need to continue to make sure that
 7  rate payers are covered and, that we need to do
 8  this in the most environmentally sound way which,
 9  from what I understand, was the cable -- the
10  transmission being a cable, and that's where I
11  thought the agreement was.  Thank you.
12      MR. GAGNON: Thank you.  Next speaker is
13  Marie Schopac.
14      MS. SCHOPAC: I'm going to pass.
15      MR. GAGNON: Thank you.  Next speaker is
16  Dick Gruchek.
17      MR. GRUCHEK: Thank you.  My name is Dick
18  Gruchek.  I'm a fishing vessel owner out of Point
19  Judith, out of Narragansett, Galilee.  If anybody
20  doesn't understand it, we have an extensive
21  fishing industry locally.  We've been under siege
22  from a lot of different directions.  The
23  environmental non-Government organizations are
24  claiming that we tear up the bottom with our nets,
25  so that we should be put out of business.  They
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 1  claim that we should have marine protected areas
 2  so that the fish will thrive, and fishermen are
 3  kept out, the fish will thrive and stop wrecking
 4  the bottom.
 5      Now, to be quite blunt about it, this is
 6  got to be the worst, most ridiculous idea I have
 7  ever heard in my life.  You're putting a very
 8  ancient form of energy production with, I've
 9  heard, 8,000 moving parts, there are
10  transmissions, there is hydraulic oil in the worst
11  possible environment known to man, the North
12  Atlantic Ocean.  It's either flat calm and fog or
13  it's blowing gale.  And usually those things
14  happen within the same day.  You start out in the
15  morning with flat calm so that the windmills will
16  be clamped in.  You go to the southwest breeze
17  coming in the afternoons and you're going 25 to
18  35, sometimes 40 knots, every day.  As the land
19  heats, it sucks in cool ocean air and creates a
20  wind flow.
21      Now, I understand that windmills operate
22  within a certain range.  I understand that.  One
23  of the problems we have is that 3 miles off of
24  Block Island are some of the richest fishing
25  grounds known to man.  The windmills will tear up
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 1  the bottom.  The transmission lines will tear up
 2  the bottom.  There's been no research done in
 3  terms of the magnetic fields that these
 4  transmission lines, for instance, carrying
 5  megawatts of power are going to create, the
 6  situation will create for the fish, for the
 7  spawning, and that's all the time.  The initial
 8  shock of driving sheet pile 250 feet into the
 9  substraight or concrete pilings, whichever one
10  they're going to use, also is going to have a
11  devastating effect on our lobster, our Yellow
12  Tail, our Cod.  We have cod spawning grounds right
13  in the area that these are proposed to be put.
14      So, I can go on for 3 hours.  I've been
15  to a lot of meetings from Bureau of Ocean Energy
16  Management, the Department of the Interior, the
17  Minerals Management fame by the way folks, the
18  overseers of the Deepwater Horizon spill, these
19  are the people from the Federal Government that
20  are pushing this.  I've been to many, many, many
21  meetings in New Bedford and Glocester, up and down
22  the coast, speaking up for fishing.  Another
23  problem we have with this is that the transmission
24  lines are going to be buried they said.  Well,
25  they're going to bury them 6 feet.  Anybody that's
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 1  had any dealing with the ocean bottom out here
 2  knows that after a storm, the whole thing changes.
 3  It's dynamic.  It's a dynamic environment where
 4  the wrecks will actually -- World War II wrecks
 5  will actually emerge after a storm, the sand
 6  shifts so much.  So, if you put transmission lines
 7  6 feet under the mud or under the sand, they're
 8  going to be exposed in no time flat.  They're not
 9  going to go over rocks; they're not going to drill
10  6 feet into rock to put these transmission lines
11  down.  They're going to be exposed.  They're going
12  to be flopping around out there, as a matter of
13  fact.  We're not going to be able to fish around
14  them.  There's going to be a security zone.
15  There's going to be an area where we can't go near
16  it.
17      The other factor is it's a hazard to
18  navigation.  The Coast Guard and the FAA, somebody
19  mentioned the FAA, found that the windmills
20  interfere with radar reception.  So, coming in in
21  a foggy evening when your radar goes out, you're
22  in really tough luck.  So, on a lot of different
23  levels, I can't speak for all fishermen.  I know a
24  lot of my fellow fishermen agree with me that this
25  is a very bad idea, extremely bad idea.  I would
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 1  say if you want to build windmills, subsidize
 2  homeowners and apartment building owners to
 3  install smaller units along with photovoltaic
 4  shingles like somebody was just talking about.
 5  There are a lot of alternatives than creating
 6  havoc on some of the best fishing grounds in the
 7  world.  It's not only five.  They're planning --
 8  BOEM, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, is
 9  talking about 200 windmills right off of
10  Nantucket.  Now, Nantucket Shoals is an area
11  that -- a large part of it has been closed to
12  fishing for 18 years.  We can't even steam through
13  there, no less fish in those areas.  That's
14  exactly where they're going to put these
15  windmills, 600-foot-tall towers.
16      I lived in a 30-story tower in New York
17  City, and it was high.  Twice that is going to be
18  very, very high; very, very big, very, very wide
19  base, and a lot of disturbance.  There's people
20  talking about how great they are in Europe.  If
21  you read into it a little bit, you find that a lot
22  of foundations are crumbling, a lot of the
23  Hawaiian wind farms were a debacle.  They're
24  falling apart.  These things are maintenance
25  intensive.  In fact, Portsmouth, Rhode Island, has
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 1  a windmill that the city bought, and it's been out
 2  of commission for 8 or 9 months and they can't fix
 3  it because it cost $250,000 or something like that
 4  to put a new transmission in.  So, the maintenance
 5  is incredible on these.  When you put them in, the
 6  most hostile environment that you can imagine,
 7  you're really asking for trouble.  You're asking
 8  for incredible maintenance costs.
 9      Jobs, yeah, there'll be an influx of
10  jobs.  There will be a lot of people from Oklahoma
11  and Texas coming to build this and then they're
12  going to disappear, and then you're going to have
13  a skeleton crew flying around in helicopters
14  replacing parts.  That's what it's going to be and
15  you're going to have 5 people doing that probably.
16  I put $1400 worth of zincs in my boat every year
17  to keep it from corroding, okay, and that's an
18  80-foot vessel.  Can you imagine the corrosion of
19  straight current corrosion that's going to be
20  happening on these?  The maintenance is going to
21  be overwhelming.
22      I don't want to go on and on and on.
23  Thank you for listening, and I just want to
24  sincerely object to any such project as this.  We
25  are all for renewable energy.  Our ocean has
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 1  warmed incredibly.  We have fish that never got
 2  above Cape Hatteras, going up to Long Island and
 3  off Nantucket now because the ocean is warming.
 4  We could stop using so much oil.  That's a
 5  possibility, and there are a lot of other projects
 6  that could be funded to supply some clean energy
 7  besides wind.  So, thank you very much.
 8      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is Jim O'Neil.
 9      MR. O'NEIL: Good evening, gentlemen.
10  I'd like to begin by thanking you for providing
11  those of us who are interested in this issue the
12  opportunity to address you.  Not to be
13  cantankerous, like I can be on occasion, but as I
14  understand it, the purpose of this evening's
15  public comment opportunity is to address
16  Deepwater's application for water quality
17  certification in accord with the rules and regs.
18  for dredging.  So, it seems to me that while I
19  certainly appreciate the opportunity for us to
20  talk from a philosophical event, and a factual
21  event, like the gentleman before me just did, but
22  it seems to me that what is before us is whether
23  or not they should be permitted to dredge.  I
24  think that's why we're here.  If I'm wrong, I
25  stand to be corrected.


Min-U-Script® Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500
www.alliedcourtreporters.com


(7) Pages 25 - 28







Public Hearing Deepwater Wind Project
April 24, 2013


Page 29


 1      Now, my position, obviously, is I'm in
 2  opposition to the Deepwater project in its
 3  entirety, and my position this evening is that it
 4  is premature for DEM to entertain an application
 5  for a dredging permit when we don't know exactly
 6  where that dredging will take place.  There has
 7  been no decision made by the Town of Narragansett
 8  with respect to the proposal to bring a cable
 9  ashore at the south end of the town beach.  I know
10  about every grain of sand in that area.  I used to
11  be a lifeguard about six years there, and when we
12  talk about shifting sand, believe me they do
13  shift, but we don't know if it's going to be
14  there.  We don't know whether we have overhead
15  telephone poles that are going to be extended 10
16  feet in the air here in Narragansett.  We don't
17  know if we're going to have a substation as
18  proposed next to the senior center down by Sprague
19  Park.  We don't know any of that at this juncture.
20      So, obviously I have the greatest respect
21  for DEM.  I think we worked together before, and I
22  think you all understand that in my other life, I
23  served as the environmental advocate for the
24  state, but what I don't know is this issue is
25  right at this juncture.  So, I'll put that before
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 1  you as food for thought for openers.  Then if I
 2  could move on to the thought that I don't know the
 3  weight and dimensions of the cable itself, let
 4  alone the location, I'm sure you probably do know
 5  the weight and dimension of it, but I did hear
 6  some conversation when certain parties inquired as
 7  to the disposition of this cable after the 15 or
 8  20 years of shelf life of the project and
 9  turbines, what would become of the cable, and it
10  was indicated that the cable would remain in the
11  ocean floor.  When the question why was posed
12  would it remain on the ocean floor, I understand
13  that the response was, and I can't tell you who
14  responded in this fashion, I apologize for that,
15  it was the industry standard to leave steel cable
16  on the  ocean floor.  I'm sure there's no one at
17  this table that agrees with that.  I don't know
18  what the industry standard would be because this
19  is somewhat of a situation of first impression.
20  We haven't had a project of this nature to
21  entertain before.  But what will happen is, in
22  fact, the cable has to be removed.  The cost of
23  that will be on the backs of the rate payers.  And
24  there's been much talk of the cost.
25      I'd like to refer you to the PUC
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 1  hearings, and this was on the record at the PUC
 2  hearings.  This project will result in
 3  above-market cost to the rate payers over the
 4  20-year period of the project totaling $490
 5  million.  That is going to cause the 38 Studios to
 6  look like a day at the beach.  $490 million cost
 7  to the rate payers over a 20-year period.
 8      The gentleman who testified,
 9  Mr. Donaldson, the engineer, he certainly had
10  wonderful facts to share with us all.  We
11  appreciate those facts.  Somewhat parallel the
12  fact that I received when I first got into this
13  issue in February of 2010 from a gentleman named
14  Roy Bonner, B-O-N-N-E-R.  He was on Governor
15  Carcieri's stakeholders' committee.  He's a
16  professor of engineering at Brown University.
17  He's now retired in Little Compton where he heads
18  up a coalition opposing the construction of wind
19  turbines in that area.  He's an incredible source
20  of information, but his thoughts definitely
21  parallel those shared with you tonight by
22  Mr. Donaldson; and Dick Gruchek, there's no one
23  that can say it better.  I mean, you think to
24  yourselves, if we've ever given this $60 million
25  tax credit scam, scheme, whatever you want to
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 1  characterize it as, to the fishing industry, give
 2  them an opportunity to carry on with the great
 3  tradition the fishing fleet enjoys here in
 4  Narragansett, Point Judith, and I know, I packed
 5  fish at the co-op when I was 16 and 17 years old.
 6  That was a long time ago.  We have a reunion every
 7  year, as a matter of fact.  Imagine if they ever
 8  got this type of economic assistance.
 9      Now, the idea of climate change, there's
10  not one of us in here, I don't think, that is --
11  that doesn't consider themselves an
12  environmentalist.  And I think it's wonderful that
13  that young man from Unity College and his mom
14  could speak towards the issue.  And I certainly
15  commend them and I appreciate their thoughts.  But
16  we need to know all.
17      Sources of energies purchased by National
18  Grid don't consist of fossil fuels.  We all know
19  the majority of energy purchased by the Grid is in
20  the form of natural gas.  We don't use oil.
21  Everybody talks about oil dependency.  That's not
22  the case.  That's not where we get our energy
23  from.  The majority -- when we say the majority,
24  we're talking about 78 percent.  The other idea is
25  there was talk about flicker effect.  Well, I can
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 1  say when you're 3 miles offshore, I really have to
 2  address the issue of flicker effect because there
 3  is an organization in Charlestown, citizens'
 4  group, I mean two folks have come here today,
 5  hopefully they address you.  They had a guest
 6  speaker three weeks ago from Falmouth, Mass, where
 7  they're tearing down the turbines because of the
 8  flicker effect.  The adverse effect the turbines
 9  have had on people's health, not to mention the
10  value of their property; but it's resulting in the
11  turbines being torn down.
12      Now, lastly, if I may, there was some
13  representation in Europe, these are the concept of
14  the day.  Well, just a week or two ago, the United
15  Kingdom, which we know is not in Europe, it's the
16  United Kingdom, but the United Kingdom has banned
17  any and all wind turbines being constructed on
18  land.  So, Europe, United Kingdom, are now
19  catching up with this concept that this is not
20  feasible, not to mention that those who are
21  dependent on turbines and wind in Europe, they
22  have socialized programs.  This is not a
23  socialized program that we participate in in the
24  United States of America last time I checked.
25      Now, the other thing, I leave you with
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 1  this.  We're talking about towers that are 650
 2  feet tall.  Can you imagine the stress that the
 3  ocean floor is going to sustain when the pilings
 4  are constructed to support those turbines?  I
 5  don't think we can ever be in a position to even
 6  measure the negative impact at this juncture.  And
 7  lastly, I'd like to close by providing you a
 8  document I think you probably already have, and I
 9  know Mike Elliott from the Army Corps. of
10  Engineers, I'd like to thank him.  He's been so
11  cooperative in passing on information as you folks
12  are as well.  But he received a communication from
13  the United States Department of the Interior.  I
14  don't know, Mr. Gagnon, whether you or your
15  colleagues have received that.  I'd like to pass
16  it on to you, but I'll take the liberty of doing
17  so at this time.  It talks about -- I'm going to
18  cut my comments short, but it talks about the
19  applicant seeking a right-of-way permit from the
20  Bureau of Ocean Energy Management for activities
21  in placing of a submarine cable in several other
22  continental shelves waters.  And it talks about
23  National Park Service and how they mandate to
24  conserve the scenery and natural and historic
25  objects and wildlife here and provide for the


Page 35


 1  enjoyment, let's say, a matter of needs, to leave
 2  them unimpaired for enjoyment of future
 3  generations.
 4      Importantly, the National Park Service
 5  urge the Army Corps., the BOEM, to fully analyze a
 6  no-action alternative for this proposal, pursue
 7  identification of a full range of reasonable
 8  alternatives, not rely too heavily on the content
 9  of the E.R. assessing impacts on this project.
10  That may have been done.  I don't know.  I mean, I
11  may not be up to speed on it because it's
12  something dated February 8, 2018 (sic), but I
13  think it's worthy for you to have in your docket.
14  May I approach?  Thank you once again the
15  opportunity and I'd like to thank my colleagues
16  because I think most of my thoughts came from
17  their body of knowledge.  So, I don't take
18  ownership for all my thoughts.  Thank you.
19      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is Maggie
20  Delia.
21      MS. DELIA: Thank you for the opportunity
22  to speak.  Thank you for being here.  My name is
23  Maggie Delia.  I've been -- I'm a homeowner in New
24  Jersey and Rhode Island.  I have been working to
25  attempt to, how I like to put it is to preserve
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 1  Block Island and preserve what we know, what it
 2  feels like to be in our natural surroundings for
 3  the past five years.  My husband and I were
 4  interveners with the PUC in Docket 4111 when the
 5  first piece of legislation was introduced to have
 6  Deepwater have this contract.  It was turned down
 7  because it was not commercially reasonable.  It
 8  was not appealed.  Deepwater merely had to go back
 9  to the former governor and the legislature to get
10  a new bill written.  I have to say I was naive
11  about how things happened around our Government
12  until I got involved with this.  I didn't know
13  that a former chief of staff of the Governor could
14  become eventually the CEO of the preferred
15  developer Deepwater Wind until I got involved with
16  this.  I didn't know that we could be championing
17  Deepwater Wind who has directors who were formally
18  with Enron, GE, former governors, I think, you
19  know, and so I thought a lot about what I could
20  say here, and I think what I really want to say is
21  I talked to a lot of people over five years.  I
22  talked to our current governor.  I've talked to
23  people who work with Deepwater Wind.  I've talked
24  to town council members in Block Island and here
25  in Narragansett, talked to National Park Service,
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 1  I've talked to Rhode Island Historic Preservation,
 2  I've talked to the PUC, I've talked to lots and
 3  lots of people.  And one of the things that I have
 4  noticed is how much resignation we live in.  And
 5  how much each of us don't know that we could be
 6  the person that has the future be different.
 7      I've had also the opportunity to meet
 8  some of those great people along this five-year
 9  journey.  Do you know, in my good moments, I
10  really picture that we can have a future where
11  going to the beach really is still the shared
12  experience and when you say it, people know what
13  you mean.  They don't picture industrial wind
14  turbines, not just here in Block Island, not just
15  in Deepwater projects, but all along our coast.
16  The future is really in our hands, and I think
17  it's in our hands in a way that's it's never been
18  in our hands before.  And, you know, when I listen
19  to some of the people talk about the studies that
20  shows there's no impact on health, the study that
21  shows there's no impact on real estate, there are
22  a lot of US studies and there's a lot of pressure
23  from the US Government to have this thing happen.
24      I'm old enough to remember when Monsanto
25  and Dupont were pesticide companies and chemical
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 1  companies before they took over our food, and no
 2  one asked us if we wanted that to happen.  It just
 3  happened.  I thank God that there are people who
 4  care enough about what is happening in their
 5  backyard, that they're getting involved in this
 6  issue because we didn't get this chance with our
 7  food, but we're going to get the chance with wind
 8  turbines, and we're getting a chance with natural
 9  gas, which I also think is horrendous.  And I
10  don't know what the answer is, and I am an
11  environmentalist.  I have worked as an
12  environmentalist since my father brought my
13  sisters and I on walks since we were little kids,
14  and help preserve 10,000 acres in the pine
15  already -- I won't get into that -- in New Jersey.
16  But there's something really wrong, and we can be
17  resigned, and I ask you to really do what you can
18  do to have something happen because you say so,
19  because right now it is lobbyists and corporations
20  and hedge funds and all of those people who are
21  determining and designing our future.  And we are
22  just visitors here.
23      I met a farmer once.  There was an event
24  on his farm and people were thanking him for
25  sharing, you know, having that event on his farm,
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 1  and he said, you know, this is not my farm.  I am
 2  merely the holder of it for maybe not even that
 3  many more years.  So, this ocean does not belong
 4  to Rhode Island or to the Governor or to Deepwater
 5  Wind or to even any of us; but we do have the
 6  opportunity to preserve it.  We have the
 7  opportunity to make it important to feel connected
 8  to the places that we live in.  We have plenty of
 9  strip malls and parking lots and highways.  Our
10  oceans are really, really important, and they're
11  not just important for us, they're important for
12  the fishermen because I can only imagine what it's
13  like to wake up every day knowing the forces that
14  you're dealing with to just have the job that you
15  have all your life, and to care about future
16  generations having that job.  So, I ask you to
17  know that I know that you and you and you and I
18  and you and all of us are someone who can have
19  something happen different about this and does
20  not -- we do not need five, 660-foot wind turbines
21  as a demonstration project to investors that's
22  going to cost people half a billion dollars in
23  over market rates.  If we came in and said,
24  listen, everyone in Rhode Island has to buy a car
25  and you have to buy it for $30,000 more than the
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 1  people in New York, no one -- it won't even
 2  happen.  And we're thinking about this.
 3      So, thank you for the opportunity.  Thank
 4  you for listening, and thank you for being someone
 5  whose life is about making a difference about the
 6  world that we live in.
 7      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is Maureen
 8  Oreglado.
 9      MS. OREGLADO: Good evening.  Thank you
10  for having this opportunity tonight for people to
11  come and share different or same views or points
12  of view.  I don't live in Narragansett, but I have
13  two grandchildren that I absolutely adore who do
14  live here; but I want to give you just a little
15  perspective of why I am here.  I don't have a
16  scientific background, but my whole life has been
17  in education.  I've been a teacher of all grade
18  levels and school administrator for a thousand
19  years.
20      I live in Charlestown with my husband,
21  and we have been daily for the last two and a half
22  years fighting the installation of two industrial
23  size turbines in a residential neighborhood.  You
24  might be sitting here saying tonight why are you
25  here.  We're fighting ocean turbines, but I'm here
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 1  because I think we've learned some valuable
 2  lessons along the way that might overlap and might
 3  help you in your journey.
 4      We started out, and I heard one gentleman
 5  who got up and left right after he spoke, but he
 6  urged you to fast track this project, and I'll
 7  tell you the hairs on the back of my neck stood up
 8  because that's exactly what happened in
 9  Charlestown.  It was a wink and a nod and let's
10  help our developer friend.  Things do not go
11  through the same process that you or I would have
12  to go through if we wanted to put a two-foot
13  extension on our deck.  Fast track, fast track,
14  fast track, hurry up, let's get this going with
15  stimulus money.  I can only get to the roof of
16  this town hall and tell you to put on the brakes.
17  Go slowly.  There's no big rush.  Make sure you
18  know what you're getting into.  We found tons of
19  research, and I'm going to tell you when you read
20  it, things -- do not believe everything that you
21  read.  Be critical readers.  Follow the money.
22  Lots of the research projects are funded by
23  lobbyist who are paid handsome amounts of money to
24  produce reports for the pro wind industry.  We
25  have people in our neighborhood said, Maureen,
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 1  this is a done deal.  There's nothing we can do.
 2  Please, you can do something.  We are a very
 3  small, small group that has fought this project
 4  developer for 2 1/2 years through the courts, got
 5  injunctions, because there wasn't enough evidence
 6  to really make us feel comfortable that we were
 7  going to be safe.
 8      I didn't really come prepared to speak
 9  tonight, but I wrote crazy notes while people were
10  speaking, and I'm just going to ask to indulge you
11  and I'll try to go as quickly as I can.  We did
12  have a gentleman from Falmouth, Massachusetts,
13  come to our library a few weeks ago.  He had an
14  overflow crowd, standing room only, in the
15  library.  He told us things that we didn't know.
16  He said because they were town-operated turbines,
17  they were able, after two or three years, to get
18  them to shut them down during evening times; but
19  there's one privately owned turbine that runs
20  24-7, because that's where they make their money.
21  The two town turbines, who are now only operating
22  12 hours a day, they're not even breaking even to
23  get some money back to the town for the electric
24  rates.
25      People have had a myriad of health
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 1  issues, and you can poo-poo them.  They brought in
 2  independent doctors who initially said these
 3  people from Falmouth, they must be crazy.  To a
 4  person, they have decided that they are not crazy.
 5  They are valid.  There have been attempted
 6  suicides.  When we visited Neil Anderson, he's a
 7  builder, he's been a builder for 35 years, you can
 8  imagine a builder, built a beautiful home for
 9  himself and his family.  His wife lives upstairs
10  in this gorgeous home in a small guest bedroom
11  from 7 in the morning until 7 at night with a
12  machine that produces white noise to try to keep
13  her from literally going crazy, listening to the
14  effects of the turbines.
15      They have neighbors who just walked out
16  and abandoned their homes, beautiful homes.  One
17  woman left her home, gave the key to a realtor for
18  probably three-quarters of a million dollar home,
19  left a very lucrative florist business there, all
20  her resources were tied up in this little house.
21  She bought a tiny little fixer-upper, 3 or 4 towns
22  away because that's all she could afford.
23      Think about the depreciation on your home
24  values.  I know this young man from the university
25  said that's not true.  I would offer you a
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 1  different perspective.  My husband and I have been
 2  in constant contact with the very nationally
 3  recognized firm, high credential, McCann,
 4  M-C-C-A-N-N, out of Chicago.  They've done
 5  national studies.  People within a couple mile
 6  radius of a wind turbine, your home values will
 7  start to depreciate by 25 percent.  I don't know
 8  about you, but I don't want to lose 25 percent off
 9  the value of my home.  People in Falmouth have
10  been forced to leave.  Who's going to buy their
11  home?  If it wasn't good enough for them to stay,
12  and they're having serious health issues, the
13  homes are sitting with for sale signs on them.
14  Nobody wants to buy them.  Would you buy that
15  house?  I wouldn't buy that house.
16      One of the things that surprised us the
17  night, we had Neil Anderson at the library, we had
18  a happy accident.  There was a guest in the
19  audience, and he's a professor of ocean
20  Engineering from the University of Rhode Island.
21  His name is Dr. Peter Stapanian (phonetic).  He
22  lives in Westerly.  His area of expertise is
23  acoustics, and he said to people somebody can come
24  in with a machine to measure decibel levels.  Is
25  it within the acceptable range or not.  They can
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 1  measure the flicker.  But the thing that is the
 2  most deadly, is very, very expensive to measure
 3  and in most cases doesn't get measured and that's
 4  the infrasonic pressure from the turbines.  It's
 5  unseen.  It's unheard.  It's undetected.  It
 6  invades homes and it invades bodies.  That is what
 7  makes people on the Cape ill.  That's what's
 8  making the people on the Cape sick, and I see
 9  people in the audience laughing.  You can laugh.
10  You can go and do your own research.  You can go
11  down and talk to them.  I didn't laugh at your
12  presentation.  I don't think these people's lives
13  are anything to laugh about.
14      He talked about these impulses.  He made
15  an analogy of having your car radio going and you
16  hear that thumping noise and over and over and
17  over again from the car stereo.  He said you can't
18  shut the windows, you can't shut your doors.  It
19  invades.  His neighbor, the night before he came
20  to speak to us, found 17 dead bats in his backyard
21  because the infrasonic pressure makes the bats'
22  lungs implode.  That has been scientifically
23  documented.  People talked about having good winds
24  here on the coast of Rhode Island.  The best wind
25  for wind energy are on the plains in the middle of
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 1  the United States.  They're not on the West Coast.
 2  They're not on the East Coast.  We talked to a
 3  gentleman from Deepwater.  He said he can only run
 4  the wind turbines at 47 percent capacity because
 5  of the wind.  When the winds are high, they have
 6  to shut them down.  We had someone in our town
 7  say, you know what, damn it, if we had those wind
 8  turbines up, I wouldn't have lost all the meat in
 9  my freezer during Hurricane Sandy.  I want to
10  scream.  This lady thinks she has a plug from her
11  refrigerator onto the turbine?  No.  And when the
12  winds are high, they shut the turbines down.  So,
13  it doesn't matter that we have high winds during
14  the hurricane because they shut the thing down.
15      The Deepwater project, that's going to be
16  a demo project.  If that's successful, they told
17  us, spoke to the gentleman, they're going to put
18  hundreds out there off the shore.  Maybe one won't
19  affect somebody's health, maybe two won't affect
20  somebody's health.  I don't know what the health
21  implications are, but I will tell you to go
22  slowly.  Do your homework.
23      We saw something on line the other day,
24  two scientists from France back in the 1960's who
25  work in a laboratory and they were working on
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 1  energy.  And as they were working, one man said to
 2  his colleague, you know, I'm getting a headache,
 3  and I'm getting light-headed.  I'm going to step
 4  out to get some fresh air.  The colleague said I'm
 5  having the same thing.  They went outside.  The
 6  symptoms abated.  They came back in, they started
 7  up again.  They did that back and forth a couple
 8  of times.  Then they noticed the coffee that was
 9  sitting in the coffee cup was undulating like the
10  waves out at Narragansett Beach.  That's when they
11  came up with the infrasonic studies and what they
12  would be doing and how that energy is emitted
13  without you even knowing it, hearing it, smelling
14  it, seeing it, or feeling it.
15      I can't implore you enough.  Do not sell
16  your souls to the devil to get 15 percent off your
17  electric bill.  Is it worth your health?  I don't
18  know what the implications are, but I'll tell you
19  something, I'll be dammed I'm not going to use my
20  four-and-a-half-year and 18-month-old
21  grandchildren as a guinea pig to see what the
22  implications are going to be for them five or ten
23  years down the road.  There's not enough science
24  out there yet.  What's the big rush?  If it causes
25  harm to one person, it shouldn't happen in the
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 1  town.  It shouldn't happen anywhere.  But the
 2  government is pushing this, pushing this, pushing
 3  this.  If it's so wonderful, take the time, do the
 4  homework, get all your studies done.  The young
 5  man who talked about the Massachusetts Department
 6  of Health report, there's insufficient evidence in
 7  there and they do acknowledge that.  Maybe people
 8  don't know it.  That report was funded by the wind
 9  industry.  They believe the research is not
10  substantiated by peer reviews.  There's a
11  McPherson study that totally rebuts the whole
12  Massachusetts report.  There's several European
13  nations now that have moratoriums on turbines,
14  mostly because of the health implications.  And
15  they decided that there is not a good economic
16  return on their investment.
17      I guess I would ask all of you who are in
18  the decision making for this whether it happens or
19  doesn't happen for Narragansett or Rhode Island,
20  I'm not eager to have Rhode Island be a leader in
21  this because I think that there's too many
22  unanswered questions yet, and I would ask you to
23  stop and think what is your legacy going to be to
24  this town?  Are you going to allow these monsters
25  to go on the water only to find out later with the
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 1  additional research this was a bad deal for Rhode
 2  Island, or are you going to take your time and
 3  protect the legacy for your children, your
 4  grandchildren and other generations to come.
 5      Thank you for the time.
 6      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is Abel
 7  Collins.  Okay.  Next speaker Mike Delia.
 8      MR. DELIA: Good evening.  Thank you for
 9  the opportunity to be with you and speak tonight.
10  I appreciate it.  I'm a property owner with my
11  wife and family on Block Island, and we've been
12  active in this conversation with Deepwater since
13  they first arrived on Block Island about four or
14  five years ago.  So, essentially, I'm opposed to
15  the project for quite a few reasons, many of them
16  I think from having done the reading I've done,
17  fall under the jurisdictions of DEM.  Some of my
18  comments, and poignantly so, are outside the
19  jurisdiction and the impact of that they're
20  outside the jurisdiction, leads me to another
21  request.  I was expecting -- I know the Army
22  Corps. of Engineers is here tonight, but at this
23  point, the Army Corps. is not agreeing to have a
24  public hearing for items that are outside your
25  jurisdiction, outside the CRMC'S jurisdiction and
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 1  certainly outside their jurisdiction.  So,
 2  there's -- Burton Russell was a philosopher who
 3  created an analogy associated with the
 4  burden of proof.  It's called Russell's teapot,
 5  with the scenario of which he claimed that there
 6  was a teapot, a cosmic tea pot spinning around the
 7  sun between here and Mars and you couldn't see it.
 8  You couldn't prove it wasn't true.  Now, it was
 9  absurd to consider that that was true, but the
10  burden of proof was on him to prove it was true
11  because it was so absurd.
12      In case of a negative, it's impossible to
13  prove it's true and in the case of Deepwater Wind,
14  the burden of proof is moved from Deepwater Wind
15  to me, who's already here, to my family who are
16  here, the landowners, the residents of Block
17  Island and Rhode Island.  The -- so proving a
18  negative is impossible.  However, my conversation
19  specifically particularly surrounds the notion of
20  property value, real estate value, the impact of a
21  project of this nature on a piece of real estate
22  in a, I don't know how you call it, high-end,
23  beautiful pristine environment.  Thirty years ago
24  when we came to Block Island, it was a blue color
25  town, where we could afford to buy a piece of land
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 1  there.  So, we were blessed and lucky.  We have 14
 2  acres of land on the ocean.  Our right-of-way to
 3  our property, we have two ways in, it goes through
 4  the southeast light.  Our right-of-way is under
 5  the light.  The only thing between the lighthouse
 6  and the ocean is us, and the only thing between us
 7  and the Azores is the ocean.  Our -- a couple of
 8  references to the people who spoke earlier, and I
 9  appreciate the Berkeley Lab report on real estate
10  for siting.  It's been Ben Hoen, the lead author
11  for the Department of Energy is probably -- is
12  considered one of the top, if not the top expert
13  on the impact of real estate values, as a
14  theoretical practice, not as a guy who's spending
15  money to buy a piece of land.
16      So, I read his report, and he made a
17  couple of points.  One was that ocean front
18  property increases value of a piece of property.
19  It's measurable.  The earlier speaker made a
20  comment that there's no evidence that real estate
21  values go down after the installation of a wind
22  farm.  In fact, according to Hoen's report, there
23  is no evidence that they go down afterwards
24  because the study that they did was entirely done
25  on interior farms and homes.  Interior of the US
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 1  is not anywhere near the coastlines.
 2      So, the data that they have came from the
 3  sale of the homes that were sold in areas near
 4  wind farms.  They may have measured hundreds of
 5  yards, half a mile, a mile, two miles, three
 6  miles, different impacts of those things.  So, it
 7  was curious for me to impact because I'm a buyer
 8  and, you know, if you put a pair of bananas -- go
 9  to the store and there's a rotten pair and a
10  beautiful pair, more than likely you're going to
11  buy the beautiful pair and ignore the other one.
12  That's how I feel about Bayonne, New Jersey, and,
13  you know, the variety of industrial structures
14  that we deal with in our day-to-day lives.  We
15  don't even see them anymore.  So, I called and
16  conducted an interview with him and asked him some
17  questions about the nature of his data and the
18  nature of the work that he did.  And so he assured
19  me that they have not done any research around
20  homes that had ocean front value.  He considered
21  it pristine, but he had no data on that.  He
22  admitted that the real impact, the normal impact
23  about the impact on real estate values is after
24  the fact.  Since there aren't any wind turbines in
25  ocean front property, then he's not a buyer.  He
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 1  cannot make an estimate in that.  The problem with
 2  that is the burden of proof in this regard is upon
 3  me.
 4      The CRMC, who has an obligation under
 5  their regulations to conduct a study on
 6  socio-economic impacts, had chosen to decline our
 7  request to intervene in their process to entertain
 8  any socio-economic impacts.  The Army Corps. of
 9  Engineers, at this point, has not chosen to have a
10  hearing.  And they are actually, in their
11  jurisdiction, able to conduct such a hearing that
12  will include socio-economic impacts.
13      So, my assertion, I'm asserting this
14  publicly for the record that permitting this
15  project amounts to a taking.  The Rhode Island
16  Supreme Court, about four years ago, I have
17  citations for anything that I say, I have
18  citations that I would be glad to present to the
19  RIDEM.  What is it?  It's not a commission?
20  Department?  Yes.  If you -- so -- if you'd like
21  to receive one, I can do that.  But under the US
22  Constitution and Rhode Island Constitution, taking
23  property requires a process, due process, for
24  property owners.  The Rhode Island Constitution --
25  before I get to the Rhode Island Constitution, the
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 1  Rhode Island Supreme Court four years ago granted
 2  relief to a plaintiff who sued someone for
 3  securing a default in an unobstructed view.  So,
 4  the Rhode Island Supreme Court gave credibility
 5  and financial relief to someone who claimed that
 6  his unobstructed pristine view was property.  So,
 7  although in Rhode Island certain agencies and
 8  Rhode Island Department of environmental
 9  Management is one of them that has authority to
10  proceed with condemnation to take condemnation
11  proceedings on property, my assertion is that
12  Deepwater's project has an impact on not only my
13  property, but Southeast Lighthouse's property,
14  that Deepwater has not proposed mitigation to
15  anyone except perhaps the Southeast Light, and
16  mitigation, I'm assuming, I'm guessing only
17  through conversations I've had with people in
18  different associations, historic, and the
19  likelihood that the mitigation -- Deepwater is
20  going to propose to find something like paying for
21  a museum, paying for a museum at the Southeast
22  Light doesn't mitigate the fact that there are
23  going to be five Washington monument size towers
24  sitting 2 miles offshore.  So, although you have
25  the authority to do that, you haven't done so.
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 1  RIDEM has not started condemnation proceedings.
 2      Deepwater Wind has not acknowledged the
 3  financial impact in its environmental assessment.
 4  Deepwater Wind has not offered mitigation to the
 5  impact.  The Army Corps. of Engineers, which has
 6  regulatory obligation to both review the
 7  socio-economic impact as well as advise Deepwater
 8  Wind objections to those impacts.  Now, if the
 9  Army Corps. of Engineers was here as a joint
10  sponsor of this, they could listen to that with
11  their jurisdictional power that they are actually
12  obligated to notify Deepwater Wind of this
13  complaint.  They have not done so.  And since they
14  have no standing in this hearing, I'm asking you,
15  I'm pointing to that is missing from the entire
16  proceeding.  So, my assertion is that permitting
17  this project is a taking.  It's an unauthorized
18  taking.  It's not lawful, and it's not consistent
19  with Rhode Island General Law for you to take our
20  property, authorize and permit the taking of our
21  property with proper procedures.  That would be to
22  begin a condemnation procedure as warranted by
23  your charter.  So, my English may not be so good,
24  I'm not an attorney, but I read a lot.
25      So, the burden of proof is on me that
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 1  there's no financial impact.  The burden of proof
 2  belongs on Deepwater Wind.  Deepwater Wind's CEO
 3  claimed how they are part of the Block Island
 4  community for the past four, maybe five years.
 5  I'm probably misquoting, paraphrasing.  I've been
 6  adopted -- Block Island 30 years.  I own land.  My
 7  children, every one of them had their first job on
 8  Block Island.  I'm not an islander.  Ask anyone
 9  who is an islander.
10      So, I have two requests.  One is that
11  you -- I have to read this.  I apologize.  I typed
12  all this stuff up, and I can't read my own
13  handwriting.  So, one is if you're going to permit
14  this project, before you do so, that you start
15  condemnation proceedings against my property and
16  property of anyone else affected.  The second
17  request is that you request the Army Corps. of
18  Engineers to hold public hearings on matters that
19  are not within the jurisdiction of Rhode Island
20  Department of Energy, Environmental Management, in
21  order to have those significant substantive
22  objections heard in public environment, with an
23  opportunity to examine both Deepwater Wind's
24  evidence and the evidence of the hundreds of
25  people and organizations who objected and
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 1  submitted timely substantive objections to these
 2  two projects.
 3      Thank you very much.  I appreciate your
 4  time and the opportunity to have my voice spoken
 5  in this great nation that needs our voices heard.
 6  So, thank you very much.
 7      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is Terry
 8  Tierney.
 9      MR. TIERNEY: Good evening, and thank you
10  for the opportunity to offer comments on the
11  Deepwater Winds proposed dredging activities, and
12  its request for issuance of a water quality
13  certification under the RIDEM and regulations for
14  dredging and the management of dredging materials,
15  and state water quality regulations.
16      First, I want to commend RIDEM for
17  providing this basic right to comment at a public
18  hearing on an unprecedented request to develop
19  publicly owned coastal resources for private
20  benefit.  As you know, the United States Army
21  Corps. of Engineers has not provided such
22  opportunities for a public hearing with respect to
23  Deepwater Wind's plan to develop Federally
24  controlled coastal resources.  And the Corps. of
25  Engineers apparently sees no need to even allow
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 1  the public to comment at a public hearing on such
 2  plans before it decides whether to grant
 3  permission to dredge these Federal waters under
 4  the Clean Water Act.
 5      The Army Corps of Engineers' actions in
 6  this regard are nothing sort of a disgrace.  RIDEM
 7  was wise not to follow the Federal Government's
 8  actions in denying requests, numerous requests,
 9  that a public hearing be convened in the affected
10  local communities.  The dredging permits and the
11  state water quality certificates for this project
12  should be denied.  The plans to disturb and
13  destroy winter flounder and lobster breeding
14  grounds and to litter the ocean floor with tons of
15  discarded metal from an abandoned transmission
16  cable are simply unacceptable and RIDEM should
17  deny the requested permits.  In fact, Rhode
18  Island, excuse me, RIDEM, should not even consider
19  the Deepwater request at this juncture.  The
20  applicant, as you may know, has not paid the
21  application fee due to the Coastal Resources
22  Management Council.  And it has not secured
23  permission from one of the affected communities to
24  carry out the project.  There is no evidence that
25  this is likely to occur, and Deepwater has shown
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 1  no proof that it will secure the needed local
 2  approvals.  Deepwater Wind's environmental report
 3  and DEM's notice of public hearing erroneously
 4  claim that the Block Island transmission system
 5  cable would, quote, make landfall on the Rhode
 6  Island mainland in the town of Narragansett.  That
 7  simply is not true.  The town of Narragansett had
 8  not granted permission to allow cable to land at
 9  the town beach.
10      With all due respect to RIDEM, your
11  public notice is procedurally defective and very
12  misleading to the public in that it claims that
13  the transmission cable will land at a location
14  where it is not allowed to land.  The public
15  notice claims that the onshore facilities will not
16  result in fill or discharge into wetlands, but
17  there's no factual support for this position in
18  the absence of a secured landing area unless and
19  until the Town of Narragansett decides if it will
20  allow the landing.  This is completely premature
21  to ask the public to comment on the environmental
22  impact of the project.  At this point, the impacts
23  are largely unknown because the landing site has
24  not been secured and may never be permitted.
25  RIDEM has no business holding a public hearing on
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 1  a project that is not sufficiently final so as to
 2  permit the public to have a meaningful opportunity
 3  to be heard about its expected impacts.  Until
 4  this project developer can demonstrate a secured
 5  permission that is needed to carry out the
 6  proposal, RIDEM is wasting everyone's time.
 7      But since RIDEM is processing the
 8  application as if they were sufficiently complete
 9  and is essentially turning a blind eye to the lack
10  of local permission to land the transmission
11  cable, they ought to at least undertake an
12  analysis of whether the proposed dredging
13  activities are truly in the public interest, and
14  the DEM should undertake its own independent
15  review of environmental impacts, as well as
16  available alternatives to the project and share
17  these with the public.
18      To date, the public has had to rely
19  solely on information generated and maintained by
20  the applicant, and no genuine examination of
21  available alternatives has taken place due to the
22  applicant's outright refusal to discuss
23  alternatives within the environmental report it
24  submitted as part of this application.  Numerous
25  available alternatives exist for meeting the
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 1  state's renewable energy goals without sacrificing
 2  our environmental quality.  These options exist
 3  but they have not been evaluated by a neutral
 4  party.  As part of its decision-making process,
 5  DEM, therefore, needs to ask the hard questions,
 6  the basic questions that were left unanswered in
 7  the application, including whether the purported
 8  benefits to the project can be realized by
 9  alternative means that will not cause many adverse
10  impacts that are documented in developer's own
11  environmental report.
12      Deepwater Wind has asserted in their
13  environmental report that the location of the
14  project has quote/unquote been dictated by a state
15  law, but that is a fallacy.  Rhode Island,
16  obviously, cannot dictate the location of the
17  facilities that are to be located partially in
18  Federal waters.  It can dictate anything it wants
19  with regard to state waters, but it can't dictate
20  anything to the Federal Government, and that
21  concept is absurd.  It has become clear that
22  Deepwater's project is not a so-called
23  demonstration project, as it's claimed, and that a
24  much larger offshore wind project is in the works
25  in Federal Waters where many of the adverse
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 1  impacts from this project would not occur.
 2      Because this much larger project is
 3  proceeding, DEM needs to consider the cumulative
 4  impacts from dredging for both the proposed
 5  Deepwater project and the much larger project that
 6  is supposed to go off this year.  Deepwater's
 7  application fails to include information about
 8  expected cumulative impacts and DEM really needs
 9  to acknowledge them and factor them into its
10  decision on Deepwater's request.
11      Assertions made by Deepwater are
12  questionable in many respects.  The company
13  consistently claimed that its impacts to the
14  project will be minimal and short term and that
15  restrictions on its plans are not necessary.  Of
16  course, that's exactly what it said to you about
17  the imposition of time-of-year restrictions on
18  construction activities.  That is before it
19  completely reversed its position and agreed to
20  implement such restrictions.  This sort of
21  complete reversal of position demonstrates why the
22  public is so suspect of the claims made in the
23  environmental report concerning the purported lack
24  of adverse impacts to the long term.
25      Take the position of Deepwater with
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 1  regard to winter flounder spawning habitat as an
 2  example of what I'm speaking to.  The applicant
 3  admits that winter flounder have designated
 4  essential fish habitat within the project area,
 5  and the company also admits that winter flounder
 6  eggs and larvae along the miles and miles of
 7  trench for the cable may get buried too deep in
 8  sediment to recover.  Yet it dismisses these
 9  natural resource losses as acceptable.  They are
10  not.  Winter flounder are a species in severe
11  decline in this region as you know, and the plan
12  to bury winter flounder eggs and larvae for many
13  miles will only make matters worse and prevent the
14  recovery of this important fish species.  It only
15  stands to reason that many juvenile adult winter
16  flounder will ultimately be buried too deep in
17  sediment to recover.  We should not allow this to
18  occur, at least when there are many available
19  alternatives that have yet to be explored by the
20  applicant.  Impacts to fish from exposure to
21  electromagnetic fields emanating from the
22  energized cables is not well understood, and
23  additional research should be required to support
24  the application before such potential risks are
25  allowed to be introduced to the marine
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 1  environment.  Total reliance by the applicant on
 2  theories and a so-called theoretical detection
 3  level with regard to the EMF is not an acceptable
 4  substitute for science, and that's what should
 5  guide your decision.
 6      The environmental report submitted by
 7  Deepwater underestimates the adverse impacts from
 8  dredging by assuming RIDEM will allow it to leave
 9  the transmission cable on the ocean floor when the
10  project reaches the end of its useful life.  RIDEM
11  has not granted such permission before and should
12  require the applicant's solid waste to be removed.
13  No other submerged cable has been abandoned in
14  place in the state to my knowledge, and it is
15  expected by many citizens that DEM will not allow
16  such solid waste disposal to occur on the ocean
17  floor.  Accordingly, impacts from dredging should
18  be assumed to be double the amount discussed in
19  the environmental report to reflect the need to
20  dredge in order to remove Deepwater's waste.
21      Finally, DEM is urged to consider the
22  socio-economic impacts that will result in the
23  proposed project in deciding whether a permit
24  should be issued.  Impacts to private property
25  owners who will be affected by the project have
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 1  not been evaluated by the other state and Federal
 2  agencies, and RIDEM ought to require as a
 3  condition of any permit that it grants that
 4  compensation be made to those who will suffer a
 5  loss of property value as a result of the proposed
 6  project of which dredging is an essential part.
 7      I just want to conclude by pointing out
 8  that -- how the project has been misrepresented in
 9  the environmental report as something that will
10  enhance the environment.  When, in reality, it
11  will degrade the environmental quality, and this
12  is accomplished by Deepwater by overstating the
13  purported environmental benefits while parsing out
14  and segmenting the adverse impacts.  Deepwater
15  parses out the adverse impacts of the two
16  components of the overall project environment
17  report.  The benefits alleged to flow to Block
18  Island are derived from completion of the bit
19  cable, which is not dependent on construction of
20  the wind farm.  Negative impacts are primarily
21  derived from the inappropriate location of the
22  wind farm.  The applicant should not be allowed to
23  lump the two projects together for the purposes of
24  analyzing impacts.  As it stands, the
25  environmental report combined the purported
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 1  benefits to the project and minimizes the adverse
 2  impact through impermissible segmentation of the
 3  project.
 4      I'll just conclude by saying how the
 5  environmental report improperly excluded for
 6  considers numerous risks, potential turbine
 7  locations on the grounds that it's Rhode Island
 8  policy dictated, viable alternative location with
 9  the wind turbine array, but no basis for
10  eliminating an alternative analysis to these
11  locations that are purportedly dictated by Rhode
12  Island.
13      Again, I thank you for your time.
14      MR. GAGNON: Our next speaker is Tina
15  Jackson.
16      MS. JACKSON: Tina Jackson, commercial
17  fisherman and speaking for the commercial fishing
18  industry in Rhode Island.  I couldn't agree more
19  with Terry Tierney and James O'Neil with several
20  instances regarding massive impact to marine
21  resources and premature --
22      THE REPORTER: Can I have you slow down
23  just little bit.  Slow down a little bit, please.
24      MS. JACKSON: Slow down a little?
25      THE REPORTER: Yes.  Please.  I'm taking
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 1  it verbatim and I can't even understand you you're
 2  talking so fast.  I couldn't even understand what
 3  you're saying.
 4      MS. JACKSON: I couldn't agree more with
 5  Terry Tierney and Jim O'Neil with regards to the
 6  impacts on marine resources as well as premature
 7  permitting of anything for dredging purposes
 8  regarding Deepwater.
 9      There are two purposes here for myself to
10  make statements regarding destruction of marine
11  resources in the Block Island Sound.  Deepwater,
12  and I could go through all the corruption levels
13  and backroom deals that were perpetrated regarding
14  Deepwater, we all know that; but we still have to
15  keep it in the forefront because there are other
16  questions as to how this came about, why this came
17  about.  And allowing it to continue as the one
18  woman said go slow, very slow.
19      When we take a look at Deepwater's
20  actions with their test turbines, the first test
21  turbine they put up, they couldn't even erect it.
22  The second one broke in half during 45 mile an
23  hour winds, and we're going to allow them to put
24  up 6 megawatt, 650-foot turbines.  They couldn't
25  even put the test towers up.  God's honest truth.
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 1  They have pictures of it over at Quonset Point.
 2  It was hysterical.  These winds are consistent in
 3  our area.  Imagine when we get 120 or 140 mile an
 4  hour hurricanes, what's going to happen to those
 5  55 turbines.  They're going to be gone.  The
 6  decommission cost that Deepwater has planned for
 7  this is only $350,000.  That's the payment that
 8  they have allocated for decommission costs.
 9  That's not going to cover the cost to take down
10  the blades on the turbines, let alone five
11  turbines, at the height they're at.
12      The town of Narragansett council has a
13  motion before it on May 6th to suspend talks with
14  Deepwater in regards to allow necessary
15  transparency for the public benefit to occur.
16  Therefore, that, in itself, these hearings
17  shouldn't even be in progress at this point.
18  Deepwater does not have permission to continue.
19  In fact, Deepwater's permit and contractor is
20  literally terminated June 30, 2011, I believe,
21  because they failed to start breaking ground, so
22  to speak, and Torray Plastics actually thought
23  they had won their lawsuit based on that
24  termination of their contract, but, of course, our
25  General Assembly went behind closed doors with the
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 1  PUC, and did a little (inaudible) next you know
 2  everything was amended and here we stand today
 3  still talking about Deepwater.
 4      Let's talk about the negative impacts on
 5  marine resources, FAA radar clutter.  Massive
 6  impact to boats and planes.  Five airports will be
 7  severely affected by the radar clutter that's
 8  coming off the turbines.  We just had a shut down
 9  for three years winter flounder as Terry Tierney
10  was speaking about, and we just got them back.  We
11  just got an allocation, a very small allocation
12  for the fishing industry, but we just got it back
13  and now we're going to allow Deepwater to go into
14  their prime breeding grounds and basically blow
15  them all up and destroy them for green energy
16  that's not really green energy in my eyes, and
17  there are many studies that are proving that to be
18  true.
19      With regards to the EMF cable study done
20  by BOEM in September of 2011, there is high
21  impact, high negative impact on marine resources
22  specific to migrating whales, dolphins, and
23  turtles.  There's a massive negative impact on
24  navigation.  There's a massive negative impact on
25  feeding.  There's a massive negative impact on
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 1  breeding habits.  That's just the migrating
 2  species.  That has nothing to do with species that
 3  basically make Rhode Island Sound and Block Island
 4  Sound its home.
 5      These turbines are basically in the dead
 6  center of regular migration routes, which is why
 7  they basically put it off until 2015 to allow
 8  migration to continue at certain times of the
 9  year.  I don't see what difference it's going to
10  make if they build them in 2015 or 2020.
11  Migration routes are not going to change for the
12  White Whales.  This is what they do.
13      This is unacceptable to the fishing
14  industry.  Absolutely unacceptable.  The fishing
15  industry has had so much taken away from them over
16  the last years.  This is a direct correlation of
17  the catch-year program that was implemented by
18  NOAH in 2010, specific to consolidation of the
19  fleet.  And we made the connect a long time ago
20  they were whittling us away, whittling us away and
21  we all pointed to the oil industry for many, many
22  years, but now that there's big money to be made
23  in Federal stimulus money regarding wind energy
24  and faulty wind energy at that.  Now, we correlate
25  it to the proposal of 42 turbines all the way down
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 1  to Virginia.  What better way to get rid of a
 2  fishing fleet than to over regulate us out of
 3  business, therefore cutting back the cost of
 4  mitigation that Deepwater is basically saying
 5  they're proposing to the fishing industry here,
 6  but I can tell you a lot of fishermen don't want
 7  money.  They don't want Deepwater.  They want to
 8  be left alone to go to work and make a buck and
 9  provide jobs and provide a natural food resource
10  to the community.  Period.  End of story.
11      Deepwater would save billions.  Actually,
12  First Wind, because First Wind is Deepwater and
13  Deepwater is First Wind.  Let's all make that
14  point very clear here today.  They're all one in
15  the same.  Whether they're in Hawaii, Maine,
16  California, Oregon, Washington, or The Gulf, it
17  doesn't matter, First Wind is all over the
18  country.  They're the largest provider of wind
19  energy, and they seem to get every single contract
20  in every portion of the country.  I wonder why,
21  especially connection they had to a (inaudible)
22  tower corporation and the corruption scandal that
23  just erupted over in Sicily, 17 percent of
24  Deepwater, I believe, is still owned by IVPC
25  (phonetic) according to one of the leaders --
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 1  documents and their research.  Now, if anybody
 2  doesn't know what IVPC is, it's Italian Vento
 3  Power Corporation --
 4      THE REPORTER: Ma'am, I have no idea what
 5  you just said.
 6      MS. JACKSON: I'll go back to IVPC.
 7      THE REPORTER: Thank you.
 8      MS. JACKSON: You're welcome.  You're
 9  very rude.  I'm sorry -- I'm doing my best --
10      THE REPORTER: Ma'am, I have a job to
11  do -- excuse me, I have a job to do, and I'm
12  trying to do it.  I asked you very nicely to slow
13  down.  I can't understand what you're saying, so I
14  can't take it down.  I'm not being rude.  I have a
15  job to do.  Thank you.  You're being rude to me.
16      MS. JACKSON: I wasn't trying to be
17  fast and/or rude.  I'm trying -- it's okay.  I can
18  take the heat.
19      MR. GAGNON: You'll have enough time.  Go
20  ahead.
21      MS. JACKSON: Thank you.  Let's take a
22  look at the Italian Vento Power Corporation
23  Connection.  According to my recent research, the
24  Italian Vento Power Corporation still holds 17
25  percent of Deepwater's subsidy and/or stock.  In
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 1  2010, the Italian Mafia police confiscated $6
 2  billion of the Italian Vento Power Corporation's
 3  assets as well as they arrested 10 executives all
 4  for wind fraud, every bit of it.  They were
 5  building turbines, getting massive taxpayer
 6  subsidies, never producing energy that said they
 7  were going to.  These turbines are basically
 8  ineffective and non-working, yet there's people of
 9  Sicily are still forced to pay exorbitant electric
10  rates for power they're not getting.  Now,
11  remember, this is all First Wind, but First Wind
12  is Deepwater.  Some of the executives that sit on
13  First Wind's board are former Enron executives.
14  Are these the kind of people that we want to do
15  business with?  Patrick Wood, III; (inaudible)
16  most of his connection to Enron still
17  documentation out there floating around somewhere,
18  try to get a hold of it myself.  These are the
19  kind of people that we're doing business with.
20  Italian Mafia, former Enron executives, and Rhode
21  Island DEM, it's been brought to their attention
22  prior, not very often, but I have mentioned it in
23  passing.  This is energy market manipulation at
24  its very best.  And if anybody doesn't remember
25  Enron, these people are getting away with doing it
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 1  again.  And anybody that would like information
 2  regarding IVPC and the connection to First Wind
 3  and Deepwater, by all means, come and see me and
 4  I'll give you the powerpoint presentation
 5  Deepwater did making their connection to UPC,
 6  First Wind, and IVPC.  I know, a lot of acronyms,
 7  I'm sorry.
 8      Let's talk about high bird kill ratio.
 9  Let's talk about the Audubon Society and the Cape
10  Wind project, $8 million is waiting in the wings
11  for the Audubon Society to count dead birds.
12  Since when does the Audubon Society count dead
13  birds?  Their function is to protect birds and
14  protect species, just as I want to protect my
15  marine resources, your marine resources, they
16  belong to all of us, and I know it was stated at
17  one of the last meetings that the public trust
18  documents does not include the sectioning off of
19  our oceans and parsing it out to the highest
20  bidders.  I say that's not true.  It has
21  everything to do with the violation of public
22  trust documents.  It has everything to do with
23  that ocean being yours and yours alone.  It
24  doesn't belong to me.  It doesn't belong to the
25  Federal Government.  It doesn't belong to the Army
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 1  Corps. of Engineers.  It doesn't belong to Rhode
 2  Island DEM.  It belongs to you, the US Citizens.
 3  You can look it up.  It's a very simple statement,
 4  very simple amendment to our Constitution.
 5      Currently, all the agencies are reviewing
 6  the original proposal of 3.6 megawatts to permit
 7  Deepwater, including this Rhode Island DEM.
 8  According to some of the sources that I spoke with
 9  today, these are two complete different projects,
10  as we all well know.  But the reviews are being
11  based off the initial proposal.  Where is the
12  completed environmental impact statement on 6
13  megawatt turbine, 650 feet tall?  There isn't one.
14  Where is the FAA hazard study, completed FAA
15  hazard study in regards to the 6 megawatt
16  turbines?  There is a basic dismantling of what
17  pilots need regarding the FAA hazard study,
18  decommissioning, so to speak, of their ability to
19  fly in and out of Block Island.  This will greatly
20  affect five airports in our surrounding area.
21  When you take a look at Docket 4111 -- 4111, there
22  is no indication that there would be any kind of
23  change and/or technological advances to basically
24  create a new proposal.  These are apples and
25  oranges.  We're talking about a turbine that's 300
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 1  feet higher than the original proposed turbine.
 2  These have never been built before.  Again, Rhode
 3  Island gets to be the guinea pig.  I believe
 4  Christopher Walker said it best at one of the last
 5  public hearings, that exactly what we are, are
 6  guinea pigs.
 7      I believe over 400,000 pilots have signed
 8  the petition, 400,000, advocated in opposition of
 9  the disabling of the flight capability system,
10  which the Deepwater project does.  It basically
11  disables their GPS, their magnetic GPS compass,
12  which is what fishing vessels use, in order to
13  navigate the waters, in order to navigate the air.
14  Now, they all talked about the effects of the
15  flicker and EMF and all that, those are very true.
16  The EMF fields are very detrimental to human
17  beings, as well as animal species.
18      I can't think of a better way to spend my
19  time than to advocate for something I know.  It's
20  not only bad for Rhode Island, but it's bad for
21  everybody in general.  And in the back of our
22  minds, we all know this.  I see people getting up
23  here talking about construction jobs that they
24  think they're going to get because they own a
25  small construction company.  I hear them talking
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 1  about jobs, jobs, jobs, when, in fact, Deepwater,
 2  themselves, has stated this will only create 6
 3  permanent jobs, at a cost of $250 million, and
 4  those jobs will only be given from within the
 5  company, won't be you or me or anybody else in
 6  this room.  It will be Deepwater personnel, First
 7  Wind personnel.  Nobody but them.  I don't know if
 8  anybody else has been paying attention to the
 9  Federal stimulus money and the cost of creating
10  these jobs since 2010, but I don't think $250
11  million is worth 6 permanent jobs for a company
12  that's going to make mass amounts of money off of
13  picking our pockets at 24 cents a kilowatt hour.
14  The Government's own reimbursement of 2.6 cents
15  per kilowatt hour, that leaves a big chunk of
16  change coming out of my pocket and your pocket as
17  well.  If nothing else, if nothing else,
18  regardless of what people feel for environmental
19  impact, regardless of what people feel for marine
20  resources, regardless of what people feel for
21  green energy, I'm the biggest advocate, I want to
22  spend the least amount of money with the most
23  efficient energy for anybody.  Believe me when I
24  tell you, the cost itself, alone, should not be
25  allowed.  It is too expensive.  It is faulty to a
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 1  T.  We can cite First Wind's project in Hawaii.  I
 2  mean that's a mess.  Spain, Portugal, many
 3  European countries are pulling their wind
 4  projects.  We should learn from their steps.
 5  They've already been through the process.  It has
 6  failed again and again and again, and here we sit.
 7  Here we sit.  Imagine that.
 8      The reason history repeats itself is
 9  because we didn't learn our lesson the first time.
10  People say this is a done deal.  I don't believe
11  that.  I believe collectively and together we can
12  stand up to big corporate crony capitalists
13  companies such as First Wind.  I believe that we,
14  as a people, it is time that we stand together
15  against phony capitalists such as First Wind.  It
16  is time that your government listens to us.  We
17  pay them.  We elect them.  Next time when we go to
18  the voting booth, be very careful who you pick and
19  choose to represent you because they just very
20  well may sell you down the road as time goes by.
21      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is Miles Grant.
22      MR. GRANT: Hi.  My name is Miles Grant,
23  representing the National Wildlife Federal, and
24  I'm a fast speaker, too, so just give me one of
25  these things if I'm talking too fast.  The
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 1  National Wildlife Federation is here to say that
 2  it supports offshore wind.  The threat to
 3  America's wildlife today is the climate crisis.
 4  We need clean energy.  We need it to be
 5  responsibly cited, responsibly constructed.  We
 6  feel that's what this project is.  Our state
 7  affiliate, the Environment Council of Rhode Island
 8  represents over 40,000 people in Rhode Island,
 9  supports this project as well.
10      You know, if you look across this country
11  right now at energy resources, we're getting
12  energy from coal, from natural gas, from oil.
13  You're right that oil tends not to go to
14  electricity here in New England.  It goes to our
15  cars.  We're going to transition our cars to
16  electric energy sources.  We're going to need
17  clean energy for those vehicles.
18      I've been to Virginia where they mine
19  coal.  Used to be they dug under the ground to get
20  coal.  Now, they blow up a mountain and pick up
21  the coal from underneath it.  I've been to the
22  Gulf to cover the Gulf War disaster.  I've seen
23  the impacts of that.  I was actually just in
24  Arkansas this month to cover the tar sand spill
25  there, want to talk about home values, talk to
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 1  people in Mayflower, Arkansas.  Actually, I wore
 2  these jeans tonight because when I got home washed
 3  out all the mud from walking through the marshes
 4  down there, looking at the dead ducks, dead
 5  reptiles, and I still have tar sand on my jeans,
 6  even after going through the wash cycle.  Imagine
 7  what it's like for the ducks down there.
 8      So, the National Wildlife Federation
 9  strongly feels again, if these projects were not
10  right for wildlife, we'd be among the first to
11  stand up against them to say no.  We worked with
12  these developers to make them do the best for
13  wildlife that they can be.  I've got to tell you,
14  go to BP, go to Exxon, and ask them to do what is
15  right for wildlife and see how far you get.  Go to
16  NWF.  org/offshore wind, we've got reports on this
17  and read through.  Contact us.  Let us know the
18  questions that you have.  We feel this project and
19  others like it need to move forward to protect
20  America's wildlife.  Thank you.
21      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is Karen -- and
22  I'm not going to get this last name right --
23  Shabshelowitz.
24      MS. SHABSHELOWITZ: Thank you for coming
25  to Narragansett.  I am a mother of six grown
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 1  children, who all love the beach and six
 2  grandchildren.  They all live out of state 'cuz
 3  there are no jobs in the state, but they've got --
 4  they have many happy, happy memories of going down
 5  along the beach, taking walks, digging out the
 6  little sand crabs that inhabit the beach, going
 7  after the little minnows that would go in the
 8  water, the little fish.  One of my sons absolutely
 9  loved fish, and he used to go down whenever the
10  bluefish were running, they'd run along the wall
11  and they'd jump out of the water.  That's right by
12  the beach where they'd run and it's just
13  fascinating.  It was like a little dolphin show,
14  but they were little blue fish.
15      We moved to Rhode Island over 25 years
16  ago from northeastern Pennsylvania.  We saw what
17  strip mining did to the beautiful mountains in
18  Pennsylvania.  There were fires that couldn't be
19  put out.  There were -- a lot of people had black
20  lungs from breathing in the fumes, and they used
21  to try and fill up the mines so houses wouldn't
22  sink into the mines.  No one could have predicted
23  this was going to happen many years ago when they
24  first went after the coal.  And I have similar
25  concerns about a cable going for miles under our
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 1  beautiful beach.  People come to Narragansett
 2  because of the beauty of the beach, and that's
 3  year round, and the water is beautiful, the sand
 4  is beautiful.  I hate to think of that being
 5  destroyed, ambiance, the charm of the town.
 6      I also think back to when they built the
 7  Jamestown Bridge; and when they were building it,
 8  they found quite a lot of rock under the bridge
 9  they did not know was there.  So that impacted how
10  they were going to build the bridge.  Also huge
11  cost overruns because of the lack of foresight
12  into what they'd be running into.  And so with the
13  Big Dig, when they built the Big Dig, a lot of
14  cost overruns.
15      I went to that meeting at Narragansett
16  Elementary School December of 2011.  We were told
17  to sign in and they'd be in touch with us.  Fool
18  me once, shame on you; fool me twice, shame on me.
19  We never heard from them at all.  They didn't give
20  a presentation.  So nothing went on the record.
21  Went around asking questions of different people,
22  and I'm sure we all got different answers to the
23  same questions.  We never heard from them.  In
24  fact, it was the town member that found out in
25  reading the binders down in the library that they
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 1  intended to bring the cable above ground, rather
 2  than below ground.  I find it just preposterous,
 3  as a nurse, that you have -- when you make up a
 4  plan, you have input from the family.  Deepwater
 5  didn't care about input from the town.  They
 6  didn't care about what the people said.  They just
 7  went ahead and did what they wanted to do.  And I
 8  think they continue to do that because we've had
 9  several hearings where people have strongly
10  objected to the addition of larger telephone
11  poles, higher up in the sky, and additional poles,
12  and then we're going to build a substation down
13  near the community center which is going to put
14  more electrical apparatus.  I have no concerns
15  about the upkeep and the cable and what's going to
16  happen during the tidal storms that we've
17  experienced.  We've had power outages a number of
18  times that have lasted five days to a week; and
19  when the lines go down, they have to wait for the
20  wind to stop before they can go up and try to
21  repair them.  Some of the poles have gone down
22  also.
23      I have a son that's a New York City
24  fireman and he's watched the fire that was in
25  Queens, and total neighborhoods were wiped out due
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 1  to the storm that they had never seen before.  I
 2  mean generations of people have lived in the areas
 3  and the whole area is changed now.  Whole
 4  communities are just gone.  And he described how
 5  when fire engines went, the hydrants were way down
 6  below the water because there was flooding
 7  everywhere.  And they have to try and pump the
 8  water without the fire hydrants because they were
 9  so far below.  Meanwhile, 50 houses burnt down in
10  one night.  I mention that because I also lived in
11  Pennsylvania.  We had a big storm at Adler's
12  (phonetic).  There was huge flooding.  It was back
13  in '70 -- no, it was in -- '79 -- well, I remember
14  going to Hartford to delivery a baby and I didn't
15  realize the whole front door was closed down
16  because of the floods that happened nine months
17  ago.  Trying to remember which child that was, but
18  that was totally -- we were totally unprepared for
19  that.  Most of you that have watched TV this last
20  week and seen these floods that are going on in
21  the midwest where barns are just pushed up against
22  the harbor.  I mean there's all these changes
23  going on, and I just -- I just don't trust a
24  company that doesn't want to hear what the
25  citizens want to say, and the citizen are
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 1  interested in and just go ahead and proceed.  You
 2  know, we've had these hearings and yet they have
 3  not acknowledged any change in the plans or
 4  anything like that, and I just wonder, you know, I
 5  don't want them to destroy the beach, and I find
 6  them projecting how much the electric bills are
 7  going to be highly preposterous.  I mean, how can
 8  they even tell because this is an experimental
 9  project.
10      And I was an exchange student in Holland
11  many years ago.  They have beautiful windmills
12  that sort of kept up the ambiance of the
13  community.  I just can't see these big turbines
14  being at all pretty.  I think they ruin the
15  outlook to the ocean.  Also, in Pennsylvania, you
16  know, a lot of times hear banging, banging,
17  banging, banging.  They were trying to fill up the
18  mines.  That was some machines they used trying to
19  fill in the mines, so that there wouldn't be land
20  further sliding into it.  I have fear of what
21  these machines are going to be doing that are
22  trying to build this cable, and if they're 6 feet
23  under the ground, I have no concerns with what the
24  tidal storms will do to that.
25      For a company that doesn't seem to
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 1  respect us, I have a lot of suspect about what
 2  they're going to do.  Thank you again for
 3  listening.
 4      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is Abel
 5  Collins.
 6      MR. COLLINS: My name is Abel Collins.
 7  I'm a program engineer for the Sierra Club in
 8  Rhode Island.  We're a chapter of about 2,000
 9  members, and, nationally, the largest and oldest
10  environmental organization in the country.
11      This has been a long project coming.
12  Only recently have we come around with all the
13  work that Deepwater Wind has put into doing
14  studies to agree this is a good project and the
15  direction that Rhode Island needs to be heading.
16  Speaking about negative impacts, you know, I think
17  any human activity is going to have negative
18  impacts on the environment.  That's just the way
19  we are with the environment.  What we have to do
20  is balance which is going to be worse.  And when
21  we look at the alternative to renewable energy, it
22  is significantly worse, even when we just look at
23  the narrow region of our bay.  We have first-hand
24  experience with oil spills right off the coast of
25  Matunuck where I, myself, live.  We have
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 1  first-hand experience with the rising sea levels
 2  which are eating away at our shores.
 3      I grew up in Matunuck.  We've lost over a
 4  hundred feet of shoreline, that's just 10 inches
 5  of sea level rise.  That's only going to
 6  accelerate over the next hundred years.  I mean,
 7  it's hard to imagine, but I think someday I might
 8  have beach front property living a mile away from
 9  the beach.  And that's what we had to be concerned
10  with.  We have to worry about rising temperatures.
11  That's what's affecting the fish population more
12  than the cable going on the bottom of the bay.
13  Cables have been running across the Atlantic for a
14  hundred years now.  This is not new technology
15  that we're talking about in this project.
16      Talk about Brayton Point, which is the
17  nearest coal burning power plant, the biggest
18  power plant in the Northeast, generates about 1300
19  megawatts of power.  That has major environmental
20  impacts.  They've had to build cooling towers that
21  you can see from over a state away, and they had
22  to do that because they were heating the waters up
23  in the northern parts of the bay affecting the
24  fish populations.  Those are the environmental
25  impacts that we should be more concerned with.
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 1      The project that Deepwater Wind proposes
 2  is five turbines in this demonstration project.
 3  They've gone through environmental studies.
 4  They've done everything to make room for things
 5  like flight of the birds.  There's the migration
 6  of the White Whales.  They say they're going to
 7  postpone it and only do the installation of these
 8  five turbines when they're not migrating through.
 9  Allowances have been made for the environmental
10  concerns that are out there, and it's a good
11  project at this point.  And at some point, we need
12  to be transitioning to a renewable energy economy.
13  It has to be small scale projects.  I want solar
14  panels on my roof.  I want a small turbine in my
15  backyard.  And that's important to those sort of
16  moderate level things.  It's important to do small
17  things like turning off the lights when walking
18  out of a room, but it's also critically important
19  that we're doing the larger scale projects well.
20  It's going to take every level of energy to, you
21  know, prevent the worst of climate change, and
22  right now we're just not doing it.
23      Last year we saw the second highest jump
24  in atmospheric concentrations of carbon dioxide
25  record, and we're already higher than we've been
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 1  in millions of years.  The science behind climate
 2  change and global warming is on the rise.  Back
 3  when we still had a beach in Matunuck, when we
 4  still had dunes that I played on, I did a science
 5  project in fifth grade, when I was 10, 1988, was
 6  when the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
 7  just started its work addressing climate change.
 8  To my ten-year-old brain, the science of climate
 9  change made sense and you could conduct a small
10  experiment that made it work.  All you have to do
11  is put two terrariums next to each other, put
12  carbon dioxide in one of them and measure the
13  temperature as you go along.  It's science.  It's
14  real, and it's time we started doing something to
15  address these changes that have been occurring for
16  years, decades, and are now really threatening our
17  infrastructure, homeowners along the beach, and
18  really the money that's public money that's going
19  to go to try to protect these people and this
20  infrastructure.  It's time to take action, and
21  we're not going to be able to do it all in Rhode
22  Island, but we're responsible for a piece, and
23  this is one of the ways that we can start doing
24  those changes.  So, I encourage everybody to
25  support this project.  It's not perfect, but
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 1  nothing in life is.  And that's good enough for us
 2  to consider.
 3      MR. GAGNON: That concludes all the
 4  people who have signed up to speak.  Is there
 5  anyone else who wishes to say anything that hasn't
 6  signed up before we close the hearing?  Okay.
 7  Thank you very much.  Thank you for your
 8  participation and cooperation, and we'll close the
 9  hearing.  Thank you.
10      (CLOSED AT 8:52 PM)
11      ************
12  
13  
14  
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 1              C-E-R-T-I-F-I-C-A-T-E
   
 2 
             I, RONALD M. RONZIO, Notary Public, do
 3  hereby certify that I reported in shorthand the
    foregoing proceedings, and that the foregoing
 4  transcript contains a true, accurate, and complete
    record of the proceedings at the above-entitled
 5  hearing.
   
 6           IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set
    my hand and seal this 23d day of May, 2013.
 7 
   
 8 
   
 9 
   
10 
    ________________________________________________
11  RONALD M. RONZIO, NOTARY PUBLIC/CERTIFIED COURT
    REPORTER
12 
   
13  MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:  July 24, 2013
   
14  IN RE:  DEEPWATER WIND PROJECT
   
15  DATE:   April 24, 2013
   
16 
   
17 
   
18 
   
19 
   
20 
   
21 
   
22 
   
23 
   
24 
   
25 
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 1                      (COMMENCED AT 6:34 PM)
  


 2                 MR. GAGNON:  Okay.  I'd like to get
  


 3        started, please.  Thank you.  Welcome, everyone.
  


 4        Today is Wednesday, April 24, 2013, 6:35.  My name
  


 5        is Ron Gagnon.  I am chief of the Rhode Island
  


 6        Department of Environmental Management Office of
  


 7        Customer and Technical Assistance.  With me today
  


 8        is Russ Chateauneuf, who is chief in our office of
  


 9        Water Resources and Richard Bianculli, from the
  


10        DEM office of legal services.  Also here is
  


11        Michael Elliott, from the Army Corps of Engineers.
  


12        We are gathered at the Narragansett Town Hall
  


13        today regarding a public hearing concerning the
  


14        application of Deepwater Wind, LLC, for a State of
  


15        Rhode Island water quality certificate and a
  


16        dredge permit in accordance and with the
  


17        department's rules and regulations for dredging
  


18        and the management of dredge materials and the
  


19        state water quality regulations.
  


20                 This hearing is being conducted under the
  


21        authority of the Administrative Procedures Act
  


22        located under Chapter 42-35 of the General Laws of
  


23        Rhode Island.  In accordance with the act's
  


24        requirements, public notice of this hearing were
  


25        published in the Narragansett Times, the South
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 1        County Independent, and the Block Island Times.
  


 2        Notice was also posted on the department's web
  


 3        site.
  


 4                 The purpose of this hearing is to afford
  


 5        interested parties an opportunity to comment on
  


 6        the noted application.  This hearing is not
  


 7        intended as a means of providing a forum for
  


 8        discussion, debating, arguing, or otherwise having
  


 9        any dialogue at this time with members of the
  


10        department.  Please be silent when an individual
  


11        is making his or her comments.  Full copies of the
  


12        application have been placed in the public
  


13        libraries of Narragansett and New Shoreham.  We
  


14        have also extended the written public comment
  


15        period to 4 P.M. Wednesday, May 22, 2013.  A
  


16        second public hearing shall be held at the New
  


17        Shoreham Town Hall on May 8, 2013, at 5 P.M.
  


18                 The procedure we would use for those who
  


19        wish to speak is as follows.  If you have not
  


20        already done so, please register in the rear of
  


21        the auditorium.  I will call the speakers in the
  


22        order of registration.  We will allow
  


23        approximately 5 minutes for each individual to
  


24        make comments on the record.  When your name is
  


25        called, please come to the podium here and speak
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 1        clearly and slowly so that the stenographer can
  


 2        accurate transcribe your comments.  Written
  


 3        comments may also be submitted before or after
  


 4        your presentation is made.  Please note that I
  


 5        will use a yellow cardboard sign to indicate you
  


 6        have approximately one minute remaining for your
  


 7        comments.  And at the end of the five-minute
  


 8        period, I will raise a red cardboard sign.  I'll
  


 9        try not to use those too much.  We ask that you
  


10        please respect the time limits so that all
  


11        commentors may be heard.  Thank you for your
  


12        cooperation.  After the time has elapsed for the
  


13        submission of the written comments, the department
  


14        will prepare a written response to all comments,
  


15        and then we will complete the review process and
  


16        issue the final determination.
  


17                 At this time, we can start with the
  


18        registered speakers for public comment.  The first
  


19        registered speaker is Jackie Sotnik.
  


20                 MS. SOTNIK:  Good evening.  I notice
  


21        there's still a lot of confusion about the plan
  


22        and what is going to happen and comments about
  


23        proposals as to how the power will be transmitted,
  


24        and so I'm not completely fully informed.  And
  


25        it's good to know that there will be some more
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 1        advanced plans at the library to become more up to
  


 2        speed on that so I'm thankful for that.  Also, I'd
  


 3        like to state that I am a proponent of developing
  


 4        alternate energy sources.  I think that's
  


 5        obviously something we need to do.  The only thing
  


 6        I'm speaking of is in regard to not only the town
  


 7        of Narragansett, but the state of Rhode Island and
  


 8        all of its citizens because Narragansett is such
  


 9        an important part of the state.  It represents the
  


10        tourism industry, and it's the playground where
  


11        people come to try to enjoy and take advantage of
  


12        what we have here in our town.  I think the town
  


13        has a certain responsibility to try to preserve
  


14        that as much as possible.  So, whoever is
  


15        responsible for mandating some constraints or
  


16        requirements to the project, I'm hopeful that they
  


17        will be cognizant of the people of the state and
  


18        the town, especially regarding the esthetics of
  


19        how this is going to work, how it is going to
  


20        look, what types of structures would have to be
  


21        put up, so that they're being mindful of the
  


22        sensitivity of the ecology and the beauty of our
  


23        area.  That's all I'm saying.
  


24                 MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Next speaker is
  


25        Stanley, and excuse my pronunciation,
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 1        Wojciechowski.
  


 2                 MR. WOJCIECHOWSKI:  I know many will
  


 3        speak from a geographical perspective, so I'm
  


 4        going to limit my comments to the financial
  


 5        perspective here.  And, you know, are we in the
  


 6        Soviet Union where bribery causes a project to
  


 7        proceed, or is this America where capitalistic
  


 8        motives are used and that's what makes our country
  


 9        so great.  Now, speaking about, I used to work in
  


10        private industry; and unless we received a 15
  


11        percent return, the project wouldn't proceed.  You
  


12        know, you've got to have it to justify the
  


13        project, no matter how good it was.  I heard now
  


14        that our electric bills are going to increase.
  


15        Now, this is the absolute disincentive that should
  


16        stall this thing immediately.  If we're going to
  


17        increase the amount of money that people have to
  


18        pay for electric bills, it doesn't work.  Stop.
  


19        We must re-engineer it.  That's what I was told
  


20        when I worked in engineering and research.  I
  


21        don't care how good the idea was.  Financially, it
  


22        had to pass the muster, that 15 percent.  That's
  


23        the old days.  And until we have the commitment
  


24        that our bills will go down 15 percent with this
  


25        project, we're just engineering, so our bills are
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 1        reduced by 15 percent, you must disapprove this
  


 2        project.  Send it back to the drawing boards.
  


 3        This has to happen.  There's no discussion about
  


 4        that.
  


 5                 On the other hand, should you allow some
  


 6        lump sum bribe given to Narragansett, whoever, I
  


 7        feel that this is so un-American and it's bribery,
  


 8        bribe the town, bribe somebody, give a lump sum
  


 9        payment to this, we'll do that.  You know, it will
  


10        make all our citizens have to pay more per month.
  


11        And, yes, it's only a dollar, seems like it's only
  


12        a dollar.  Half a million people, a dollar, that's
  


13        quite a bit of money.  And I feel that the state
  


14        of the government today may be just constantly
  


15        finding projects that are only costing us a
  


16        dollar, and these dollars are valuable.  I don't
  


17        think you should allow one more dollar be taken
  


18        away from the people of this state.  It must stop
  


19        somewhere, and I'm kind of asking and maybe
  


20        demanding that you stop this until there's a 15
  


21        percent return.  And there's no stealing of that
  


22        one dollar a month from all our people.  It sounds
  


23        like very little, but it's on top of the many
  


24        dollars and other projects that are in the past
  


25        and the future coming.  Therefore, please help
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 1        here.  Thank you.
  


 2                 MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Next speaker is
  


 3        David Maar.
  


 4                 MR. MAAR:  Can everyone hear me?  Thanks.
  


 5        My name is David Maar, and I'm a student at Unity
  


 6        College in Maine studying environmental policy and
  


 7        sustainable energy management.  But I've grown up
  


 8        on the waters of Rhode Island my entire life.
  


 9        It's a very special place near and dear to my
  


10        heart, as I'm sure it is to you as well.
  


11                 The current level of CO2 in the
  


12        atmosphere is 398.36 parts per million.  As some
  


13        of you may know, this is a very dangerous level;
  


14        and as a community, if we don't make changes to
  


15        combat climate change, we must get used to the
  


16        norm of more winter storms, Nemo's, and Super
  


17        Storm Sandies.
  


18                 THE REPORTER:  Sir, you really need to
  


19        slow down just a little bit.  I'm having trouble
  


20        hearing you.  Thank you.
  


21                 MR. MAAR:  Rhode Island is in a unique
  


22        position where we can take the lead in combating
  


23        climate disruption.  This offshore wind project
  


24        does more good than harm.  The arguments posed
  


25        against the wind turbines at the CRMC hearing for
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 1        the intervener status are severely flawed.
  


 2                 People have said that wind turbines will
  


 3        decrease their property value and this is
  


 4        inherently false.  A three-year study by the U.S.
  


 5        Department of Energy's Lawrence Berkeley National
  


 6        Laboratory concludes that neither the view of wind
  


 7        energy facilities nor the distance of the home to
  


 8        those facilities were found to have any consistent
  


 9        measurable and significant effects on selling
  


10        prices of nearby homes.  No matter how we looked
  


11        at the data, the same results kept coming back --
  


12        no evidence of widespread impacts.
  


13                 People in the past and present have
  


14        complained about the annoyance of the flicker
  


15        effect and noise.  The Massachusetts Department of
  


16        Environmental Protection in collaboration with the
  


17        Massachusetts Department of Public Health convened
  


18        an independent panel of experts to study the
  


19        potential health impacts of wind turbines.  Their
  


20        result was that they found was insufficient
  


21        evidence that noise from wind turbines directly
  


22        causes health problems or disease.  And for those
  


23        worried about noise affecting the ocean, it is of
  


24        little environmental concern.  And this is from a
  


25        Ph.D. biologist at the University of Liverpool's
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 1        Center for Marine and Coastal Studies.  Flicker
  


 2        effect will not be an issue because the turbine is
  


 3        in the ocean three miles away from Block Island.
  


 4                 The other argument is that wind turbines
  


 5        kill birds.  Yes, wind turbines kill birds, but
  


 6        more birds are killed by cats, power lines,
  


 7        communication towers, and windows annually per
  


 8        year.  People argue that wind turbines will
  


 9        decrease tourism, but the opposite is true.
  


10        According to a 2007 University of Delaware study,
  


11        44.5 percent of out-of-state tourists were more
  


12        likely to take a boat tour of a wind facility.
  


13                 Now, in conclusion, some of you may
  


14        wonder why I'm here, coming down in the middle of
  


15        a school day kind of thing, and why I'm standing
  


16        here today, and I have a really simple answer, and
  


17        that's family.  I am blessed to have a grandfather
  


18        who taught me to fish, clam, lobster right out
  


19        there in Point Judith, and I don't want the
  


20        opportunity to be taken from other kids of my
  


21        generation.  It would just be a horrible loss.
  


22        So, on the positive note, we must move forward on
  


23        climate and this can be Rhode Island's first big
  


24        step.
  


25                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Kirsten
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 1        Maar.
  


 2                 MS. MAAR:  Thank you very much.  I have a
  


 3        tough act to follow after my son, but I'm very
  


 4        proud of the fact that where we talk here about
  


 5        problems that are associated with wind turbines,
  


 6        my son works on them.  He's out there building
  


 7        them, working on them.  As a mother, do you think
  


 8        I would put my son in harm's way?  Absolutely not.
  


 9        So, what you hear tonight is you'll hear it's
  


10        going to decrease property values, we're going to
  


11        get radiation from power lines, we're going to get
  


12        all of these horrible things.  If any of this were
  


13        statistically or significantly true, please look
  


14        at Europe.  Please look at the amount of offshore
  


15        wind that is provided by in Europe, in Denmark.
  


16        Their electric bills are reduced.  There are no
  


17        health effects, tourism increases.  We're facing a
  


18        horrible future in Rhode Island if we look at last
  


19        storms.  If we don't go to renewable energy, if we
  


20        don't adapt to a post-carbon climate future, it's
  


21        not even going to be an issue about a power line
  


22        on the beach because the beach will be gone.
  


23        Those houses will be gone.  And we have an
  


24        opportunity to lead the country.  We're a small
  


25        state.  We can act like a big state and support
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 1        this wonderful project.  Thank you.
  


 2                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is John
  


 3        Thompson
  


 4                 MR. THOMPSON:  Thank you.  I'm a resident
  


 5        at 20 Narragansett Avenue, so I could see those
  


 6        power lines coming in now.  As it turns out, I
  


 7        went to the public hearing that the Waterwind had
  


 8        in December of 2011 for Narragansett residents
  


 9        where they showed us how the power lines, the
  


10        transmission line, will not affect us because it
  


11        will all be going underground.  Everything's going
  


12        to be underground, won't have to worry about it.
  


13        Hurricane wind comes through, you won't have to
  


14        worry about these high tension lines coming down.
  


15        In fact, it turns out, the latest plans had them
  


16        all above ground.  We hear about the (inaudible)
  


17        utility poles, upgraded poles.  To me, making a
  


18        pole larger and more ugly does not upgrade or
  


19        enhance it.  I'm all in favor of renewable energy,
  


20        but it should be done the right way, and the right
  


21        way is not to put high tension wires across the
  


22        most scenic part of Narragansett and destroy the
  


23        view.  Do we want to have to redraw the town seal
  


24        and put the high tension wires in front of
  


25        everything that's going to happen?  That's not how
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 1        we do things.
  


 2                 We talk about Hurricane Sandy and the
  


 3        things that it has knocked down.  If you've lived
  


 4        in Narragansett the last couple of years, you know
  


 5        you can lose power a lot when those lines come
  


 6        down, and it's a big issue.  So, I'm very
  


 7        concerned about (inaudible) follow through because
  


 8        they haven't followed through on what they
  


 9        promised us in December of 2011.  They have
  


10        changed the plans, and we signed up for a
  


11        notification if there are any changes or any other
  


12        information they had, they would let us know.
  


13        We've never received notification that this had
  


14        changed.  In fact, we were astounded to find out
  


15        from others that they had changed.  The other
  


16        thing they don't tell you right now is is not just
  


17        (inaudible) lines, there's plans to put up
  


18        possibly a couple hundred more out there in
  


19        another area.
  


20                 So, when you look at the environmental
  


21        impact statement that's now available, it just
  


22        talks about the minimal impact of 5 turbines.
  


23        What's going to happen when there's 200 turbines
  


24        out there?  It's going to have a huge impact so
  


25        that when they talk about minimal impact with just
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 1        five, multiply that by 40, then you can see what
  


 2        the impact is going to be.  So, the minimal impact
  


 3        that they're referring to here is really just to
  


 4        get a foothold.  So, once they have five in there,
  


 5        they can say, oh, well, there wasn't a big impact
  


 6        with five, so we'll put another 200 in.  In fact,
  


 7        if you actually read the environmental impact
  


 8        report, which, in fact, is quite tough reading
  


 9        because it's, at least the version I have, is 373
  


10        pages long, does seem quite repetitive in terms of
  


11        saying well, we don't know how this is going to
  


12        affect the fish, we don't know how this is going
  


13        to affect things because it hasn't been studied.
  


14        We don't know how this dredging is going to affect
  


15        marine life, and so we'll find out.  Again, the
  


16        studies started before installation, before
  


17        dredging, and then follow for afterwards.
  


18                 Again, based on the behavior I've seen so
  


19        far, I don't believe that we're necessarily going
  


20        to have the follow-through and actually see what's
  


21        happening, what the impact of these stations are.
  


22        So, again, I'm, as the last two speakers, I'm
  


23        fully in favor of renewable energies sources, but
  


24        it has to be done the right way.  It has to be
  


25        done in an economically sound way and an
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 1        environmentally sound way.  Just because it's
  


 2        renewable doesn't mean it's environmentally sound.
  


 3        You can do things really badly, and under the
  


 4        guise of renewable energy, that's what (inaudible)
  


 5        we're talking about doing renewable energy, which
  


 6        everybody's in favor of, but only at the expense
  


 7        of Rhode Island rate payers, at the expense of the
  


 8        environment out in the ocean, because we don't
  


 9        know the impact of the dredging, we don't know the
  


10        impact of putting all these, not just five, but
  


11        hundreds of wind turbines out in the bay that we
  


12        rely on for both the scenic beauty as well as the
  


13        fishing and shellfish and everything else that's
  


14        out there.
  


15                 It is going to be an impact that we don't
  


16        understand right now; and to approve this without
  


17        really understanding it, I think is a huge
  


18        mistake, especially since it is not economically
  


19        sound or else they wouldn't have to rely on the
  


20        Rhode Island taxpayers and rate payers to
  


21        subsidize this project.  And that's exactly what
  


22        it is.  It's not -- it's one thing if it's being
  


23        completely funded by Deepwater Wind.  In fact,
  


24        it's not.  It's being funded by Rhode Island
  


25        taxpayers, and that's something that I don't think
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 1        is the right thing to do.  If they can't fund this
  


 2        on their own, it shouldn't be built.  There are
  


 3        other alternatives for renewable energy sources
  


 4        beyond wind turbines that don't make economic
  


 5        sense, and we have unknown environmental effects.
  


 6        Thank you.
  


 7                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Bob
  


 8        Donaldson.
  


 9                 MR. DONALDSON:  Good evening.  I have a
  


10        house at 75 Boon Street in Narragansett, and I
  


11        have actually been working on wind power for
  


12        private plants, being an electrical engineer, and
  


13        I've been doing this for like three or four years
  


14        now, and this, to me, is both economically and
  


15        environmentally unfeasible.  I subscribe to MIT
  


16        Technology Review.  Just published.  Be happy to
  


17        send anybody a copy of this if you'd like.  But
  


18        I'd like to quote here from David Victor, an
  


19        energy expert from the University of California in
  


20        San Diego, there's going to be a blood bath in
  


21        wind power, and the reason for that is that it
  


22        just doesn't make economic sense.
  


23                 They are talking -- first of all, we pay
  


24        at the moment depending on whether you have
  


25        local -- a local generator or you're National Grid
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 1        or one of those, you pay between 4 and 8 cents a
  


 2        kilowatt hour for generation.  They are proposing
  


 3        to sell this stuff for somewhere around 20 cents,
  


 4        18 to 22 cents a kilowatt hour.  So, you're
  


 5        talking about at least a three-fold increase in
  


 6        the cost of generation.  People just aren't going
  


 7        to pay this.  That's too far out of bed.  There
  


 8        are alternatives.  I happen to have my whole house
  


 9        is filled with LED lights, and my energy bill has
  


10        gone down by approximately 25 percent since I've
  


11        install those.  Dow Chemical is building solar
  


12        shingles, which means you're going to put up a
  


13        panel, just outfit your house with solar shingles
  


14        that has proven to be economically feasible.  They
  


15        are currently building a huge plant in Michigan to
  


16        be able to supply the whole country.  At the
  


17        moment, they supply a few states, and it's working
  


18        out very well.  They're now building a big plant
  


19        to be able to supply more of these.  So, there are
  


20        other ways of providing energy.
  


21                 I have maps, which you can get online.
  


22        This is Rhode Island average -- annual average
  


23        wind speed at a height of 80 meters.  I apologize
  


24        again.  I can give these to the people if you'd
  


25        like to see them.  If you look at Block Island out
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 1        here, and that's -- there, I believe on the
  


 2        southeast corner is where they're proposing to put
  


 3        these.  Those are marginally feasible to put wind
  


 4        turbines.  These are not the best places in the
  


 5        country to put a wind turbine.  And you can see
  


 6        like the yellow is completely -- it's half the
  


 7        average wind power you need.  So, I looked at this
  


 8        in some detail.
  


 9                 Environmentally, if you look at what
  


10        they're now talking, I believe 30 megawatts; and
  


11        if you take 30 megawatts and you're running 35
  


12        kilowatt, 35 KV line, that amounts to, I believe,
  


13        somewhere between 5 and 600 amps.  You need to
  


14        look into that.  I don't know exactly what the
  


15        effects on humans are, but our bodies are made up
  


16        of several billion in magnetic di-poles, and
  


17        that's why MRI's work.  So, we may be imposing
  


18        24-7 MRI's on people, and that needs to be looked
  


19        into.  I don't know if that's true.  So, all I
  


20        know is when you have that much current, you have
  


21        a big magnetic field and there's wires, and some
  


22        distance away from them, I know in Massachusetts,
  


23        I play golf on a golf course where there's power
  


24        lines going overhead and the golf clubs in my bag
  


25        rattle.  Truly, it does.  I can tell you it's a
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 1        newer country club.
  


 2                 So, anyway, I think that we need to look
  


 3        here.  First, the feasibility of the project is --
  


 4        there's just other methods that are better to do
  


 5        renewable energy.  I'm all in favor, but I think
  


 6        we need renewable energy.  We need to approach it
  


 7        systematically, analytically, and do it correctly,
  


 8        and I think this is jumping off a cliff.  We're
  


 9        going too fast.  We should -- I'm unaware of any
  


10        results from wind turbines, yet, that demonstrates
  


11        that these are literally a good thing to do.  So,
  


12        where are the test results from projects that
  


13        already exist because there are projects that
  


14        exist, and I don't know where there are any
  


15        results.  Thank you.
  


16                 MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Our next speaker
  


17        is Robert Malin.
  


18                 MR. MALIN:  Hello.  I'm a big supporter
  


19        of renewable resources, and I've personally been
  


20        toward a smaller scale, as you've heard a lot of
  


21        people for a lot of reasons.  However, in watching
  


22        this project develop over the years, what I've
  


23        seen is global warming has advanced at a much
  


24        faster rate, and we need to add these industrial
  


25        solutions.  It's not my first pick, but I think
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 1        it's been picked for us.  And I think that it also
  


 2        provides an economic opportunity for Rhode Island
  


 3        to become a leader in having the first wind farms
  


 4        and developing this technology and build the
  


 5        turbines at Quonset Point.  They can build it for
  


 6        a submarine.  They can build a turbine for a wind
  


 7        turbine.  I think that there are some issues that
  


 8        need -- the cable changing from the underground,
  


 9        underwater cable to the transmission line.  It's,
  


10        you know, in the air, I think is an outstanding
  


11        issue.
  


12                 However, the economics of it I think are
  


13        unfairly waived for the fossil fuel industries.
  


14        Right now, Senator Whitehouse is working on a fee
  


15        and dividend system where fossil fuels will have
  


16        to pay for their byproduct.  You pay to have your
  


17        garbage picked up.  I pay for mine, but fossil
  


18        fuel industries don't pay for theirs, and that
  


19        plays into the economics of it.  Another thing
  


20        that's changed, as I have been watching this, is
  


21        the Federal Aviation Association reports a 70
  


22        percent -- I'm sorry, a 40 percent increase in
  


23        wind speeds.  So, we're basing some of these
  


24        output on, you know, on historic wind speed
  


25        average, but we're already seeing greater wind
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 1        speeds, and it makes sense to harvest it.
  


 2                 So, for me, I think what's most important
  


 3        is to find the right mix, but this needs to be
  


 4        fast-tracked, and this symbolic nature of this, of
  


 5        this project going ahead in Rhode Island gives us
  


 6        an advantage in developing this industry in the
  


 7        future.  And we can't forget that our economy, I
  


 8        don't tell anybody any surprise, is essentially in
  


 9        a shambles.  And this provides an opportunity for
  


10        us to turn this around.  So, with a few
  


11        reservations, things that still need to do, needs
  


12        to be a fair deal for people.  That's been my big
  


13        reservation from the beginning.  I thought it
  


14        should be a public utility project, because when
  


15        we had Narragansett Electric and we paid the bills
  


16        from them, it was a lot less than what we're
  


17        paying through National Grid now.  But that being
  


18        said, I think that it's been rained in, and the
  


19        site -- the siting is very specific to where they
  


20        have those five turbines.  I was there at the
  


21        hearing where they did the siting map.  I don't
  


22        know who it was, a couple of Federal people came
  


23        down or something, and they were very specific
  


24        that to expand beyond this would take the same
  


25        sort of study and expansion isn't automatic.  Of
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 1        course, their record will speak loudly.  They
  


 2        don't perform well, then they're not going to get
  


 3        that chance to expand either.
  


 4                 So, that's how I feel.  I feel that needs
  


 5        an industrial solution.  We need to go forward.
  


 6        However, we need to continue to make sure that
  


 7        rate payers are covered and, that we need to do
  


 8        this in the most environmentally sound way which,
  


 9        from what I understand, was the cable -- the
  


10        transmission being a cable, and that's where I
  


11        thought the agreement was.  Thank you.
  


12                 MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Next speaker is
  


13        Marie Schopac.
  


14                 MS. SCHOPAC:  I'm going to pass.
  


15                 MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Next speaker is
  


16        Dick Gruchek.
  


17                 MR. GRUCHEK:  Thank you.  My name is Dick
  


18        Gruchek.  I'm a fishing vessel owner out of Point
  


19        Judith, out of Narragansett, Galilee.  If anybody
  


20        doesn't understand it, we have an extensive
  


21        fishing industry locally.  We've been under siege
  


22        from a lot of different directions.  The
  


23        environmental non-Government organizations are
  


24        claiming that we tear up the bottom with our nets,
  


25        so that we should be put out of business.  They
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 1        claim that we should have marine protected areas
  


 2        so that the fish will thrive, and fishermen are
  


 3        kept out, the fish will thrive and stop wrecking
  


 4        the bottom.
  


 5                 Now, to be quite blunt about it, this is
  


 6        got to be the worst, most ridiculous idea I have
  


 7        ever heard in my life.  You're putting a very
  


 8        ancient form of energy production with, I've
  


 9        heard, 8,000 moving parts, there are
  


10        transmissions, there is hydraulic oil in the worst
  


11        possible environment known to man, the North
  


12        Atlantic Ocean.  It's either flat calm and fog or
  


13        it's blowing gale.  And usually those things
  


14        happen within the same day.  You start out in the
  


15        morning with flat calm so that the windmills will
  


16        be clamped in.  You go to the southwest breeze
  


17        coming in the afternoons and you're going 25 to
  


18        35, sometimes 40 knots, every day.  As the land
  


19        heats, it sucks in cool ocean air and creates a
  


20        wind flow.
  


21                 Now, I understand that windmills operate
  


22        within a certain range.  I understand that.  One
  


23        of the problems we have is that 3 miles off of
  


24        Block Island are some of the richest fishing
  


25        grounds known to man.  The windmills will tear up
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 1        the bottom.  The transmission lines will tear up
  


 2        the bottom.  There's been no research done in
  


 3        terms of the magnetic fields that these
  


 4        transmission lines, for instance, carrying
  


 5        megawatts of power are going to create, the
  


 6        situation will create for the fish, for the
  


 7        spawning, and that's all the time.  The initial
  


 8        shock of driving sheet pile 250 feet into the
  


 9        substraight or concrete pilings, whichever one
  


10        they're going to use, also is going to have a
  


11        devastating effect on our lobster, our Yellow
  


12        Tail, our Cod.  We have cod spawning grounds right
  


13        in the area that these are proposed to be put.
  


14                 So, I can go on for 3 hours.  I've been
  


15        to a lot of meetings from Bureau of Ocean Energy
  


16        Management, the Department of the Interior, the
  


17        Minerals Management fame by the way folks, the
  


18        overseers of the Deepwater Horizon spill, these
  


19        are the people from the Federal Government that
  


20        are pushing this.  I've been to many, many, many
  


21        meetings in New Bedford and Glocester, up and down
  


22        the coast, speaking up for fishing.  Another
  


23        problem we have with this is that the transmission
  


24        lines are going to be buried they said.  Well,
  


25        they're going to bury them 6 feet.  Anybody that's
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 1        had any dealing with the ocean bottom out here
  


 2        knows that after a storm, the whole thing changes.
  


 3        It's dynamic.  It's a dynamic environment where
  


 4        the wrecks will actually -- World War II wrecks
  


 5        will actually emerge after a storm, the sand
  


 6        shifts so much.  So, if you put transmission lines
  


 7        6 feet under the mud or under the sand, they're
  


 8        going to be exposed in no time flat.  They're not
  


 9        going to go over rocks; they're not going to drill
  


10        6 feet into rock to put these transmission lines
  


11        down.  They're going to be exposed.  They're going
  


12        to be flopping around out there, as a matter of
  


13        fact.  We're not going to be able to fish around
  


14        them.  There's going to be a security zone.
  


15        There's going to be an area where we can't go near
  


16        it.
  


17                 The other factor is it's a hazard to
  


18        navigation.  The Coast Guard and the FAA, somebody
  


19        mentioned the FAA, found that the windmills
  


20        interfere with radar reception.  So, coming in in
  


21        a foggy evening when your radar goes out, you're
  


22        in really tough luck.  So, on a lot of different
  


23        levels, I can't speak for all fishermen.  I know a
  


24        lot of my fellow fishermen agree with me that this
  


25        is a very bad idea, extremely bad idea.  I would







Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500
www.alliedcourtreporters.com


Deepwater Wind Project - April 24, 2013


26


  
 1        say if you want to build windmills, subsidize
  


 2        homeowners and apartment building owners to
  


 3        install smaller units along with photovoltaic
  


 4        shingles like somebody was just talking about.
  


 5        There are a lot of alternatives than creating
  


 6        havoc on some of the best fishing grounds in the
  


 7        world.  It's not only five.  They're planning --
  


 8        BOEM, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, is
  


 9        talking about 200 windmills right off of
  


10        Nantucket.  Now, Nantucket Shoals is an area
  


11        that -- a large part of it has been closed to
  


12        fishing for 18 years.  We can't even steam through
  


13        there, no less fish in those areas.  That's
  


14        exactly where they're going to put these
  


15        windmills, 600-foot-tall towers.
  


16                 I lived in a 30-story tower in New York
  


17        City, and it was high.  Twice that is going to be
  


18        very, very high; very, very big, very, very wide
  


19        base, and a lot of disturbance.  There's people
  


20        talking about how great they are in Europe.  If
  


21        you read into it a little bit, you find that a lot
  


22        of foundations are crumbling, a lot of the
  


23        Hawaiian wind farms were a debacle.  They're
  


24        falling apart.  These things are maintenance
  


25        intensive.  In fact, Portsmouth, Rhode Island, has
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 1        a windmill that the city bought, and it's been out
  


 2        of commission for 8 or 9 months and they can't fix
  


 3        it because it cost $250,000 or something like that
  


 4        to put a new transmission in.  So, the maintenance
  


 5        is incredible on these.  When you put them in, the
  


 6        most hostile environment that you can imagine,
  


 7        you're really asking for trouble.  You're asking
  


 8        for incredible maintenance costs.
  


 9                 Jobs, yeah, there'll be an influx of
  


10        jobs.  There will be a lot of people from Oklahoma
  


11        and Texas coming to build this and then they're
  


12        going to disappear, and then you're going to have
  


13        a skeleton crew flying around in helicopters
  


14        replacing parts.  That's what it's going to be and
  


15        you're going to have 5 people doing that probably.
  


16        I put $1400 worth of zincs in my boat every year
  


17        to keep it from corroding, okay, and that's an
  


18        80-foot vessel.  Can you imagine the corrosion of
  


19        straight current corrosion that's going to be
  


20        happening on these?  The maintenance is going to
  


21        be overwhelming.
  


22                 I don't want to go on and on and on.
  


23        Thank you for listening, and I just want to
  


24        sincerely object to any such project as this.  We
  


25        are all for renewable energy.  Our ocean has
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 1        warmed incredibly.  We have fish that never got
  


 2        above Cape Hatteras, going up to Long Island and
  


 3        off Nantucket now because the ocean is warming.
  


 4        We could stop using so much oil.  That's a
  


 5        possibility, and there are a lot of other projects
  


 6        that could be funded to supply some clean energy
  


 7        besides wind.  So, thank you very much.
  


 8                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Jim O'Neil.
  


 9                 MR. O'NEIL:  Good evening, gentlemen.
  


10        I'd like to begin by thanking you for providing
  


11        those of us who are interested in this issue the
  


12        opportunity to address you.  Not to be
  


13        cantankerous, like I can be on occasion, but as I
  


14        understand it, the purpose of this evening's
  


15        public comment opportunity is to address
  


16        Deepwater's application for water quality
  


17        certification in accord with the rules and regs.
  


18        for dredging.  So, it seems to me that while I
  


19        certainly appreciate the opportunity for us to
  


20        talk from a philosophical event, and a factual
  


21        event, like the gentleman before me just did, but
  


22        it seems to me that what is before us is whether
  


23        or not they should be permitted to dredge.  I
  


24        think that's why we're here.  If I'm wrong, I
  


25        stand to be corrected.
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 1                 Now, my position, obviously, is I'm in
  


 2        opposition to the Deepwater project in its
  


 3        entirety, and my position this evening is that it
  


 4        is premature for DEM to entertain an application
  


 5        for a dredging permit when we don't know exactly
  


 6        where that dredging will take place.  There has
  


 7        been no decision made by the Town of Narragansett
  


 8        with respect to the proposal to bring a cable
  


 9        ashore at the south end of the town beach.  I know
  


10        about every grain of sand in that area.  I used to
  


11        be a lifeguard about six years there, and when we
  


12        talk about shifting sand, believe me they do
  


13        shift, but we don't know if it's going to be
  


14        there.  We don't know whether we have overhead
  


15        telephone poles that are going to be extended 10
  


16        feet in the air here in Narragansett.  We don't
  


17        know if we're going to have a substation as
  


18        proposed next to the senior center down by Sprague
  


19        Park.  We don't know any of that at this juncture.
  


20                 So, obviously I have the greatest respect
  


21        for DEM.  I think we worked together before, and I
  


22        think you all understand that in my other life, I
  


23        served as the environmental advocate for the
  


24        state, but what I don't know is this issue is
  


25        right at this juncture.  So, I'll put that before
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 1        you as food for thought for openers.  Then if I
  


 2        could move on to the thought that I don't know the
  


 3        weight and dimensions of the cable itself, let
  


 4        alone the location, I'm sure you probably do know
  


 5        the weight and dimension of it, but I did hear
  


 6        some conversation when certain parties inquired as
  


 7        to the disposition of this cable after the 15 or
  


 8        20 years of shelf life of the project and
  


 9        turbines, what would become of the cable, and it
  


10        was indicated that the cable would remain in the
  


11        ocean floor.  When the question why was posed
  


12        would it remain on the ocean floor, I understand
  


13        that the response was, and I can't tell you who
  


14        responded in this fashion, I apologize for that,
  


15        it was the industry standard to leave steel cable
  


16        on the  ocean floor.  I'm sure there's no one at
  


17        this table that agrees with that.  I don't know
  


18        what the industry standard would be because this
  


19        is somewhat of a situation of first impression.
  


20        We haven't had a project of this nature to
  


21        entertain before.  But what will happen is, in
  


22        fact, the cable has to be removed.  The cost of
  


23        that will be on the backs of the rate payers.  And
  


24        there's been much talk of the cost.
  


25                 I'd like to refer you to the PUC
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 1        hearings, and this was on the record at the PUC
  


 2        hearings.  This project will result in
  


 3        above-market cost to the rate payers over the
  


 4        20-year period of the project totaling $490
  


 5        million.  That is going to cause the 38 Studios to
  


 6        look like a day at the beach.  $490 million cost
  


 7        to the rate payers over a 20-year period.
  


 8                 The gentleman who testified,
  


 9        Mr. Donaldson, the engineer, he certainly had
  


10        wonderful facts to share with us all.  We
  


11        appreciate those facts.  Somewhat parallel the
  


12        fact that I received when I first got into this
  


13        issue in February of 2010 from a gentleman named
  


14        Roy Bonner, B-O-N-N-E-R.  He was on Governor
  


15        Carcieri's stakeholders' committee.  He's a
  


16        professor of engineering at Brown University.
  


17        He's now retired in Little Compton where he heads
  


18        up a coalition opposing the construction of wind
  


19        turbines in that area.  He's an incredible source
  


20        of information, but his thoughts definitely
  


21        parallel those shared with you tonight by
  


22        Mr. Donaldson; and Dick Gruchek, there's no one
  


23        that can say it better.  I mean, you think to
  


24        yourselves, if we've ever given this $60 million
  


25        tax credit scam, scheme, whatever you want to
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 1        characterize it as, to the fishing industry, give
  


 2        them an opportunity to carry on with the great
  


 3        tradition the fishing fleet enjoys here in
  


 4        Narragansett, Point Judith, and I know, I packed
  


 5        fish at the co-op when I was 16 and 17 years old.
  


 6        That was a long time ago.  We have a reunion every
  


 7        year, as a matter of fact.  Imagine if they ever
  


 8        got this type of economic assistance.
  


 9                 Now, the idea of climate change, there's
  


10        not one of us in here, I don't think, that is --
  


11        that doesn't consider themselves an
  


12        environmentalist.  And I think it's wonderful that
  


13        that young man from Unity College and his mom
  


14        could speak towards the issue.  And I certainly
  


15        commend them and I appreciate their thoughts.  But
  


16        we need to know all.
  


17                 Sources of energies purchased by National
  


18        Grid don't consist of fossil fuels.  We all know
  


19        the majority of energy purchased by the Grid is in
  


20        the form of natural gas.  We don't use oil.
  


21        Everybody talks about oil dependency.  That's not
  


22        the case.  That's not where we get our energy
  


23        from.  The majority -- when we say the majority,
  


24        we're talking about 78 percent.  The other idea is
  


25        there was talk about flicker effect.  Well, I can
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 1        say when you're 3 miles offshore, I really have to
  


 2        address the issue of flicker effect because there
  


 3        is an organization in Charlestown, citizens'
  


 4        group, I mean two folks have come here today,
  


 5        hopefully they address you.  They had a guest
  


 6        speaker three weeks ago from Falmouth, Mass, where
  


 7        they're tearing down the turbines because of the
  


 8        flicker effect.  The adverse effect the turbines
  


 9        have had on people's health, not to mention the
  


10        value of their property; but it's resulting in the
  


11        turbines being torn down.
  


12                 Now, lastly, if I may, there was some
  


13        representation in Europe, these are the concept of
  


14        the day.  Well, just a week or two ago, the United
  


15        Kingdom, which we know is not in Europe, it's the
  


16        United Kingdom, but the United Kingdom has banned
  


17        any and all wind turbines being constructed on
  


18        land.  So, Europe, United Kingdom, are now
  


19        catching up with this concept that this is not
  


20        feasible, not to mention that those who are
  


21        dependent on turbines and wind in Europe, they
  


22        have socialized programs.  This is not a
  


23        socialized program that we participate in in the
  


24        United States of America last time I checked.
  


25                 Now, the other thing, I leave you with







Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500
www.alliedcourtreporters.com


Deepwater Wind Project - April 24, 2013


34


  
 1        this.  We're talking about towers that are 650
  


 2        feet tall.  Can you imagine the stress that the
  


 3        ocean floor is going to sustain when the pilings
  


 4        are constructed to support those turbines?  I
  


 5        don't think we can ever be in a position to even
  


 6        measure the negative impact at this juncture.  And
  


 7        lastly, I'd like to close by providing you a
  


 8        document I think you probably already have, and I
  


 9        know Mike Elliott from the Army Corps. of
  


10        Engineers, I'd like to thank him.  He's been so
  


11        cooperative in passing on information as you folks
  


12        are as well.  But he received a communication from
  


13        the United States Department of the Interior.  I
  


14        don't know, Mr. Gagnon, whether you or your
  


15        colleagues have received that.  I'd like to pass
  


16        it on to you, but I'll take the liberty of doing
  


17        so at this time.  It talks about -- I'm going to
  


18        cut my comments short, but it talks about the
  


19        applicant seeking a right-of-way permit from the
  


20        Bureau of Ocean Energy Management for activities
  


21        in placing of a submarine cable in several other
  


22        continental shelves waters.  And it talks about
  


23        National Park Service and how they mandate to
  


24        conserve the scenery and natural and historic
  


25        objects and wildlife here and provide for the
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 1        enjoyment, let's say, a matter of needs, to leave
  


 2        them unimpaired for enjoyment of future
  


 3        generations.
  


 4                 Importantly, the National Park Service
  


 5        urge the Army Corps., the BOEM, to fully analyze a
  


 6        no-action alternative for this proposal, pursue
  


 7        identification of a full range of reasonable
  


 8        alternatives, not rely too heavily on the content
  


 9        of the E.R. assessing impacts on this project.
  


10        That may have been done.  I don't know.  I mean, I
  


11        may not be up to speed on it because it's
  


12        something dated February 8, 2018 (sic), but I
  


13        think it's worthy for you to have in your docket.
  


14        May I approach?  Thank you once again the
  


15        opportunity and I'd like to thank my colleagues
  


16        because I think most of my thoughts came from
  


17        their body of knowledge.  So, I don't take
  


18        ownership for all my thoughts.  Thank you.
  


19                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Maggie
  


20        Delia.
  


21                 MS. DELIA:  Thank you for the opportunity
  


22        to speak.  Thank you for being here.  My name is
  


23        Maggie Delia.  I've been -- I'm a homeowner in New
  


24        Jersey and Rhode Island.  I have been working to
  


25        attempt to, how I like to put it is to preserve
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 1        Block Island and preserve what we know, what it
  


 2        feels like to be in our natural surroundings for
  


 3        the past five years.  My husband and I were
  


 4        interveners with the PUC in Docket 4111 when the
  


 5        first piece of legislation was introduced to have
  


 6        Deepwater have this contract.  It was turned down
  


 7        because it was not commercially reasonable.  It
  


 8        was not appealed.  Deepwater merely had to go back
  


 9        to the former governor and the legislature to get
  


10        a new bill written.  I have to say I was naive
  


11        about how things happened around our Government
  


12        until I got involved with this.  I didn't know
  


13        that a former chief of staff of the Governor could
  


14        become eventually the CEO of the preferred
  


15        developer Deepwater Wind until I got involved with
  


16        this.  I didn't know that we could be championing
  


17        Deepwater Wind who has directors who were formally
  


18        with Enron, GE, former governors, I think, you
  


19        know, and so I thought a lot about what I could
  


20        say here, and I think what I really want to say is
  


21        I talked to a lot of people over five years.  I
  


22        talked to our current governor.  I've talked to
  


23        people who work with Deepwater Wind.  I've talked
  


24        to town council members in Block Island and here
  


25        in Narragansett, talked to National Park Service,
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 1        I've talked to Rhode Island Historic Preservation,
  


 2        I've talked to the PUC, I've talked to lots and
  


 3        lots of people.  And one of the things that I have
  


 4        noticed is how much resignation we live in.  And
  


 5        how much each of us don't know that we could be
  


 6        the person that has the future be different.
  


 7                 I've had also the opportunity to meet
  


 8        some of those great people along this five-year
  


 9        journey.  Do you know, in my good moments, I
  


10        really picture that we can have a future where
  


11        going to the beach really is still the shared
  


12        experience and when you say it, people know what
  


13        you mean.  They don't picture industrial wind
  


14        turbines, not just here in Block Island, not just
  


15        in Deepwater projects, but all along our coast.
  


16        The future is really in our hands, and I think
  


17        it's in our hands in a way that's it's never been
  


18        in our hands before.  And, you know, when I listen
  


19        to some of the people talk about the studies that
  


20        shows there's no impact on health, the study that
  


21        shows there's no impact on real estate, there are
  


22        a lot of US studies and there's a lot of pressure
  


23        from the US Government to have this thing happen.
  


24                 I'm old enough to remember when Monsanto
  


25        and Dupont were pesticide companies and chemical
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 1        companies before they took over our food, and no
  


 2        one asked us if we wanted that to happen.  It just
  


 3        happened.  I thank God that there are people who
  


 4        care enough about what is happening in their
  


 5        backyard, that they're getting involved in this
  


 6        issue because we didn't get this chance with our
  


 7        food, but we're going to get the chance with wind
  


 8        turbines, and we're getting a chance with natural
  


 9        gas, which I also think is horrendous.  And I
  


10        don't know what the answer is, and I am an
  


11        environmentalist.  I have worked as an
  


12        environmentalist since my father brought my
  


13        sisters and I on walks since we were little kids,
  


14        and help preserve 10,000 acres in the pine
  


15        already -- I won't get into that -- in New Jersey.
  


16        But there's something really wrong, and we can be
  


17        resigned, and I ask you to really do what you can
  


18        do to have something happen because you say so,
  


19        because right now it is lobbyists and corporations
  


20        and hedge funds and all of those people who are
  


21        determining and designing our future.  And we are
  


22        just visitors here.
  


23                 I met a farmer once.  There was an event
  


24        on his farm and people were thanking him for
  


25        sharing, you know, having that event on his farm,
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 1        and he said, you know, this is not my farm.  I am
  


 2        merely the holder of it for maybe not even that
  


 3        many more years.  So, this ocean does not belong
  


 4        to Rhode Island or to the Governor or to Deepwater
  


 5        Wind or to even any of us; but we do have the
  


 6        opportunity to preserve it.  We have the
  


 7        opportunity to make it important to feel connected
  


 8        to the places that we live in.  We have plenty of
  


 9        strip malls and parking lots and highways.  Our
  


10        oceans are really, really important, and they're
  


11        not just important for us, they're important for
  


12        the fishermen because I can only imagine what it's
  


13        like to wake up every day knowing the forces that
  


14        you're dealing with to just have the job that you
  


15        have all your life, and to care about future
  


16        generations having that job.  So, I ask you to
  


17        know that I know that you and you and you and I
  


18        and you and all of us are someone who can have
  


19        something happen different about this and does
  


20        not -- we do not need five, 660-foot wind turbines
  


21        as a demonstration project to investors that's
  


22        going to cost people half a billion dollars in
  


23        over market rates.  If we came in and said,
  


24        listen, everyone in Rhode Island has to buy a car
  


25        and you have to buy it for $30,000 more than the
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 1        people in New York, no one -- it won't even
  


 2        happen.  And we're thinking about this.
  


 3                 So, thank you for the opportunity.  Thank
  


 4        you for listening, and thank you for being someone
  


 5        whose life is about making a difference about the
  


 6        world that we live in.
  


 7                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Maureen
  


 8        Oreglado.
  


 9                 MS. OREGLADO:  Good evening.  Thank you
  


10        for having this opportunity tonight for people to
  


11        come and share different or same views or points
  


12        of view.  I don't live in Narragansett, but I have
  


13        two grandchildren that I absolutely adore who do
  


14        live here; but I want to give you just a little
  


15        perspective of why I am here.  I don't have a
  


16        scientific background, but my whole life has been
  


17        in education.  I've been a teacher of all grade
  


18        levels and school administrator for a thousand
  


19        years.
  


20                 I live in Charlestown with my husband,
  


21        and we have been daily for the last two and a half
  


22        years fighting the installation of two industrial
  


23        size turbines in a residential neighborhood.  You
  


24        might be sitting here saying tonight why are you
  


25        here.  We're fighting ocean turbines, but I'm here
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 1        because I think we've learned some valuable
  


 2        lessons along the way that might overlap and might
  


 3        help you in your journey.
  


 4                 We started out, and I heard one gentleman
  


 5        who got up and left right after he spoke, but he
  


 6        urged you to fast track this project, and I'll
  


 7        tell you the hairs on the back of my neck stood up
  


 8        because that's exactly what happened in
  


 9        Charlestown.  It was a wink and a nod and let's
  


10        help our developer friend.  Things do not go
  


11        through the same process that you or I would have
  


12        to go through if we wanted to put a two-foot
  


13        extension on our deck.  Fast track, fast track,
  


14        fast track, hurry up, let's get this going with
  


15        stimulus money.  I can only get to the roof of
  


16        this town hall and tell you to put on the brakes.
  


17        Go slowly.  There's no big rush.  Make sure you
  


18        know what you're getting into.  We found tons of
  


19        research, and I'm going to tell you when you read
  


20        it, things -- do not believe everything that you
  


21        read.  Be critical readers.  Follow the money.
  


22        Lots of the research projects are funded by
  


23        lobbyist who are paid handsome amounts of money to
  


24        produce reports for the pro wind industry.  We
  


25        have people in our neighborhood said, Maureen,
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 1        this is a done deal.  There's nothing we can do.
  


 2        Please, you can do something.  We are a very
  


 3        small, small group that has fought this project
  


 4        developer for 2 1/2 years through the courts, got
  


 5        injunctions, because there wasn't enough evidence
  


 6        to really make us feel comfortable that we were
  


 7        going to be safe.
  


 8                 I didn't really come prepared to speak
  


 9        tonight, but I wrote crazy notes while people were
  


10        speaking, and I'm just going to ask to indulge you
  


11        and I'll try to go as quickly as I can.  We did
  


12        have a gentleman from Falmouth, Massachusetts,
  


13        come to our library a few weeks ago.  He had an
  


14        overflow crowd, standing room only, in the
  


15        library.  He told us things that we didn't know.
  


16        He said because they were town-operated turbines,
  


17        they were able, after two or three years, to get
  


18        them to shut them down during evening times; but
  


19        there's one privately owned turbine that runs
  


20        24-7, because that's where they make their money.
  


21        The two town turbines, who are now only operating
  


22        12 hours a day, they're not even breaking even to
  


23        get some money back to the town for the electric
  


24        rates.
  


25                 People have had a myriad of health
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 1        issues, and you can poo-poo them.  They brought in
  


 2        independent doctors who initially said these
  


 3        people from Falmouth, they must be crazy.  To a
  


 4        person, they have decided that they are not crazy.
  


 5        They are valid.  There have been attempted
  


 6        suicides.  When we visited Neil Anderson, he's a
  


 7        builder, he's been a builder for 35 years, you can
  


 8        imagine a builder, built a beautiful home for
  


 9        himself and his family.  His wife lives upstairs
  


10        in this gorgeous home in a small guest bedroom
  


11        from 7 in the morning until 7 at night with a
  


12        machine that produces white noise to try to keep
  


13        her from literally going crazy, listening to the
  


14        effects of the turbines.
  


15                 They have neighbors who just walked out
  


16        and abandoned their homes, beautiful homes.  One
  


17        woman left her home, gave the key to a realtor for
  


18        probably three-quarters of a million dollar home,
  


19        left a very lucrative florist business there, all
  


20        her resources were tied up in this little house.
  


21        She bought a tiny little fixer-upper, 3 or 4 towns
  


22        away because that's all she could afford.
  


23                 Think about the depreciation on your home
  


24        values.  I know this young man from the university
  


25        said that's not true.  I would offer you a
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 1        different perspective.  My husband and I have been
  


 2        in constant contact with the very nationally
  


 3        recognized firm, high credential, McCann,
  


 4        M-C-C-A-N-N, out of Chicago.  They've done
  


 5        national studies.  People within a couple mile
  


 6        radius of a wind turbine, your home values will
  


 7        start to depreciate by 25 percent.  I don't know
  


 8        about you, but I don't want to lose 25 percent off
  


 9        the value of my home.  People in Falmouth have
  


10        been forced to leave.  Who's going to buy their
  


11        home?  If it wasn't good enough for them to stay,
  


12        and they're having serious health issues, the
  


13        homes are sitting with for sale signs on them.
  


14        Nobody wants to buy them.  Would you buy that
  


15        house?  I wouldn't buy that house.
  


16                 One of the things that surprised us the
  


17        night, we had Neil Anderson at the library, we had
  


18        a happy accident.  There was a guest in the
  


19        audience, and he's a professor of ocean
  


20        Engineering from the University of Rhode Island.
  


21        His name is Dr. Peter Stapanian (phonetic).  He
  


22        lives in Westerly.  His area of expertise is
  


23        acoustics, and he said to people somebody can come
  


24        in with a machine to measure decibel levels.  Is
  


25        it within the acceptable range or not.  They can
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 1        measure the flicker.  But the thing that is the
  


 2        most deadly, is very, very expensive to measure
  


 3        and in most cases doesn't get measured and that's
  


 4        the infrasonic pressure from the turbines.  It's
  


 5        unseen.  It's unheard.  It's undetected.  It
  


 6        invades homes and it invades bodies.  That is what
  


 7        makes people on the Cape ill.  That's what's
  


 8        making the people on the Cape sick, and I see
  


 9        people in the audience laughing.  You can laugh.
  


10        You can go and do your own research.  You can go
  


11        down and talk to them.  I didn't laugh at your
  


12        presentation.  I don't think these people's lives
  


13        are anything to laugh about.
  


14                 He talked about these impulses.  He made
  


15        an analogy of having your car radio going and you
  


16        hear that thumping noise and over and over and
  


17        over again from the car stereo.  He said you can't
  


18        shut the windows, you can't shut your doors.  It
  


19        invades.  His neighbor, the night before he came
  


20        to speak to us, found 17 dead bats in his backyard
  


21        because the infrasonic pressure makes the bats'
  


22        lungs implode.  That has been scientifically
  


23        documented.  People talked about having good winds
  


24        here on the coast of Rhode Island.  The best wind
  


25        for wind energy are on the plains in the middle of
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 1        the United States.  They're not on the West Coast.
  


 2        They're not on the East Coast.  We talked to a
  


 3        gentleman from Deepwater.  He said he can only run
  


 4        the wind turbines at 47 percent capacity because
  


 5        of the wind.  When the winds are high, they have
  


 6        to shut them down.  We had someone in our town
  


 7        say, you know what, damn it, if we had those wind
  


 8        turbines up, I wouldn't have lost all the meat in
  


 9        my freezer during Hurricane Sandy.  I want to
  


10        scream.  This lady thinks she has a plug from her
  


11        refrigerator onto the turbine?  No.  And when the
  


12        winds are high, they shut the turbines down.  So,
  


13        it doesn't matter that we have high winds during
  


14        the hurricane because they shut the thing down.
  


15                 The Deepwater project, that's going to be
  


16        a demo project.  If that's successful, they told
  


17        us, spoke to the gentleman, they're going to put
  


18        hundreds out there off the shore.  Maybe one won't
  


19        affect somebody's health, maybe two won't affect
  


20        somebody's health.  I don't know what the health
  


21        implications are, but I will tell you to go
  


22        slowly.  Do your homework.
  


23                 We saw something on line the other day,
  


24        two scientists from France back in the 1960's who
  


25        work in a laboratory and they were working on
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 1        energy.  And as they were working, one man said to
  


 2        his colleague, you know, I'm getting a headache,
  


 3        and I'm getting light-headed.  I'm going to step
  


 4        out to get some fresh air.  The colleague said I'm
  


 5        having the same thing.  They went outside.  The
  


 6        symptoms abated.  They came back in, they started
  


 7        up again.  They did that back and forth a couple
  


 8        of times.  Then they noticed the coffee that was
  


 9        sitting in the coffee cup was undulating like the
  


10        waves out at Narragansett Beach.  That's when they
  


11        came up with the infrasonic studies and what they
  


12        would be doing and how that energy is emitted
  


13        without you even knowing it, hearing it, smelling
  


14        it, seeing it, or feeling it.
  


15                 I can't implore you enough.  Do not sell
  


16        your souls to the devil to get 15 percent off your
  


17        electric bill.  Is it worth your health?  I don't
  


18        know what the implications are, but I'll tell you
  


19        something, I'll be dammed I'm not going to use my
  


20        four-and-a-half-year and 18-month-old
  


21        grandchildren as a guinea pig to see what the
  


22        implications are going to be for them five or ten
  


23        years down the road.  There's not enough science
  


24        out there yet.  What's the big rush?  If it causes
  


25        harm to one person, it shouldn't happen in the







Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500
www.alliedcourtreporters.com


Deepwater Wind Project - April 24, 2013


48


  
 1        town.  It shouldn't happen anywhere.  But the
  


 2        government is pushing this, pushing this, pushing
  


 3        this.  If it's so wonderful, take the time, do the
  


 4        homework, get all your studies done.  The young
  


 5        man who talked about the Massachusetts Department
  


 6        of Health report, there's insufficient evidence in
  


 7        there and they do acknowledge that.  Maybe people
  


 8        don't know it.  That report was funded by the wind
  


 9        industry.  They believe the research is not
  


10        substantiated by peer reviews.  There's a
  


11        McPherson study that totally rebuts the whole
  


12        Massachusetts report.  There's several European
  


13        nations now that have moratoriums on turbines,
  


14        mostly because of the health implications.  And
  


15        they decided that there is not a good economic
  


16        return on their investment.
  


17                 I guess I would ask all of you who are in
  


18        the decision making for this whether it happens or
  


19        doesn't happen for Narragansett or Rhode Island,
  


20        I'm not eager to have Rhode Island be a leader in
  


21        this because I think that there's too many
  


22        unanswered questions yet, and I would ask you to
  


23        stop and think what is your legacy going to be to
  


24        this town?  Are you going to allow these monsters
  


25        to go on the water only to find out later with the
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 1        additional research this was a bad deal for Rhode
  


 2        Island, or are you going to take your time and
  


 3        protect the legacy for your children, your
  


 4        grandchildren and other generations to come.
  


 5                 Thank you for the time.
  


 6                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Abel
  


 7        Collins.  Okay.  Next speaker Mike Delia.
  


 8                 MR. DELIA:  Good evening.  Thank you for
  


 9        the opportunity to be with you and speak tonight.
  


10        I appreciate it.  I'm a property owner with my
  


11        wife and family on Block Island, and we've been
  


12        active in this conversation with Deepwater since
  


13        they first arrived on Block Island about four or
  


14        five years ago.  So, essentially, I'm opposed to
  


15        the project for quite a few reasons, many of them
  


16        I think from having done the reading I've done,
  


17        fall under the jurisdictions of DEM.  Some of my
  


18        comments, and poignantly so, are outside the
  


19        jurisdiction and the impact of that they're
  


20        outside the jurisdiction, leads me to another
  


21        request.  I was expecting -- I know the Army
  


22        Corps. of Engineers is here tonight, but at this
  


23        point, the Army Corps. is not agreeing to have a
  


24        public hearing for items that are outside your
  


25        jurisdiction, outside the CRMC'S jurisdiction and
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 1        certainly outside their jurisdiction.  So,
  


 2        there's -- Burton Russell was a philosopher who
  


 3        created an analogy associated with the
  


 4        burden of proof.  It's called Russell's teapot,
  


 5        with the scenario of which he claimed that there
  


 6        was a teapot, a cosmic tea pot spinning around the
  


 7        sun between here and Mars and you couldn't see it.
  


 8        You couldn't prove it wasn't true.  Now, it was
  


 9        absurd to consider that that was true, but the
  


10        burden of proof was on him to prove it was true
  


11        because it was so absurd.
  


12                 In case of a negative, it's impossible to
  


13        prove it's true and in the case of Deepwater Wind,
  


14        the burden of proof is moved from Deepwater Wind
  


15        to me, who's already here, to my family who are
  


16        here, the landowners, the residents of Block
  


17        Island and Rhode Island.  The -- so proving a
  


18        negative is impossible.  However, my conversation
  


19        specifically particularly surrounds the notion of
  


20        property value, real estate value, the impact of a
  


21        project of this nature on a piece of real estate
  


22        in a, I don't know how you call it, high-end,
  


23        beautiful pristine environment.  Thirty years ago
  


24        when we came to Block Island, it was a blue color
  


25        town, where we could afford to buy a piece of land
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 1        there.  So, we were blessed and lucky.  We have 14
  


 2        acres of land on the ocean.  Our right-of-way to
  


 3        our property, we have two ways in, it goes through
  


 4        the southeast light.  Our right-of-way is under
  


 5        the light.  The only thing between the lighthouse
  


 6        and the ocean is us, and the only thing between us
  


 7        and the Azores is the ocean.  Our -- a couple of
  


 8        references to the people who spoke earlier, and I
  


 9        appreciate the Berkeley Lab report on real estate
  


10        for siting.  It's been Ben Hoen, the lead author
  


11        for the Department of Energy is probably -- is
  


12        considered one of the top, if not the top expert
  


13        on the impact of real estate values, as a
  


14        theoretical practice, not as a guy who's spending
  


15        money to buy a piece of land.
  


16                 So, I read his report, and he made a
  


17        couple of points.  One was that ocean front
  


18        property increases value of a piece of property.
  


19        It's measurable.  The earlier speaker made a
  


20        comment that there's no evidence that real estate
  


21        values go down after the installation of a wind
  


22        farm.  In fact, according to Hoen's report, there
  


23        is no evidence that they go down afterwards
  


24        because the study that they did was entirely done
  


25        on interior farms and homes.  Interior of the US
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 1        is not anywhere near the coastlines.
  


 2                 So, the data that they have came from the
  


 3        sale of the homes that were sold in areas near
  


 4        wind farms.  They may have measured hundreds of
  


 5        yards, half a mile, a mile, two miles, three
  


 6        miles, different impacts of those things.  So, it
  


 7        was curious for me to impact because I'm a buyer
  


 8        and, you know, if you put a pair of bananas -- go
  


 9        to the store and there's a rotten pair and a
  


10        beautiful pair, more than likely you're going to
  


11        buy the beautiful pair and ignore the other one.
  


12        That's how I feel about Bayonne, New Jersey, and,
  


13        you know, the variety of industrial structures
  


14        that we deal with in our day-to-day lives.  We
  


15        don't even see them anymore.  So, I called and
  


16        conducted an interview with him and asked him some
  


17        questions about the nature of his data and the
  


18        nature of the work that he did.  And so he assured
  


19        me that they have not done any research around
  


20        homes that had ocean front value.  He considered
  


21        it pristine, but he had no data on that.  He
  


22        admitted that the real impact, the normal impact
  


23        about the impact on real estate values is after
  


24        the fact.  Since there aren't any wind turbines in
  


25        ocean front property, then he's not a buyer.  He
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 1        cannot make an estimate in that.  The problem with
  


 2        that is the burden of proof in this regard is upon
  


 3        me.
  


 4                 The CRMC, who has an obligation under
  


 5        their regulations to conduct a study on
  


 6        socio-economic impacts, had chosen to decline our
  


 7        request to intervene in their process to entertain
  


 8        any socio-economic impacts.  The Army Corps. of
  


 9        Engineers, at this point, has not chosen to have a
  


10        hearing.  And they are actually, in their
  


11        jurisdiction, able to conduct such a hearing that
  


12        will include socio-economic impacts.
  


13                 So, my assertion, I'm asserting this
  


14        publicly for the record that permitting this
  


15        project amounts to a taking.  The Rhode Island
  


16        Supreme Court, about four years ago, I have
  


17        citations for anything that I say, I have
  


18        citations that I would be glad to present to the
  


19        RIDEM.  What is it?  It's not a commission?
  


20        Department?  Yes.  If you -- so -- if you'd like
  


21        to receive one, I can do that.  But under the US
  


22        Constitution and Rhode Island Constitution, taking
  


23        property requires a process, due process, for
  


24        property owners.  The Rhode Island Constitution --
  


25        before I get to the Rhode Island Constitution, the
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 1        Rhode Island Supreme Court four years ago granted
  


 2        relief to a plaintiff who sued someone for
  


 3        securing a default in an unobstructed view.  So,
  


 4        the Rhode Island Supreme Court gave credibility
  


 5        and financial relief to someone who claimed that
  


 6        his unobstructed pristine view was property.  So,
  


 7        although in Rhode Island certain agencies and
  


 8        Rhode Island Department of environmental
  


 9        Management is one of them that has authority to
  


10        proceed with condemnation to take condemnation
  


11        proceedings on property, my assertion is that
  


12        Deepwater's project has an impact on not only my
  


13        property, but Southeast Lighthouse's property,
  


14        that Deepwater has not proposed mitigation to
  


15        anyone except perhaps the Southeast Light, and
  


16        mitigation, I'm assuming, I'm guessing only
  


17        through conversations I've had with people in
  


18        different associations, historic, and the
  


19        likelihood that the mitigation -- Deepwater is
  


20        going to propose to find something like paying for
  


21        a museum, paying for a museum at the Southeast
  


22        Light doesn't mitigate the fact that there are
  


23        going to be five Washington monument size towers
  


24        sitting 2 miles offshore.  So, although you have
  


25        the authority to do that, you haven't done so.
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 1        RIDEM has not started condemnation proceedings.
  


 2                 Deepwater Wind has not acknowledged the
  


 3        financial impact in its environmental assessment.
  


 4        Deepwater Wind has not offered mitigation to the
  


 5        impact.  The Army Corps. of Engineers, which has
  


 6        regulatory obligation to both review the
  


 7        socio-economic impact as well as advise Deepwater
  


 8        Wind objections to those impacts.  Now, if the
  


 9        Army Corps. of Engineers was here as a joint
  


10        sponsor of this, they could listen to that with
  


11        their jurisdictional power that they are actually
  


12        obligated to notify Deepwater Wind of this
  


13        complaint.  They have not done so.  And since they
  


14        have no standing in this hearing, I'm asking you,
  


15        I'm pointing to that is missing from the entire
  


16        proceeding.  So, my assertion is that permitting
  


17        this project is a taking.  It's an unauthorized
  


18        taking.  It's not lawful, and it's not consistent
  


19        with Rhode Island General Law for you to take our
  


20        property, authorize and permit the taking of our
  


21        property with proper procedures.  That would be to
  


22        begin a condemnation procedure as warranted by
  


23        your charter.  So, my English may not be so good,
  


24        I'm not an attorney, but I read a lot.
  


25                 So, the burden of proof is on me that
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 1        there's no financial impact.  The burden of proof
  


 2        belongs on Deepwater Wind.  Deepwater Wind's CEO
  


 3        claimed how they are part of the Block Island
  


 4        community for the past four, maybe five years.
  


 5        I'm probably misquoting, paraphrasing.  I've been
  


 6        adopted -- Block Island 30 years.  I own land.  My
  


 7        children, every one of them had their first job on
  


 8        Block Island.  I'm not an islander.  Ask anyone
  


 9        who is an islander.
  


10                 So, I have two requests.  One is that
  


11        you -- I have to read this.  I apologize.  I typed
  


12        all this stuff up, and I can't read my own
  


13        handwriting.  So, one is if you're going to permit
  


14        this project, before you do so, that you start
  


15        condemnation proceedings against my property and
  


16        property of anyone else affected.  The second
  


17        request is that you request the Army Corps. of
  


18        Engineers to hold public hearings on matters that
  


19        are not within the jurisdiction of Rhode Island
  


20        Department of Energy, Environmental Management, in
  


21        order to have those significant substantive
  


22        objections heard in public environment, with an
  


23        opportunity to examine both Deepwater Wind's
  


24        evidence and the evidence of the hundreds of
  


25        people and organizations who objected and
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 1        submitted timely substantive objections to these
  


 2        two projects.
  


 3                 Thank you very much.  I appreciate your
  


 4        time and the opportunity to have my voice spoken
  


 5        in this great nation that needs our voices heard.
  


 6        So, thank you very much.
  


 7                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Terry
  


 8        Tierney.
  


 9                 MR. TIERNEY:  Good evening, and thank you
  


10        for the opportunity to offer comments on the
  


11        Deepwater Winds proposed dredging activities, and
  


12        its request for issuance of a water quality
  


13        certification under the RIDEM and regulations for
  


14        dredging and the management of dredging materials,
  


15        and state water quality regulations.
  


16                 First, I want to commend RIDEM for
  


17        providing this basic right to comment at a public
  


18        hearing on an unprecedented request to develop
  


19        publicly owned coastal resources for private
  


20        benefit.  As you know, the United States Army
  


21        Corps. of Engineers has not provided such
  


22        opportunities for a public hearing with respect to
  


23        Deepwater Wind's plan to develop Federally
  


24        controlled coastal resources.  And the Corps. of
  


25        Engineers apparently sees no need to even allow
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 1        the public to comment at a public hearing on such
  


 2        plans before it decides whether to grant
  


 3        permission to dredge these Federal waters under
  


 4        the Clean Water Act.
  


 5                 The Army Corps of Engineers' actions in
  


 6        this regard are nothing sort of a disgrace.  RIDEM
  


 7        was wise not to follow the Federal Government's
  


 8        actions in denying requests, numerous requests,
  


 9        that a public hearing be convened in the affected
  


10        local communities.  The dredging permits and the
  


11        state water quality certificates for this project
  


12        should be denied.  The plans to disturb and
  


13        destroy winter flounder and lobster breeding
  


14        grounds and to litter the ocean floor with tons of
  


15        discarded metal from an abandoned transmission
  


16        cable are simply unacceptable and RIDEM should
  


17        deny the requested permits.  In fact, Rhode
  


18        Island, excuse me, RIDEM, should not even consider
  


19        the Deepwater request at this juncture.  The
  


20        applicant, as you may know, has not paid the
  


21        application fee due to the Coastal Resources
  


22        Management Council.  And it has not secured
  


23        permission from one of the affected communities to
  


24        carry out the project.  There is no evidence that
  


25        this is likely to occur, and Deepwater has shown
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 1        no proof that it will secure the needed local
  


 2        approvals.  Deepwater Wind's environmental report
  


 3        and DEM's notice of public hearing erroneously
  


 4        claim that the Block Island transmission system
  


 5        cable would, quote, make landfall on the Rhode
  


 6        Island mainland in the town of Narragansett.  That
  


 7        simply is not true.  The town of Narragansett had
  


 8        not granted permission to allow cable to land at
  


 9        the town beach.
  


10                 With all due respect to RIDEM, your
  


11        public notice is procedurally defective and very
  


12        misleading to the public in that it claims that
  


13        the transmission cable will land at a location
  


14        where it is not allowed to land.  The public
  


15        notice claims that the onshore facilities will not
  


16        result in fill or discharge into wetlands, but
  


17        there's no factual support for this position in
  


18        the absence of a secured landing area unless and
  


19        until the Town of Narragansett decides if it will
  


20        allow the landing.  This is completely premature
  


21        to ask the public to comment on the environmental
  


22        impact of the project.  At this point, the impacts
  


23        are largely unknown because the landing site has
  


24        not been secured and may never be permitted.
  


25        RIDEM has no business holding a public hearing on
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 1        a project that is not sufficiently final so as to
  


 2        permit the public to have a meaningful opportunity
  


 3        to be heard about its expected impacts.  Until
  


 4        this project developer can demonstrate a secured
  


 5        permission that is needed to carry out the
  


 6        proposal, RIDEM is wasting everyone's time.
  


 7                 But since RIDEM is processing the
  


 8        application as if they were sufficiently complete
  


 9        and is essentially turning a blind eye to the lack
  


10        of local permission to land the transmission
  


11        cable, they ought to at least undertake an
  


12        analysis of whether the proposed dredging
  


13        activities are truly in the public interest, and
  


14        the DEM should undertake its own independent
  


15        review of environmental impacts, as well as
  


16        available alternatives to the project and share
  


17        these with the public.
  


18                 To date, the public has had to rely
  


19        solely on information generated and maintained by
  


20        the applicant, and no genuine examination of
  


21        available alternatives has taken place due to the
  


22        applicant's outright refusal to discuss
  


23        alternatives within the environmental report it
  


24        submitted as part of this application.  Numerous
  


25        available alternatives exist for meeting the







Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500
www.alliedcourtreporters.com


Deepwater Wind Project - April 24, 2013


61


  
 1        state's renewable energy goals without sacrificing
  


 2        our environmental quality.  These options exist
  


 3        but they have not been evaluated by a neutral
  


 4        party.  As part of its decision-making process,
  


 5        DEM, therefore, needs to ask the hard questions,
  


 6        the basic questions that were left unanswered in
  


 7        the application, including whether the purported
  


 8        benefits to the project can be realized by
  


 9        alternative means that will not cause many adverse
  


10        impacts that are documented in developer's own
  


11        environmental report.
  


12                 Deepwater Wind has asserted in their
  


13        environmental report that the location of the
  


14        project has quote/unquote been dictated by a state
  


15        law, but that is a fallacy.  Rhode Island,
  


16        obviously, cannot dictate the location of the
  


17        facilities that are to be located partially in
  


18        Federal waters.  It can dictate anything it wants
  


19        with regard to state waters, but it can't dictate
  


20        anything to the Federal Government, and that
  


21        concept is absurd.  It has become clear that
  


22        Deepwater's project is not a so-called
  


23        demonstration project, as it's claimed, and that a
  


24        much larger offshore wind project is in the works
  


25        in Federal Waters where many of the adverse
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 1        impacts from this project would not occur.
  


 2                 Because this much larger project is
  


 3        proceeding, DEM needs to consider the cumulative
  


 4        impacts from dredging for both the proposed
  


 5        Deepwater project and the much larger project that
  


 6        is supposed to go off this year.  Deepwater's
  


 7        application fails to include information about
  


 8        expected cumulative impacts and DEM really needs
  


 9        to acknowledge them and factor them into its
  


10        decision on Deepwater's request.
  


11                 Assertions made by Deepwater are
  


12        questionable in many respects.  The company
  


13        consistently claimed that its impacts to the
  


14        project will be minimal and short term and that
  


15        restrictions on its plans are not necessary.  Of
  


16        course, that's exactly what it said to you about
  


17        the imposition of time-of-year restrictions on
  


18        construction activities.  That is before it
  


19        completely reversed its position and agreed to
  


20        implement such restrictions.  This sort of
  


21        complete reversal of position demonstrates why the
  


22        public is so suspect of the claims made in the
  


23        environmental report concerning the purported lack
  


24        of adverse impacts to the long term.
  


25                 Take the position of Deepwater with
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 1        regard to winter flounder spawning habitat as an
  


 2        example of what I'm speaking to.  The applicant
  


 3        admits that winter flounder have designated
  


 4        essential fish habitat within the project area,
  


 5        and the company also admits that winter flounder
  


 6        eggs and larvae along the miles and miles of
  


 7        trench for the cable may get buried too deep in
  


 8        sediment to recover.  Yet it dismisses these
  


 9        natural resource losses as acceptable.  They are
  


10        not.  Winter flounder are a species in severe
  


11        decline in this region as you know, and the plan
  


12        to bury winter flounder eggs and larvae for many
  


13        miles will only make matters worse and prevent the
  


14        recovery of this important fish species.  It only
  


15        stands to reason that many juvenile adult winter
  


16        flounder will ultimately be buried too deep in
  


17        sediment to recover.  We should not allow this to
  


18        occur, at least when there are many available
  


19        alternatives that have yet to be explored by the
  


20        applicant.  Impacts to fish from exposure to
  


21        electromagnetic fields emanating from the
  


22        energized cables is not well understood, and
  


23        additional research should be required to support
  


24        the application before such potential risks are
  


25        allowed to be introduced to the marine
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 1        environment.  Total reliance by the applicant on
  


 2        theories and a so-called theoretical detection
  


 3        level with regard to the EMF is not an acceptable
  


 4        substitute for science, and that's what should
  


 5        guide your decision.
  


 6                 The environmental report submitted by
  


 7        Deepwater underestimates the adverse impacts from
  


 8        dredging by assuming RIDEM will allow it to leave
  


 9        the transmission cable on the ocean floor when the
  


10        project reaches the end of its useful life.  RIDEM
  


11        has not granted such permission before and should
  


12        require the applicant's solid waste to be removed.
  


13        No other submerged cable has been abandoned in
  


14        place in the state to my knowledge, and it is
  


15        expected by many citizens that DEM will not allow
  


16        such solid waste disposal to occur on the ocean
  


17        floor.  Accordingly, impacts from dredging should
  


18        be assumed to be double the amount discussed in
  


19        the environmental report to reflect the need to
  


20        dredge in order to remove Deepwater's waste.
  


21                 Finally, DEM is urged to consider the
  


22        socio-economic impacts that will result in the
  


23        proposed project in deciding whether a permit
  


24        should be issued.  Impacts to private property
  


25        owners who will be affected by the project have
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 1        not been evaluated by the other state and Federal
  


 2        agencies, and RIDEM ought to require as a
  


 3        condition of any permit that it grants that
  


 4        compensation be made to those who will suffer a
  


 5        loss of property value as a result of the proposed
  


 6        project of which dredging is an essential part.
  


 7                 I just want to conclude by pointing out
  


 8        that -- how the project has been misrepresented in
  


 9        the environmental report as something that will
  


10        enhance the environment.  When, in reality, it
  


11        will degrade the environmental quality, and this
  


12        is accomplished by Deepwater by overstating the
  


13        purported environmental benefits while parsing out
  


14        and segmenting the adverse impacts.  Deepwater
  


15        parses out the adverse impacts of the two
  


16        components of the overall project environment
  


17        report.  The benefits alleged to flow to Block
  


18        Island are derived from completion of the bit
  


19        cable, which is not dependent on construction of
  


20        the wind farm.  Negative impacts are primarily
  


21        derived from the inappropriate location of the
  


22        wind farm.  The applicant should not be allowed to
  


23        lump the two projects together for the purposes of
  


24        analyzing impacts.  As it stands, the
  


25        environmental report combined the purported
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 1        benefits to the project and minimizes the adverse
  


 2        impact through impermissible segmentation of the
  


 3        project.
  


 4                 I'll just conclude by saying how the
  


 5        environmental report improperly excluded for
  


 6        considers numerous risks, potential turbine
  


 7        locations on the grounds that it's Rhode Island
  


 8        policy dictated, viable alternative location with
  


 9        the wind turbine array, but no basis for
  


10        eliminating an alternative analysis to these
  


11        locations that are purportedly dictated by Rhode
  


12        Island.
  


13                 Again, I thank you for your time.
  


14                 MR. GAGNON:  Our next speaker is Tina
  


15        Jackson.
  


16                 MS. JACKSON:  Tina Jackson, commercial
  


17        fisherman and speaking for the commercial fishing
  


18        industry in Rhode Island.  I couldn't agree more
  


19        with Terry Tierney and James O'Neil with several
  


20        instances regarding massive impact to marine
  


21        resources and premature --
  


22                 THE REPORTER:  Can I have you slow down
  


23        just little bit.  Slow down a little bit, please.
  


24                 MS. JACKSON:  Slow down a little?
  


25                 THE REPORTER:  Yes.  Please.  I'm taking
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 1        it verbatim and I can't even understand you you're
  


 2        talking so fast.  I couldn't even understand what
  


 3        you're saying.
  


 4                 MS. JACKSON:  I couldn't agree more with
  


 5        Terry Tierney and Jim O'Neil with regards to the
  


 6        impacts on marine resources as well as premature
  


 7        permitting of anything for dredging purposes
  


 8        regarding Deepwater.
  


 9                 There are two purposes here for myself to
  


10        make statements regarding destruction of marine
  


11        resources in the Block Island Sound.  Deepwater,
  


12        and I could go through all the corruption levels
  


13        and backroom deals that were perpetrated regarding
  


14        Deepwater, we all know that; but we still have to
  


15        keep it in the forefront because there are other
  


16        questions as to how this came about, why this came
  


17        about.  And allowing it to continue as the one
  


18        woman said go slow, very slow.
  


19                 When we take a look at Deepwater's
  


20        actions with their test turbines, the first test
  


21        turbine they put up, they couldn't even erect it.
  


22        The second one broke in half during 45 mile an
  


23        hour winds, and we're going to allow them to put
  


24        up 6 megawatt, 650-foot turbines.  They couldn't
  


25        even put the test towers up.  God's honest truth.
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 1        They have pictures of it over at Quonset Point.
  


 2        It was hysterical.  These winds are consistent in
  


 3        our area.  Imagine when we get 120 or 140 mile an
  


 4        hour hurricanes, what's going to happen to those
  


 5        55 turbines.  They're going to be gone.  The
  


 6        decommission cost that Deepwater has planned for
  


 7        this is only $350,000.  That's the payment that
  


 8        they have allocated for decommission costs.
  


 9        That's not going to cover the cost to take down
  


10        the blades on the turbines, let alone five
  


11        turbines, at the height they're at.
  


12                 The town of Narragansett council has a
  


13        motion before it on May 6th to suspend talks with
  


14        Deepwater in regards to allow necessary
  


15        transparency for the public benefit to occur.
  


16        Therefore, that, in itself, these hearings
  


17        shouldn't even be in progress at this point.
  


18        Deepwater does not have permission to continue.
  


19        In fact, Deepwater's permit and contractor is
  


20        literally terminated June 30, 2011, I believe,
  


21        because they failed to start breaking ground, so
  


22        to speak, and Torray Plastics actually thought
  


23        they had won their lawsuit based on that
  


24        termination of their contract, but, of course, our
  


25        General Assembly went behind closed doors with the
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 1        PUC, and did a little (inaudible) next you know
  


 2        everything was amended and here we stand today
  


 3        still talking about Deepwater.
  


 4                 Let's talk about the negative impacts on
  


 5        marine resources, FAA radar clutter.  Massive
  


 6        impact to boats and planes.  Five airports will be
  


 7        severely affected by the radar clutter that's
  


 8        coming off the turbines.  We just had a shut down
  


 9        for three years winter flounder as Terry Tierney
  


10        was speaking about, and we just got them back.  We
  


11        just got an allocation, a very small allocation
  


12        for the fishing industry, but we just got it back
  


13        and now we're going to allow Deepwater to go into
  


14        their prime breeding grounds and basically blow
  


15        them all up and destroy them for green energy
  


16        that's not really green energy in my eyes, and
  


17        there are many studies that are proving that to be
  


18        true.
  


19                 With regards to the EMF cable study done
  


20        by BOEM in September of 2011, there is high
  


21        impact, high negative impact on marine resources
  


22        specific to migrating whales, dolphins, and
  


23        turtles.  There's a massive negative impact on
  


24        navigation.  There's a massive negative impact on
  


25        feeding.  There's a massive negative impact on
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 1        breeding habits.  That's just the migrating
  


 2        species.  That has nothing to do with species that
  


 3        basically make Rhode Island Sound and Block Island
  


 4        Sound its home.
  


 5                 These turbines are basically in the dead
  


 6        center of regular migration routes, which is why
  


 7        they basically put it off until 2015 to allow
  


 8        migration to continue at certain times of the
  


 9        year.  I don't see what difference it's going to
  


10        make if they build them in 2015 or 2020.
  


11        Migration routes are not going to change for the
  


12        White Whales.  This is what they do.
  


13                 This is unacceptable to the fishing
  


14        industry.  Absolutely unacceptable.  The fishing
  


15        industry has had so much taken away from them over
  


16        the last years.  This is a direct correlation of
  


17        the catch-year program that was implemented by
  


18        NOAH in 2010, specific to consolidation of the
  


19        fleet.  And we made the connect a long time ago
  


20        they were whittling us away, whittling us away and
  


21        we all pointed to the oil industry for many, many
  


22        years, but now that there's big money to be made
  


23        in Federal stimulus money regarding wind energy
  


24        and faulty wind energy at that.  Now, we correlate
  


25        it to the proposal of 42 turbines all the way down
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 1        to Virginia.  What better way to get rid of a
  


 2        fishing fleet than to over regulate us out of
  


 3        business, therefore cutting back the cost of
  


 4        mitigation that Deepwater is basically saying
  


 5        they're proposing to the fishing industry here,
  


 6        but I can tell you a lot of fishermen don't want
  


 7        money.  They don't want Deepwater.  They want to
  


 8        be left alone to go to work and make a buck and
  


 9        provide jobs and provide a natural food resource
  


10        to the community.  Period.  End of story.
  


11                 Deepwater would save billions.  Actually,
  


12        First Wind, because First Wind is Deepwater and
  


13        Deepwater is First Wind.  Let's all make that
  


14        point very clear here today.  They're all one in
  


15        the same.  Whether they're in Hawaii, Maine,
  


16        California, Oregon, Washington, or The Gulf, it
  


17        doesn't matter, First Wind is all over the
  


18        country.  They're the largest provider of wind
  


19        energy, and they seem to get every single contract
  


20        in every portion of the country.  I wonder why,
  


21        especially connection they had to a (inaudible)
  


22        tower corporation and the corruption scandal that
  


23        just erupted over in Sicily, 17 percent of
  


24        Deepwater, I believe, is still owned by IVPC
  


25        (phonetic) according to one of the leaders --
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 1        documents and their research.  Now, if anybody
  


 2        doesn't know what IVPC is, it's Italian Vento
  


 3        Power Corporation --
  


 4                 THE REPORTER:  Ma'am, I have no idea what
  


 5        you just said.
  


 6                 MS. JACKSON:  I'll go back to IVPC.
  


 7                 THE REPORTER:  Thank you.
  


 8                 MS. JACKSON:  You're welcome.  You're
  


 9        very rude.  I'm sorry -- I'm doing my best --
  


10                 THE REPORTER:  Ma'am, I have a job to
  


11        do -- excuse me, I have a job to do, and I'm
  


12        trying to do it.  I asked you very nicely to slow
  


13        down.  I can't understand what you're saying, so I
  


14        can't take it down.  I'm not being rude.  I have a
  


15        job to do.  Thank you.  You're being rude to me.
  


16                 MS. JACKSON:  I wasn't trying to be
  


17        fast and/or rude.  I'm trying -- it's okay.  I can
  


18        take the heat.
  


19                 MR. GAGNON:  You'll have enough time.  Go
  


20        ahead.
  


21                 MS. JACKSON:  Thank you.  Let's take a
  


22        look at the Italian Vento Power Corporation
  


23        Connection.  According to my recent research, the
  


24        Italian Vento Power Corporation still holds 17
  


25        percent of Deepwater's subsidy and/or stock.  In
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 1        2010, the Italian Mafia police confiscated $6
  


 2        billion of the Italian Vento Power Corporation's
  


 3        assets as well as they arrested 10 executives all
  


 4        for wind fraud, every bit of it.  They were
  


 5        building turbines, getting massive taxpayer
  


 6        subsidies, never producing energy that said they
  


 7        were going to.  These turbines are basically
  


 8        ineffective and non-working, yet there's people of
  


 9        Sicily are still forced to pay exorbitant electric
  


10        rates for power they're not getting.  Now,
  


11        remember, this is all First Wind, but First Wind
  


12        is Deepwater.  Some of the executives that sit on
  


13        First Wind's board are former Enron executives.
  


14        Are these the kind of people that we want to do
  


15        business with?  Patrick Wood, III; (inaudible)
  


16        most of his connection to Enron still
  


17        documentation out there floating around somewhere,
  


18        try to get a hold of it myself.  These are the
  


19        kind of people that we're doing business with.
  


20        Italian Mafia, former Enron executives, and Rhode
  


21        Island DEM, it's been brought to their attention
  


22        prior, not very often, but I have mentioned it in
  


23        passing.  This is energy market manipulation at
  


24        its very best.  And if anybody doesn't remember
  


25        Enron, these people are getting away with doing it
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 1        again.  And anybody that would like information
  


 2        regarding IVPC and the connection to First Wind
  


 3        and Deepwater, by all means, come and see me and
  


 4        I'll give you the powerpoint presentation
  


 5        Deepwater did making their connection to UPC,
  


 6        First Wind, and IVPC.  I know, a lot of acronyms,
  


 7        I'm sorry.
  


 8                 Let's talk about high bird kill ratio.
  


 9        Let's talk about the Audubon Society and the Cape
  


10        Wind project, $8 million is waiting in the wings
  


11        for the Audubon Society to count dead birds.
  


12        Since when does the Audubon Society count dead
  


13        birds?  Their function is to protect birds and
  


14        protect species, just as I want to protect my
  


15        marine resources, your marine resources, they
  


16        belong to all of us, and I know it was stated at
  


17        one of the last meetings that the public trust
  


18        documents does not include the sectioning off of
  


19        our oceans and parsing it out to the highest
  


20        bidders.  I say that's not true.  It has
  


21        everything to do with the violation of public
  


22        trust documents.  It has everything to do with
  


23        that ocean being yours and yours alone.  It
  


24        doesn't belong to me.  It doesn't belong to the
  


25        Federal Government.  It doesn't belong to the Army
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 1        Corps. of Engineers.  It doesn't belong to Rhode
  


 2        Island DEM.  It belongs to you, the US Citizens.
  


 3        You can look it up.  It's a very simple statement,
  


 4        very simple amendment to our Constitution.
  


 5                 Currently, all the agencies are reviewing
  


 6        the original proposal of 3.6 megawatts to permit
  


 7        Deepwater, including this Rhode Island DEM.
  


 8        According to some of the sources that I spoke with
  


 9        today, these are two complete different projects,
  


10        as we all well know.  But the reviews are being
  


11        based off the initial proposal.  Where is the
  


12        completed environmental impact statement on 6
  


13        megawatt turbine, 650 feet tall?  There isn't one.
  


14        Where is the FAA hazard study, completed FAA
  


15        hazard study in regards to the 6 megawatt
  


16        turbines?  There is a basic dismantling of what
  


17        pilots need regarding the FAA hazard study,
  


18        decommissioning, so to speak, of their ability to
  


19        fly in and out of Block Island.  This will greatly
  


20        affect five airports in our surrounding area.
  


21        When you take a look at Docket 4111 -- 4111, there
  


22        is no indication that there would be any kind of
  


23        change and/or technological advances to basically
  


24        create a new proposal.  These are apples and
  


25        oranges.  We're talking about a turbine that's 300
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 1        feet higher than the original proposed turbine.
  


 2        These have never been built before.  Again, Rhode
  


 3        Island gets to be the guinea pig.  I believe
  


 4        Christopher Walker said it best at one of the last
  


 5        public hearings, that exactly what we are, are
  


 6        guinea pigs.
  


 7                 I believe over 400,000 pilots have signed
  


 8        the petition, 400,000, advocated in opposition of
  


 9        the disabling of the flight capability system,
  


10        which the Deepwater project does.  It basically
  


11        disables their GPS, their magnetic GPS compass,
  


12        which is what fishing vessels use, in order to
  


13        navigate the waters, in order to navigate the air.
  


14        Now, they all talked about the effects of the
  


15        flicker and EMF and all that, those are very true.
  


16        The EMF fields are very detrimental to human
  


17        beings, as well as animal species.
  


18                 I can't think of a better way to spend my
  


19        time than to advocate for something I know.  It's
  


20        not only bad for Rhode Island, but it's bad for
  


21        everybody in general.  And in the back of our
  


22        minds, we all know this.  I see people getting up
  


23        here talking about construction jobs that they
  


24        think they're going to get because they own a
  


25        small construction company.  I hear them talking
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 1        about jobs, jobs, jobs, when, in fact, Deepwater,
  


 2        themselves, has stated this will only create 6
  


 3        permanent jobs, at a cost of $250 million, and
  


 4        those jobs will only be given from within the
  


 5        company, won't be you or me or anybody else in
  


 6        this room.  It will be Deepwater personnel, First
  


 7        Wind personnel.  Nobody but them.  I don't know if
  


 8        anybody else has been paying attention to the
  


 9        Federal stimulus money and the cost of creating
  


10        these jobs since 2010, but I don't think $250
  


11        million is worth 6 permanent jobs for a company
  


12        that's going to make mass amounts of money off of
  


13        picking our pockets at 24 cents a kilowatt hour.
  


14        The Government's own reimbursement of 2.6 cents
  


15        per kilowatt hour, that leaves a big chunk of
  


16        change coming out of my pocket and your pocket as
  


17        well.  If nothing else, if nothing else,
  


18        regardless of what people feel for environmental
  


19        impact, regardless of what people feel for marine
  


20        resources, regardless of what people feel for
  


21        green energy, I'm the biggest advocate, I want to
  


22        spend the least amount of money with the most
  


23        efficient energy for anybody.  Believe me when I
  


24        tell you, the cost itself, alone, should not be
  


25        allowed.  It is too expensive.  It is faulty to a
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 1        T.  We can cite First Wind's project in Hawaii.  I
  


 2        mean that's a mess.  Spain, Portugal, many
  


 3        European countries are pulling their wind
  


 4        projects.  We should learn from their steps.
  


 5        They've already been through the process.  It has
  


 6        failed again and again and again, and here we sit.
  


 7        Here we sit.  Imagine that.
  


 8                 The reason history repeats itself is
  


 9        because we didn't learn our lesson the first time.
  


10        People say this is a done deal.  I don't believe
  


11        that.  I believe collectively and together we can
  


12        stand up to big corporate crony capitalists
  


13        companies such as First Wind.  I believe that we,
  


14        as a people, it is time that we stand together
  


15        against phony capitalists such as First Wind.  It
  


16        is time that your government listens to us.  We
  


17        pay them.  We elect them.  Next time when we go to
  


18        the voting booth, be very careful who you pick and
  


19        choose to represent you because they just very
  


20        well may sell you down the road as time goes by.
  


21                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Miles Grant.
  


22                 MR. GRANT:  Hi.  My name is Miles Grant,
  


23        representing the National Wildlife Federal, and
  


24        I'm a fast speaker, too, so just give me one of
  


25        these things if I'm talking too fast.  The
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 1        National Wildlife Federation is here to say that
  


 2        it supports offshore wind.  The threat to
  


 3        America's wildlife today is the climate crisis.
  


 4        We need clean energy.  We need it to be
  


 5        responsibly cited, responsibly constructed.  We
  


 6        feel that's what this project is.  Our state
  


 7        affiliate, the Environment Council of Rhode Island
  


 8        represents over 40,000 people in Rhode Island,
  


 9        supports this project as well.
  


10                 You know, if you look across this country
  


11        right now at energy resources, we're getting
  


12        energy from coal, from natural gas, from oil.
  


13        You're right that oil tends not to go to
  


14        electricity here in New England.  It goes to our
  


15        cars.  We're going to transition our cars to
  


16        electric energy sources.  We're going to need
  


17        clean energy for those vehicles.
  


18                 I've been to Virginia where they mine
  


19        coal.  Used to be they dug under the ground to get
  


20        coal.  Now, they blow up a mountain and pick up
  


21        the coal from underneath it.  I've been to the
  


22        Gulf to cover the Gulf War disaster.  I've seen
  


23        the impacts of that.  I was actually just in
  


24        Arkansas this month to cover the tar sand spill
  


25        there, want to talk about home values, talk to
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 1        people in Mayflower, Arkansas.  Actually, I wore
  


 2        these jeans tonight because when I got home washed
  


 3        out all the mud from walking through the marshes
  


 4        down there, looking at the dead ducks, dead
  


 5        reptiles, and I still have tar sand on my jeans,
  


 6        even after going through the wash cycle.  Imagine
  


 7        what it's like for the ducks down there.
  


 8                 So, the National Wildlife Federation
  


 9        strongly feels again, if these projects were not
  


10        right for wildlife, we'd be among the first to
  


11        stand up against them to say no.  We worked with
  


12        these developers to make them do the best for
  


13        wildlife that they can be.  I've got to tell you,
  


14        go to BP, go to Exxon, and ask them to do what is
  


15        right for wildlife and see how far you get.  Go to
  


16        NWF.  org/offshore wind, we've got reports on this
  


17        and read through.  Contact us.  Let us know the
  


18        questions that you have.  We feel this project and
  


19        others like it need to move forward to protect
  


20        America's wildlife.  Thank you.
  


21                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Karen -- and
  


22        I'm not going to get this last name right --
  


23        Shabshelowitz.
  


24                 MS. SHABSHELOWITZ:  Thank you for coming
  


25        to Narragansett.  I am a mother of six grown
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 1        children, who all love the beach and six
  


 2        grandchildren.  They all live out of state 'cuz
  


 3        there are no jobs in the state, but they've got --
  


 4        they have many happy, happy memories of going down
  


 5        along the beach, taking walks, digging out the
  


 6        little sand crabs that inhabit the beach, going
  


 7        after the little minnows that would go in the
  


 8        water, the little fish.  One of my sons absolutely
  


 9        loved fish, and he used to go down whenever the
  


10        bluefish were running, they'd run along the wall
  


11        and they'd jump out of the water.  That's right by
  


12        the beach where they'd run and it's just
  


13        fascinating.  It was like a little dolphin show,
  


14        but they were little blue fish.
  


15                 We moved to Rhode Island over 25 years
  


16        ago from northeastern Pennsylvania.  We saw what
  


17        strip mining did to the beautiful mountains in
  


18        Pennsylvania.  There were fires that couldn't be
  


19        put out.  There were -- a lot of people had black
  


20        lungs from breathing in the fumes, and they used
  


21        to try and fill up the mines so houses wouldn't
  


22        sink into the mines.  No one could have predicted
  


23        this was going to happen many years ago when they
  


24        first went after the coal.  And I have similar
  


25        concerns about a cable going for miles under our
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 1        beautiful beach.  People come to Narragansett
  


 2        because of the beauty of the beach, and that's
  


 3        year round, and the water is beautiful, the sand
  


 4        is beautiful.  I hate to think of that being
  


 5        destroyed, ambiance, the charm of the town.
  


 6                 I also think back to when they built the
  


 7        Jamestown Bridge; and when they were building it,
  


 8        they found quite a lot of rock under the bridge
  


 9        they did not know was there.  So that impacted how
  


10        they were going to build the bridge.  Also huge
  


11        cost overruns because of the lack of foresight
  


12        into what they'd be running into.  And so with the
  


13        Big Dig, when they built the Big Dig, a lot of
  


14        cost overruns.
  


15                 I went to that meeting at Narragansett
  


16        Elementary School December of 2011.  We were told
  


17        to sign in and they'd be in touch with us.  Fool
  


18        me once, shame on you; fool me twice, shame on me.
  


19        We never heard from them at all.  They didn't give
  


20        a presentation.  So nothing went on the record.
  


21        Went around asking questions of different people,
  


22        and I'm sure we all got different answers to the
  


23        same questions.  We never heard from them.  In
  


24        fact, it was the town member that found out in
  


25        reading the binders down in the library that they
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 1        intended to bring the cable above ground, rather
  


 2        than below ground.  I find it just preposterous,
  


 3        as a nurse, that you have -- when you make up a
  


 4        plan, you have input from the family.  Deepwater
  


 5        didn't care about input from the town.  They
  


 6        didn't care about what the people said.  They just
  


 7        went ahead and did what they wanted to do.  And I
  


 8        think they continue to do that because we've had
  


 9        several hearings where people have strongly
  


10        objected to the addition of larger telephone
  


11        poles, higher up in the sky, and additional poles,
  


12        and then we're going to build a substation down
  


13        near the community center which is going to put
  


14        more electrical apparatus.  I have no concerns
  


15        about the upkeep and the cable and what's going to
  


16        happen during the tidal storms that we've
  


17        experienced.  We've had power outages a number of
  


18        times that have lasted five days to a week; and
  


19        when the lines go down, they have to wait for the
  


20        wind to stop before they can go up and try to
  


21        repair them.  Some of the poles have gone down
  


22        also.
  


23                 I have a son that's a New York City
  


24        fireman and he's watched the fire that was in
  


25        Queens, and total neighborhoods were wiped out due
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 1        to the storm that they had never seen before.  I
  


 2        mean generations of people have lived in the areas
  


 3        and the whole area is changed now.  Whole
  


 4        communities are just gone.  And he described how
  


 5        when fire engines went, the hydrants were way down
  


 6        below the water because there was flooding
  


 7        everywhere.  And they have to try and pump the
  


 8        water without the fire hydrants because they were
  


 9        so far below.  Meanwhile, 50 houses burnt down in
  


10        one night.  I mention that because I also lived in
  


11        Pennsylvania.  We had a big storm at Adler's
  


12        (phonetic).  There was huge flooding.  It was back
  


13        in '70 -- no, it was in -- '79 -- well, I remember
  


14        going to Hartford to delivery a baby and I didn't
  


15        realize the whole front door was closed down
  


16        because of the floods that happened nine months
  


17        ago.  Trying to remember which child that was, but
  


18        that was totally -- we were totally unprepared for
  


19        that.  Most of you that have watched TV this last
  


20        week and seen these floods that are going on in
  


21        the midwest where barns are just pushed up against
  


22        the harbor.  I mean there's all these changes
  


23        going on, and I just -- I just don't trust a
  


24        company that doesn't want to hear what the
  


25        citizens want to say, and the citizen are
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 1        interested in and just go ahead and proceed.  You
  


 2        know, we've had these hearings and yet they have
  


 3        not acknowledged any change in the plans or
  


 4        anything like that, and I just wonder, you know, I
  


 5        don't want them to destroy the beach, and I find
  


 6        them projecting how much the electric bills are
  


 7        going to be highly preposterous.  I mean, how can
  


 8        they even tell because this is an experimental
  


 9        project.
  


10                 And I was an exchange student in Holland
  


11        many years ago.  They have beautiful windmills
  


12        that sort of kept up the ambiance of the
  


13        community.  I just can't see these big turbines
  


14        being at all pretty.  I think they ruin the
  


15        outlook to the ocean.  Also, in Pennsylvania, you
  


16        know, a lot of times hear banging, banging,
  


17        banging, banging.  They were trying to fill up the
  


18        mines.  That was some machines they used trying to
  


19        fill in the mines, so that there wouldn't be land
  


20        further sliding into it.  I have fear of what
  


21        these machines are going to be doing that are
  


22        trying to build this cable, and if they're 6 feet
  


23        under the ground, I have no concerns with what the
  


24        tidal storms will do to that.
  


25                 For a company that doesn't seem to







Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500
www.alliedcourtreporters.com


Deepwater Wind Project - April 24, 2013


86


  
 1        respect us, I have a lot of suspect about what
  


 2        they're going to do.  Thank you again for
  


 3        listening.
  


 4                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Abel
  


 5        Collins.
  


 6                 MR. COLLINS:  My name is Abel Collins.
  


 7        I'm a program engineer for the Sierra Club in
  


 8        Rhode Island.  We're a chapter of about 2,000
  


 9        members, and, nationally, the largest and oldest
  


10        environmental organization in the country.
  


11                 This has been a long project coming.
  


12        Only recently have we come around with all the
  


13        work that Deepwater Wind has put into doing
  


14        studies to agree this is a good project and the
  


15        direction that Rhode Island needs to be heading.
  


16        Speaking about negative impacts, you know, I think
  


17        any human activity is going to have negative
  


18        impacts on the environment.  That's just the way
  


19        we are with the environment.  What we have to do
  


20        is balance which is going to be worse.  And when
  


21        we look at the alternative to renewable energy, it
  


22        is significantly worse, even when we just look at
  


23        the narrow region of our bay.  We have first-hand
  


24        experience with oil spills right off the coast of
  


25        Matunuck where I, myself, live.  We have
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 1        first-hand experience with the rising sea levels
  


 2        which are eating away at our shores.
  


 3                 I grew up in Matunuck.  We've lost over a
  


 4        hundred feet of shoreline, that's just 10 inches
  


 5        of sea level rise.  That's only going to
  


 6        accelerate over the next hundred years.  I mean,
  


 7        it's hard to imagine, but I think someday I might
  


 8        have beach front property living a mile away from
  


 9        the beach.  And that's what we had to be concerned
  


10        with.  We have to worry about rising temperatures.
  


11        That's what's affecting the fish population more
  


12        than the cable going on the bottom of the bay.
  


13        Cables have been running across the Atlantic for a
  


14        hundred years now.  This is not new technology
  


15        that we're talking about in this project.
  


16                 Talk about Brayton Point, which is the
  


17        nearest coal burning power plant, the biggest
  


18        power plant in the Northeast, generates about 1300
  


19        megawatts of power.  That has major environmental
  


20        impacts.  They've had to build cooling towers that
  


21        you can see from over a state away, and they had
  


22        to do that because they were heating the waters up
  


23        in the northern parts of the bay affecting the
  


24        fish populations.  Those are the environmental
  


25        impacts that we should be more concerned with.
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 1                 The project that Deepwater Wind proposes
  


 2        is five turbines in this demonstration project.
  


 3        They've gone through environmental studies.
  


 4        They've done everything to make room for things
  


 5        like flight of the birds.  There's the migration
  


 6        of the White Whales.  They say they're going to
  


 7        postpone it and only do the installation of these
  


 8        five turbines when they're not migrating through.
  


 9        Allowances have been made for the environmental
  


10        concerns that are out there, and it's a good
  


11        project at this point.  And at some point, we need
  


12        to be transitioning to a renewable energy economy.
  


13        It has to be small scale projects.  I want solar
  


14        panels on my roof.  I want a small turbine in my
  


15        backyard.  And that's important to those sort of
  


16        moderate level things.  It's important to do small
  


17        things like turning off the lights when walking
  


18        out of a room, but it's also critically important
  


19        that we're doing the larger scale projects well.
  


20        It's going to take every level of energy to, you
  


21        know, prevent the worst of climate change, and
  


22        right now we're just not doing it.
  


23                 Last year we saw the second highest jump
  


24        in atmospheric concentrations of carbon dioxide
  


25        record, and we're already higher than we've been
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 1        in millions of years.  The science behind climate
  


 2        change and global warming is on the rise.  Back
  


 3        when we still had a beach in Matunuck, when we
  


 4        still had dunes that I played on, I did a science
  


 5        project in fifth grade, when I was 10, 1988, was
  


 6        when the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
  


 7        just started its work addressing climate change.
  


 8        To my ten-year-old brain, the science of climate
  


 9        change made sense and you could conduct a small
  


10        experiment that made it work.  All you have to do
  


11        is put two terrariums next to each other, put
  


12        carbon dioxide in one of them and measure the
  


13        temperature as you go along.  It's science.  It's
  


14        real, and it's time we started doing something to
  


15        address these changes that have been occurring for
  


16        years, decades, and are now really threatening our
  


17        infrastructure, homeowners along the beach, and
  


18        really the money that's public money that's going
  


19        to go to try to protect these people and this
  


20        infrastructure.  It's time to take action, and
  


21        we're not going to be able to do it all in Rhode
  


22        Island, but we're responsible for a piece, and
  


23        this is one of the ways that we can start doing
  


24        those changes.  So, I encourage everybody to
  


25        support this project.  It's not perfect, but
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 1        nothing in life is.  And that's good enough for us
  


 2        to consider.
  


 3                 MR. GAGNON:  That concludes all the
  


 4        people who have signed up to speak.  Is there
  


 5        anyone else who wishes to say anything that hasn't
  


 6        signed up before we close the hearing?  Okay.
  


 7        Thank you very much.  Thank you for your
  


 8        participation and cooperation, and we'll close the
  


 9        hearing.  Thank you.
  


10                       (CLOSED AT 8:52 PM)
  


11                           ************
  


12
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 1                    C-E-R-T-I-F-I-C-A-T-E
  


 2
                 I, RONALD M. RONZIO, Notary Public, do


 3        hereby certify that I reported in shorthand the
        foregoing proceedings, and that the foregoing


 4        transcript contains a true, accurate, and complete
        record of the proceedings at the above-entitled


 5        hearing.
  


 6                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set
        my hand and seal this 23d day of May, 2013.


 7
  


 8
  


 9
  


10
        ________________________________________________


11        RONALD M. RONZIO, NOTARY PUBLIC/CERTIFIED COURT
        REPORTER


12
  


13        MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:  July 24, 2013
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15        DATE:   April 24, 2013
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            1                       (COMMENCED AT 6:34 PM)
                               
            2                  MR. GAGNON:  Okay.  I'd like to get 

            3         started, please.  Thank you.  Welcome, everyone.  

            4         Today is Wednesday, April 24, 2013, 6:35.  My name 

            5         is Ron Gagnon.  I am chief of the Rhode Island 

            6         Department of Environmental Management Office of 

            7         Customer and Technical Assistance.  With me today 

            8         is Russ Chateauneuf, who is chief in our office of 

            9         Water Resources and Richard Bianculli, from the 

           10         DEM office of legal services.  Also here is 

           11         Michael Elliott, from the Army Corps of Engineers.  

           12         We are gathered at the Narragansett Town Hall 

           13         today regarding a public hearing concerning the 

           14         application of Deepwater Wind, LLC, for a State of 

           15         Rhode Island water quality certificate and a 

           16         dredge permit in accordance and with the 

           17         department's rules and regulations for dredging 

           18         and the management of dredge materials and the 

           19         state water quality regulations.  

           20                  This hearing is being conducted under the 

           21         authority of the Administrative Procedures Act 

           22         located under Chapter 42-35 of the General Laws of 

           23         Rhode Island.  In accordance with the act's 

           24         requirements, public notice of this hearing were 

           25         published in the Narragansett Times, the South 
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            1         County Independent, and the Block Island Times.  

            2         Notice was also posted on the department's web 

            3         site.  

            4                  The purpose of this hearing is to afford 

            5         interested parties an opportunity to comment on 

            6         the noted application.  This hearing is not 

            7         intended as a means of providing a forum for 

            8         discussion, debating, arguing, or otherwise having 

            9         any dialogue at this time with members of the 

           10         department.  Please be silent when an individual 

           11         is making his or her comments.  Full copies of the 

           12         application have been placed in the public 

           13         libraries of Narragansett and New Shoreham.  We 

           14         have also extended the written public comment 

           15         period to 4 P.M. Wednesday, May 22, 2013.  A 

           16         second public hearing shall be held at the New 

           17         Shoreham Town Hall on May 8, 2013, at 5 P.M.  

           18                  The procedure we would use for those who 

           19         wish to speak is as follows.  If you have not 

           20         already done so, please register in the rear of 

           21         the auditorium.  I will call the speakers in the 

           22         order of registration.  We will allow 

           23         approximately 5 minutes for each individual to 

           24         make comments on the record.  When your name is 

           25         called, please come to the podium here and speak 
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            1         clearly and slowly so that the stenographer can 

            2         accurate transcribe your comments.  Written 

            3         comments may also be submitted before or after 

            4         your presentation is made.  Please note that I 

            5         will use a yellow cardboard sign to indicate you 

            6         have approximately one minute remaining for your 

            7         comments.  And at the end of the five-minute 

            8         period, I will raise a red cardboard sign.  I'll 

            9         try not to use those too much.  We ask that you 

           10         please respect the time limits so that all 

           11         commentors may be heard.  Thank you for your 

           12         cooperation.  After the time has elapsed for the 

           13         submission of the written comments, the department 

           14         will prepare a written response to all comments, 

           15         and then we will complete the review process and 

           16         issue the final determination.  

           17                  At this time, we can start with the 

           18         registered speakers for public comment.  The first 

           19         registered speaker is Jackie Sotnik.  

           20                  MS. SOTNIK:  Good evening.  I notice 

           21         there's still a lot of confusion about the plan 

           22         and what is going to happen and comments about 

           23         proposals as to how the power will be transmitted, 

           24         and so I'm not completely fully informed.  And 

           25         it's good to know that there will be some more 
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            1         advanced plans at the library to become more up to 

            2         speed on that so I'm thankful for that.  Also, I'd 

            3         like to state that I am a proponent of developing 

            4         alternate energy sources.  I think that's 

            5         obviously something we need to do.  The only thing 

            6         I'm speaking of is in regard to not only the town 

            7         of Narragansett, but the state of Rhode Island and 

            8         all of its citizens because Narragansett is such 

            9         an important part of the state.  It represents the 

           10         tourism industry, and it's the playground where 

           11         people come to try to enjoy and take advantage of 

           12         what we have here in our town.  I think the town 

           13         has a certain responsibility to try to preserve 

           14         that as much as possible.  So, whoever is 

           15         responsible for mandating some constraints or 

           16         requirements to the project, I'm hopeful that they 

           17         will be cognizant of the people of the state and 

           18         the town, especially regarding the esthetics of 

           19         how this is going to work, how it is going to 

           20         look, what types of structures would have to be 

           21         put up, so that they're being mindful of the 

           22         sensitivity of the ecology and the beauty of our 

           23         area.  That's all I'm saying.

           24                  MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Next speaker is 

           25         Stanley, and excuse my pronunciation, 
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            1         Wojciechowski.  

            2                  MR. WOJCIECHOWSKI:  I know many will 

            3         speak from a geographical perspective, so I'm 

            4         going to limit my comments to the financial 

            5         perspective here.  And, you know, are we in the 

            6         Soviet Union where bribery causes a project to 

            7         proceed, or is this America where capitalistic  

            8         motives are used and that's what makes our country 

            9         so great.  Now, speaking about, I used to work in 

           10         private industry; and unless we received a 15 

           11         percent return, the project wouldn't proceed.  You 

           12         know, you've got to have it to justify the 

           13         project, no matter how good it was.  I heard now 

           14         that our electric bills are going to increase.  

           15         Now, this is the absolute disincentive that should 

           16         stall this thing immediately.  If we're going to 

           17         increase the amount of money that people have to 

           18         pay for electric bills, it doesn't work.  Stop.  

           19         We must re-engineer it.  That's what I was told 

           20         when I worked in engineering and research.  I 

           21         don't care how good the idea was.  Financially, it 

           22         had to pass the muster, that 15 percent.  That's 

           23         the old days.  And until we have the commitment 

           24         that our bills will go down 15 percent with this 

           25         project, we're just engineering, so our bills are 
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            1         reduced by 15 percent, you must disapprove this 

            2         project.  Send it back to the drawing boards.  

            3         This has to happen.  There's no discussion about 

            4         that.  

            5                  On the other hand, should you allow some 

            6         lump sum bribe given to Narragansett, whoever, I 

            7         feel that this is so un-American and it's bribery, 

            8         bribe the town, bribe somebody, give a lump sum 

            9         payment to this, we'll do that.  You know, it will 

           10         make all our citizens have to pay more per month.  

           11         And, yes, it's only a dollar, seems like it's only 

           12         a dollar.  Half a million people, a dollar, that's 

           13         quite a bit of money.  And I feel that the state 

           14         of the government today may be just constantly 

           15         finding projects that are only costing us a 

           16         dollar, and these dollars are valuable.  I don't 

           17         think you should allow one more dollar be taken 

           18         away from the people of this state.  It must stop 

           19         somewhere, and I'm kind of asking and maybe 

           20         demanding that you stop this until there's a 15 

           21         percent return.  And there's no stealing of that 

           22         one dollar a month from all our people.  It sounds 

           23         like very little, but it's on top of the many 

           24         dollars and other projects that are in the past 

           25         and the future coming.  Therefore, please help 
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            1         here.  Thank you.

            2                  MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Next speaker is 

            3         David Maar.  

            4                  MR. MAAR:  Can everyone hear me?  Thanks.  

            5         My name is David Maar, and I'm a student at Unity 

            6         College in Maine studying environmental policy and 

            7         sustainable energy management.  But I've grown up 

            8         on the waters of Rhode Island my entire life.  

            9         It's a very special place near and dear to my 

           10         heart, as I'm sure it is to you as well.  

           11                  The current level of CO2 in the 

           12         atmosphere is 398.36 parts per million.  As some 

           13         of you may know, this is a very dangerous level; 

           14         and as a community, if we don't make changes to 

           15         combat climate change, we must get used to the 

           16         norm of more winter storms, Nemo's, and Super 

           17         Storm Sandies.  

           18                  THE REPORTER:  Sir, you really need to 

           19         slow down just a little bit.  I'm having trouble 

           20         hearing you.  Thank you.  

           21                  MR. MAAR:  Rhode Island is in a unique 

           22         position where we can take the lead in combating 

           23         climate disruption.  This offshore wind project 

           24         does more good than harm.  The arguments posed 

           25         against the wind turbines at the CRMC hearing for 
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            1         the intervener status are severely flawed.  

            2                  People have said that wind turbines will 

            3         decrease their property value and this is 

            4         inherently false.  A three-year study by the U.S. 

            5         Department of Energy's Lawrence Berkeley National 

            6         Laboratory concludes that neither the view of wind 

            7         energy facilities nor the distance of the home to 

            8         those facilities were found to have any consistent 

            9         measurable and significant effects on selling 

           10         prices of nearby homes.  No matter how we looked 

           11         at the data, the same results kept coming back -- 

           12         no evidence of widespread impacts.  

           13                  People in the past and present have 

           14         complained about the annoyance of the flicker 

           15         effect and noise.  The Massachusetts Department of 

           16         Environmental Protection in collaboration with the 

           17         Massachusetts Department of Public Health convened 

           18         an independent panel of experts to study the 

           19         potential health impacts of wind turbines.  Their 

           20         result was that they found was insufficient 

           21         evidence that noise from wind turbines directly 

           22         causes health problems or disease.  And for those 

           23         worried about noise affecting the ocean, it is of 

           24         little environmental concern.  And this is from a 

           25         Ph.D. biologist at the University of Liverpool's 
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            1         Center for Marine and Coastal Studies.  Flicker 

            2         effect will not be an issue because the turbine is 

            3         in the ocean three miles away from Block Island.  

            4                  The other argument is that wind turbines 

            5         kill birds.  Yes, wind turbines kill birds, but 

            6         more birds are killed by cats, power lines, 

            7         communication towers, and windows annually per 

            8         year.  People argue that wind turbines will 

            9         decrease tourism, but the opposite is true.  

           10         According to a 2007 University of Delaware study, 

           11         44.5 percent of out-of-state tourists were more 

           12         likely to take a boat tour of a wind facility.  

           13                  Now, in conclusion, some of you may 

           14         wonder why I'm here, coming down in the middle of 

           15         a school day kind of thing, and why I'm standing 

           16         here today, and I have a really simple answer, and 

           17         that's family.  I am blessed to have a grandfather 

           18         who taught me to fish, clam, lobster right out 

           19         there in Point Judith, and I don't want the 

           20         opportunity to be taken from other kids of my 

           21         generation.  It would just be a horrible loss.  

           22         So, on the positive note, we must move forward on 

           23         climate and this can be Rhode Island's first big 

           24         step.

           25                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Kirsten 
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            1         Maar.  

            2                  MS. MAAR:  Thank you very much.  I have a 

            3         tough act to follow after my son, but I'm very 

            4         proud of the fact that where we talk here about 

            5         problems that are associated with wind turbines, 

            6         my son works on them.  He's out there building 

            7         them, working on them.  As a mother, do you think 

            8         I would put my son in harm's way?  Absolutely not.  

            9         So, what you hear tonight is you'll hear it's 

           10         going to decrease property values, we're going to 

           11         get radiation from power lines, we're going to get 

           12         all of these horrible things.  If any of this were 

           13         statistically or significantly true, please look 

           14         at Europe.  Please look at the amount of offshore 

           15         wind that is provided by in Europe, in Denmark.  

           16         Their electric bills are reduced.  There are no 

           17         health effects, tourism increases.  We're facing a 

           18         horrible future in Rhode Island if we look at last 

           19         storms.  If we don't go to renewable energy, if we 

           20         don't adapt to a post-carbon climate future, it's 

           21         not even going to be an issue about a power line 

           22         on the beach because the beach will be gone.  

           23         Those houses will be gone.  And we have an 

           24         opportunity to lead the country.  We're a small 

           25         state.  We can act like a big state and support 
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            1         this wonderful project.  Thank you.

            2                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is John 

            3         Thompson

            4                  MR. THOMPSON:  Thank you.  I'm a resident 

            5         at 20 Narragansett Avenue, so I could see those 

            6         power lines coming in now.  As it turns out, I 

            7         went to the public hearing that the Waterwind had 

            8         in December of 2011 for Narragansett residents 

            9         where they showed us how the power lines, the 

           10         transmission line, will not affect us because it 

           11         will all be going underground.  Everything's going 

           12         to be underground, won't have to worry about it.  

           13         Hurricane wind comes through, you won't have to 

           14         worry about these high tension lines coming down.  

           15         In fact, it turns out, the latest plans had them 

           16         all above ground.  We hear about the (inaudible) 

           17         utility poles, upgraded poles.  To me, making a 

           18         pole larger and more ugly does not upgrade or 

           19         enhance it.  I'm all in favor of renewable energy, 

           20         but it should be done the right way, and the right 

           21         way is not to put high tension wires across the 

           22         most scenic part of Narragansett and destroy the 

           23         view.  Do we want to have to redraw the town seal 

           24         and put the high tension wires in front of 

           25         everything that's going to happen?  That's not how 
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            1         we do things.  

            2                  We talk about Hurricane Sandy and the  

            3         things that it has knocked down.  If you've lived 

            4         in Narragansett the last couple of years, you know 

            5         you can lose power a lot when those lines come 

            6         down, and it's a big issue.  So, I'm very 

            7         concerned about (inaudible) follow through because 

            8         they haven't followed through on what they 

            9         promised us in December of 2011.  They have 

           10         changed the plans, and we signed up for a 

           11         notification if there are any changes or any other 

           12         information they had, they would let us know.  

           13         We've never received notification that this had 

           14         changed.  In fact, we were astounded to find out 

           15         from others that they had changed.  The other 

           16         thing they don't tell you right now is is not just 

           17         (inaudible) lines, there's plans to put up 

           18         possibly a couple hundred more out there in 

           19         another area.  

           20                  So, when you look at the environmental 

           21         impact statement that's now available, it just 

           22         talks about the minimal impact of 5 turbines.  

           23         What's going to happen when there's 200 turbines 

           24         out there?  It's going to have a huge impact so 

           25         that when they talk about minimal impact with just 
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            1         five, multiply that by 40, then you can see what 

            2         the impact is going to be.  So, the minimal impact 

            3         that they're referring to here is really just to 

            4         get a foothold.  So, once they have five in there, 

            5         they can say, oh, well, there wasn't a big impact 

            6         with five, so we'll put another 200 in.  In fact, 

            7         if you actually read the environmental impact 

            8         report, which, in fact, is quite tough reading 

            9         because it's, at least the version I have, is 373 

           10         pages long, does seem quite repetitive in terms of 

           11         saying well, we don't know how this is going to 

           12         affect the fish, we don't know how this is going 

           13         to affect things because it hasn't been studied.  

           14         We don't know how this dredging is going to affect 

           15         marine life, and so we'll find out.  Again, the 

           16         studies started before installation, before 

           17         dredging, and then follow for afterwards.  

           18                  Again, based on the behavior I've seen so 

           19         far, I don't believe that we're necessarily going 

           20         to have the follow-through and actually see what's 

           21         happening, what the impact of these stations are.  

           22         So, again, I'm, as the last two speakers, I'm 

           23         fully in favor of renewable energies sources, but 

           24         it has to be done the right way.  It has to be 

           25         done in an economically sound way and an 
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            1         environmentally sound way.  Just because it's 

            2         renewable doesn't mean it's environmentally sound.  

            3         You can do things really badly, and under the 

            4         guise of renewable energy, that's what (inaudible) 

            5         we're talking about doing renewable energy, which 

            6         everybody's in favor of, but only at the expense 

            7         of Rhode Island rate payers, at the expense of the 

            8         environment out in the ocean, because we don't 

            9         know the impact of the dredging, we don't know the 

           10         impact of putting all these, not just five, but 

           11         hundreds of wind turbines out in the bay that we 

           12         rely on for both the scenic beauty as well as the 

           13         fishing and shellfish and everything else that's 

           14         out there.  

           15                  It is going to be an impact that we don't 

           16         understand right now; and to approve this without 

           17         really understanding it, I think is a huge 

           18         mistake, especially since it is not economically 

           19         sound or else they wouldn't have to rely on the 

           20         Rhode Island taxpayers and rate payers to 

           21         subsidize this project.  And that's exactly what 

           22         it is.  It's not -- it's one thing if it's being 

           23         completely funded by Deepwater Wind.  In fact, 

           24         it's not.  It's being funded by Rhode Island 

           25         taxpayers, and that's something that I don't think 
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            1         is the right thing to do.  If they can't fund this 

            2         on their own, it shouldn't be built.  There are 

            3         other alternatives for renewable energy sources 

            4         beyond wind turbines that don't make economic 

            5         sense, and we have unknown environmental effects.  

            6         Thank you.

            7                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Bob 

            8         Donaldson.  

            9                  MR. DONALDSON:  Good evening.  I have a 

           10         house at 75 Boon Street in Narragansett, and I 

           11         have actually been working on wind power for 

           12         private plants, being an electrical engineer, and 

           13         I've been doing this for like three or four years 

           14         now, and this, to me, is both economically and 

           15         environmentally unfeasible.  I subscribe to MIT 

           16         Technology Review.  Just published.  Be happy to 

           17         send anybody a copy of this if you'd like.  But 

           18         I'd like to quote here from David Victor, an 

           19         energy expert from the University of California in 

           20         San Diego, there's going to be a blood bath in 

           21         wind power, and the reason for that is that it 

           22         just doesn't make economic sense.  

           23                  They are talking -- first of all, we pay 

           24         at the moment depending on whether you have 

           25         local -- a local generator or you're National Grid 
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            1         or one of those, you pay between 4 and 8 cents a 

            2         kilowatt hour for generation.  They are proposing 

            3         to sell this stuff for somewhere around 20 cents, 

            4         18 to 22 cents a kilowatt hour.  So, you're 

            5         talking about at least a three-fold increase in 

            6         the cost of generation.  People just aren't going 

            7         to pay this.  That's too far out of bed.  There 

            8         are alternatives.  I happen to have my whole house 

            9         is filled with LED lights, and my energy bill has 

           10         gone down by approximately 25 percent since I've 

           11         install those.  Dow Chemical is building solar 

           12         shingles, which means you're going to put up a 

           13         panel, just outfit your house with solar shingles 

           14         that has proven to be economically feasible.  They 

           15         are currently building a huge plant in Michigan to 

           16         be able to supply the whole country.  At the 

           17         moment, they supply a few states, and it's working 

           18         out very well.  They're now building a big plant 

           19         to be able to supply more of these.  So, there are 

           20         other ways of providing energy.  

           21                  I have maps, which you can get online.  

           22         This is Rhode Island average -- annual average 

           23         wind speed at a height of 80 meters.  I apologize 

           24         again.  I can give these to the people if you'd 

           25         like to see them.  If you look at Block Island out 
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            1         here, and that's -- there, I believe on the 

            2         southeast corner is where they're proposing to put 

            3         these.  Those are marginally feasible to put wind 

            4         turbines.  These are not the best places in the 

            5         country to put a wind turbine.  And you can see 

            6         like the yellow is completely -- it's half the 

            7         average wind power you need.  So, I looked at this 

            8         in some detail.  

            9                  Environmentally, if you look at what 

           10         they're now talking, I believe 30 megawatts; and 

           11         if you take 30 megawatts and you're running 35 

           12         kilowatt, 35 KV line, that amounts to, I believe, 

           13         somewhere between 5 and 600 amps.  You need to 

           14         look into that.  I don't know exactly what the 

           15         effects on humans are, but our bodies are made up 

           16         of several billion in magnetic di-poles, and 

           17         that's why MRI's work.  So, we may be imposing 

           18         24-7 MRI's on people, and that needs to be looked 

           19         into.  I don't know if that's true.  So, all I 

           20         know is when you have that much current, you have 

           21         a big magnetic field and there's wires, and some 

           22         distance away from them, I know in Massachusetts, 

           23         I play golf on a golf course where there's power 

           24         lines going overhead and the golf clubs in my bag 

           25         rattle.  Truly, it does.  I can tell you it's a 
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            1         newer country club.  

            2                  So, anyway, I think that we need to look 

            3         here.  First, the feasibility of the project is -- 

            4         there's just other methods that are better to do 

            5         renewable energy.  I'm all in favor, but I think 

            6         we need renewable energy.  We need to approach it 

            7         systematically, analytically, and do it correctly, 

            8         and I think this is jumping off a cliff.  We're 

            9         going too fast.  We should -- I'm unaware of any 

           10         results from wind turbines, yet, that demonstrates 

           11         that these are literally a good thing to do.  So, 

           12         where are the test results from projects that 

           13         already exist because there are projects that 

           14         exist, and I don't know where there are any 

           15         results.  Thank you.

           16                  MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Our next speaker 

           17         is Robert Malin.  

           18                  MR. MALIN:  Hello.  I'm a big supporter 

           19         of renewable resources, and I've personally been 

           20         toward a smaller scale, as you've heard a lot of 

           21         people for a lot of reasons.  However, in watching 

           22         this project develop over the years, what I've 

           23         seen is global warming has advanced at a much 

           24         faster rate, and we need to add these industrial 

           25         solutions.  It's not my first pick, but I think 
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            1         it's been picked for us.  And I think that it also 

            2         provides an economic opportunity for Rhode Island 

            3         to become a leader in having the first wind farms 

            4         and developing this technology and build the 

            5         turbines at Quonset Point.  They can build it for 

            6         a submarine.  They can build a turbine for a wind 

            7         turbine.  I think that there are some issues that 

            8         need -- the cable changing from the underground, 

            9         underwater cable to the transmission line.  It's, 

           10         you know, in the air, I think is an outstanding 

           11         issue.  

           12                  However, the economics of it I think are 

           13         unfairly waived for the fossil fuel industries.  

           14         Right now, Senator Whitehouse is working on a fee 

           15         and dividend system where fossil fuels will have 

           16         to pay for their byproduct.  You pay to have your 

           17         garbage picked up.  I pay for mine, but fossil 

           18         fuel industries don't pay for theirs, and that 

           19         plays into the economics of it.  Another thing 

           20         that's changed, as I have been watching this, is 

           21         the Federal Aviation Association reports a 70 

           22         percent -- I'm sorry, a 40 percent increase in 

           23         wind speeds.  So, we're basing some of these 

           24         output on, you know, on historic wind speed 

           25         average, but we're already seeing greater wind 
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            1         speeds, and it makes sense to harvest it.  

            2                  So, for me, I think what's most important 

            3         is to find the right mix, but this needs to be 

            4         fast-tracked, and this symbolic nature of this, of 

            5         this project going ahead in Rhode Island gives us 

            6         an advantage in developing this industry in the 

            7         future.  And we can't forget that our economy, I 

            8         don't tell anybody any surprise, is essentially in 

            9         a shambles.  And this provides an opportunity for 

           10         us to turn this around.  So, with a few 

           11         reservations, things that still need to do, needs 

           12         to be a fair deal for people.  That's been my big 

           13         reservation from the beginning.  I thought it 

           14         should be a public utility project, because when 

           15         we had Narragansett Electric and we paid the bills 

           16         from them, it was a lot less than what we're 

           17         paying through National Grid now.  But that being 

           18         said, I think that it's been rained in, and the 

           19         site -- the siting is very specific to where they 

           20         have those five turbines.  I was there at the 

           21         hearing where they did the siting map.  I don't 

           22         know who it was, a couple of Federal people came 

           23         down or something, and they were very specific 

           24         that to expand beyond this would take the same 

           25         sort of study and expansion isn't automatic.  Of 
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            1         course, their record will speak loudly.  They 

            2         don't perform well, then they're not going to get 

            3         that chance to expand either.  

            4                  So, that's how I feel.  I feel that needs 

            5         an industrial solution.  We need to go forward.  

            6         However, we need to continue to make sure that 

            7         rate payers are covered and, that we need to do 

            8         this in the most environmentally sound way which, 

            9         from what I understand, was the cable -- the 

           10         transmission being a cable, and that's where I 

           11         thought the agreement was.  Thank you.

           12                  MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Next speaker is 

           13         Marie Schopac.  

           14                  MS. SCHOPAC:  I'm going to pass.  

           15                  MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Next speaker is 

           16         Dick Gruchek.  

           17                  MR. GRUCHEK:  Thank you.  My name is Dick 

           18         Gruchek.  I'm a fishing vessel owner out of Point 

           19         Judith, out of Narragansett, Galilee.  If anybody 

           20         doesn't understand it, we have an extensive 

           21         fishing industry locally.  We've been under siege 

           22         from a lot of different directions.  The 

           23         environmental non-Government organizations are 

           24         claiming that we tear up the bottom with our nets, 

           25         so that we should be put out of business.  They 
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            1         claim that we should have marine protected areas 

            2         so that the fish will thrive, and fishermen are 

            3         kept out, the fish will thrive and stop wrecking 

            4         the bottom.  

            5                  Now, to be quite blunt about it, this is 

            6         got to be the worst, most ridiculous idea I have 

            7         ever heard in my life.  You're putting a very 

            8         ancient form of energy production with, I've 

            9         heard, 8,000 moving parts, there are 

           10         transmissions, there is hydraulic oil in the worst 

           11         possible environment known to man, the North 

           12         Atlantic Ocean.  It's either flat calm and fog or 

           13         it's blowing gale.  And usually those things 

           14         happen within the same day.  You start out in the 

           15         morning with flat calm so that the windmills will 

           16         be clamped in.  You go to the southwest breeze 

           17         coming in the afternoons and you're going 25 to 

           18         35, sometimes 40 knots, every day.  As the land 

           19         heats, it sucks in cool ocean air and creates a 

           20         wind flow.  

           21                  Now, I understand that windmills operate 

           22         within a certain range.  I understand that.  One 

           23         of the problems we have is that 3 miles off of 

           24         Block Island are some of the richest fishing 

           25         grounds known to man.  The windmills will tear up 
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            1         the bottom.  The transmission lines will tear up 

            2         the bottom.  There's been no research done in 

            3         terms of the magnetic fields that these 

            4         transmission lines, for instance, carrying 

            5         megawatts of power are going to create, the 

            6         situation will create for the fish, for the 

            7         spawning, and that's all the time.  The initial 

            8         shock of driving sheet pile 250 feet into the 

            9         substraight or concrete pilings, whichever one 

           10         they're going to use, also is going to have a 

           11         devastating effect on our lobster, our Yellow 

           12         Tail, our Cod.  We have cod spawning grounds right 

           13         in the area that these are proposed to be put.  

           14                  So, I can go on for 3 hours.  I've been 

           15         to a lot of meetings from Bureau of Ocean Energy 

           16         Management, the Department of the Interior, the 

           17         Minerals Management fame by the way folks, the 

           18         overseers of the Deepwater Horizon spill, these 

           19         are the people from the Federal Government that 

           20         are pushing this.  I've been to many, many, many 

           21         meetings in New Bedford and Glocester, up and down 

           22         the coast, speaking up for fishing.  Another 

           23         problem we have with this is that the transmission 

           24         lines are going to be buried they said.  Well, 

           25         they're going to bury them 6 feet.  Anybody that's 




                     ALLIED COURT REPORTERS, INC. (401) 946-5500     

�


               
                                                                   25

            1         had any dealing with the ocean bottom out here 

            2         knows that after a storm, the whole thing changes.  

            3         It's dynamic.  It's a dynamic environment where 

            4         the wrecks will actually -- World War II wrecks 

            5         will actually emerge after a storm, the sand 

            6         shifts so much.  So, if you put transmission lines 

            7         6 feet under the mud or under the sand, they're 

            8         going to be exposed in no time flat.  They're not 

            9         going to go over rocks; they're not going to drill 

           10         6 feet into rock to put these transmission lines 

           11         down.  They're going to be exposed.  They're going 

           12         to be flopping around out there, as a matter of 

           13         fact.  We're not going to be able to fish around 

           14         them.  There's going to be a security zone.  

           15         There's going to be an area where we can't go near 

           16         it.  

           17                  The other factor is it's a hazard to 

           18         navigation.  The Coast Guard and the FAA, somebody 

           19         mentioned the FAA, found that the windmills 

           20         interfere with radar reception.  So, coming in in 

           21         a foggy evening when your radar goes out, you're 

           22         in really tough luck.  So, on a lot of different 

           23         levels, I can't speak for all fishermen.  I know a 

           24         lot of my fellow fishermen agree with me that this 

           25         is a very bad idea, extremely bad idea.  I would 
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            1         say if you want to build windmills, subsidize 

            2         homeowners and apartment building owners to 

            3         install smaller units along with photovoltaic 

            4         shingles like somebody was just talking about.  

            5         There are a lot of alternatives than creating 

            6         havoc on some of the best fishing grounds in the 

            7         world.  It's not only five.  They're planning -- 

            8         BOEM, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, is 

            9         talking about 200 windmills right off of 

           10         Nantucket.  Now, Nantucket Shoals is an area 

           11         that -- a large part of it has been closed to 

           12         fishing for 18 years.  We can't even steam through 

           13         there, no less fish in those areas.  That's 

           14         exactly where they're going to put these 

           15         windmills, 600-foot-tall towers.  

           16                  I lived in a 30-story tower in New York 

           17         City, and it was high.  Twice that is going to be 

           18         very, very high; very, very big, very, very wide 

           19         base, and a lot of disturbance.  There's people 

           20         talking about how great they are in Europe.  If 

           21         you read into it a little bit, you find that a lot 

           22         of foundations are crumbling, a lot of the 

           23         Hawaiian wind farms were a debacle.  They're 

           24         falling apart.  These things are maintenance 

           25         intensive.  In fact, Portsmouth, Rhode Island, has 
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            1         a windmill that the city bought, and it's been out 

            2         of commission for 8 or 9 months and they can't fix 

            3         it because it cost $250,000 or something like that 

            4         to put a new transmission in.  So, the maintenance 

            5         is incredible on these.  When you put them in, the 

            6         most hostile environment that you can imagine, 

            7         you're really asking for trouble.  You're asking 

            8         for incredible maintenance costs.  

            9                  Jobs, yeah, there'll be an influx of 

           10         jobs.  There will be a lot of people from Oklahoma 

           11         and Texas coming to build this and then they're 

           12         going to disappear, and then you're going to have 

           13         a skeleton crew flying around in helicopters 

           14         replacing parts.  That's what it's going to be and 

           15         you're going to have 5 people doing that probably.  

           16         I put $1400 worth of zincs in my boat every year 

           17         to keep it from corroding, okay, and that's an 

           18         80-foot vessel.  Can you imagine the corrosion of 

           19         straight current corrosion that's going to be 

           20         happening on these?  The maintenance is going to 

           21         be overwhelming.  

           22                  I don't want to go on and on and on.  

           23         Thank you for listening, and I just want to 

           24         sincerely object to any such project as this.  We 

           25         are all for renewable energy.  Our ocean has 
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            1         warmed incredibly.  We have fish that never got 

            2         above Cape Hatteras, going up to Long Island and 

            3         off Nantucket now because the ocean is warming.  

            4         We could stop using so much oil.  That's a 

            5         possibility, and there are a lot of other projects 

            6         that could be funded to supply some clean energy 

            7         besides wind.  So, thank you very much.

            8                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Jim O'Neil.  

            9                  MR. O'NEIL:  Good evening, gentlemen.  

           10         I'd like to begin by thanking you for providing 

           11         those of us who are interested in this issue the 

           12         opportunity to address you.  Not to be 

           13         cantankerous, like I can be on occasion, but as I 

           14         understand it, the purpose of this evening's 

           15         public comment opportunity is to address 

           16         Deepwater's application for water quality 

           17         certification in accord with the rules and regs. 

           18         for dredging.  So, it seems to me that while I 

           19         certainly appreciate the opportunity for us to 

           20         talk from a philosophical event, and a factual 

           21         event, like the gentleman before me just did, but 

           22         it seems to me that what is before us is whether 

           23         or not they should be permitted to dredge.  I 

           24         think that's why we're here.  If I'm wrong, I 

           25         stand to be corrected.  
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            1                  Now, my position, obviously, is I'm in 

            2         opposition to the Deepwater project in its 

            3         entirety, and my position this evening is that it 

            4         is premature for DEM to entertain an application 

            5         for a dredging permit when we don't know exactly 

            6         where that dredging will take place.  There has 

            7         been no decision made by the Town of Narragansett 

            8         with respect to the proposal to bring a cable 

            9         ashore at the south end of the town beach.  I know 

           10         about every grain of sand in that area.  I used to 

           11         be a lifeguard about six years there, and when we 

           12         talk about shifting sand, believe me they do 

           13         shift, but we don't know if it's going to be 

           14         there.  We don't know whether we have overhead 

           15         telephone poles that are going to be extended 10 

           16         feet in the air here in Narragansett.  We don't 

           17         know if we're going to have a substation as 

           18         proposed next to the senior center down by Sprague 

           19         Park.  We don't know any of that at this juncture.  

           20                  So, obviously I have the greatest respect 

           21         for DEM.  I think we worked together before, and I 

           22         think you all understand that in my other life, I 

           23         served as the environmental advocate for the 

           24         state, but what I don't know is this issue is 

           25         right at this juncture.  So, I'll put that before 
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            1         you as food for thought for openers.  Then if I 

            2         could move on to the thought that I don't know the 

            3         weight and dimensions of the cable itself, let 

            4         alone the location, I'm sure you probably do know 

            5         the weight and dimension of it, but I did hear 

            6         some conversation when certain parties inquired as 

            7         to the disposition of this cable after the 15 or 

            8         20 years of shelf life of the project and 

            9         turbines, what would become of the cable, and it 

           10         was indicated that the cable would remain in the 

           11         ocean floor.  When the question why was posed 

           12         would it remain on the ocean floor, I understand 

           13         that the response was, and I can't tell you who 

           14         responded in this fashion, I apologize for that, 

           15         it was the industry standard to leave steel cable 

           16         on the  ocean floor.  I'm sure there's no one at 

           17         this table that agrees with that.  I don't know 

           18         what the industry standard would be because this 

           19         is somewhat of a situation of first impression.  

           20         We haven't had a project of this nature to 

           21         entertain before.  But what will happen is, in 

           22         fact, the cable has to be removed.  The cost of 

           23         that will be on the backs of the rate payers.  And 

           24         there's been much talk of the cost.  

           25                  I'd like to refer you to the PUC 
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            1         hearings, and this was on the record at the PUC 

            2         hearings.  This project will result in 

            3         above-market cost to the rate payers over the 

            4         20-year period of the project totaling $490 

            5         million.  That is going to cause the 38 Studios to 

            6         look like a day at the beach.  $490 million cost 

            7         to the rate payers over a 20-year period.  

            8                  The gentleman who testified, 

            9         Mr. Donaldson, the engineer, he certainly had 

           10         wonderful facts to share with us all.  We 

           11         appreciate those facts.  Somewhat parallel the 

           12         fact that I received when I first got into this 

           13         issue in February of 2010 from a gentleman named 

           14         Roy Bonner, B-O-N-N-E-R.  He was on Governor 

           15         Carcieri's stakeholders' committee.  He's a 

           16         professor of engineering at Brown University.  

           17         He's now retired in Little Compton where he heads 

           18         up a coalition opposing the construction of wind 

           19         turbines in that area.  He's an incredible source 

           20         of information, but his thoughts definitely 

           21         parallel those shared with you tonight by 

           22         Mr. Donaldson; and Dick Gruchek, there's no one 

           23         that can say it better.  I mean, you think to 

           24         yourselves, if we've ever given this $60 million 

           25         tax credit scam, scheme, whatever you want to 
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            1         characterize it as, to the fishing industry, give 

            2         them an opportunity to carry on with the great 

            3         tradition the fishing fleet enjoys here in 

            4         Narragansett, Point Judith, and I know, I packed 

            5         fish at the co-op when I was 16 and 17 years old.  

            6         That was a long time ago.  We have a reunion every 

            7         year, as a matter of fact.  Imagine if they ever 

            8         got this type of economic assistance.  

            9                  Now, the idea of climate change, there's 

           10         not one of us in here, I don't think, that is -- 

           11         that doesn't consider themselves an 

           12         environmentalist.  And I think it's wonderful that 

           13         that young man from Unity College and his mom 

           14         could speak towards the issue.  And I certainly 

           15         commend them and I appreciate their thoughts.  But 

           16         we need to know all.  

           17                  Sources of energies purchased by National 

           18         Grid don't consist of fossil fuels.  We all know 

           19         the majority of energy purchased by the Grid is in 

           20         the form of natural gas.  We don't use oil.  

           21         Everybody talks about oil dependency.  That's not 

           22         the case.  That's not where we get our energy 

           23         from.  The majority -- when we say the majority, 

           24         we're talking about 78 percent.  The other idea is 

           25         there was talk about flicker effect.  Well, I can 
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            1         say when you're 3 miles offshore, I really have to 

            2         address the issue of flicker effect because there 

            3         is an organization in Charlestown, citizens' 

            4         group, I mean two folks have come here today, 

            5         hopefully they address you.  They had a guest 

            6         speaker three weeks ago from Falmouth, Mass, where 

            7         they're tearing down the turbines because of the 

            8         flicker effect.  The adverse effect the turbines 

            9         have had on people's health, not to mention the 

           10         value of their property; but it's resulting in the 

           11         turbines being torn down.  

           12                  Now, lastly, if I may, there was some 

           13         representation in Europe, these are the concept of 

           14         the day.  Well, just a week or two ago, the United 

           15         Kingdom, which we know is not in Europe, it's the 

           16         United Kingdom, but the United Kingdom has banned 

           17         any and all wind turbines being constructed on 

           18         land.  So, Europe, United Kingdom, are now 

           19         catching up with this concept that this is not 

           20         feasible, not to mention that those who are 

           21         dependent on turbines and wind in Europe, they 

           22         have socialized programs.  This is not a 

           23         socialized program that we participate in in the 

           24         United States of America last time I checked.  

           25                  Now, the other thing, I leave you with 
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            1         this.  We're talking about towers that are 650 

            2         feet tall.  Can you imagine the stress that the 

            3         ocean floor is going to sustain when the pilings 

            4         are constructed to support those turbines?  I 

            5         don't think we can ever be in a position to even 

            6         measure the negative impact at this juncture.  And 

            7         lastly, I'd like to close by providing you a 

            8         document I think you probably already have, and I 

            9         know Mike Elliott from the Army Corps. of 

           10         Engineers, I'd like to thank him.  He's been so 

           11         cooperative in passing on information as you folks 

           12         are as well.  But he received a communication from 

           13         the United States Department of the Interior.  I 

           14         don't know, Mr. Gagnon, whether you or your 

           15         colleagues have received that.  I'd like to pass 

           16         it on to you, but I'll take the liberty of doing 

           17         so at this time.  It talks about -- I'm going to 

           18         cut my comments short, but it talks about the 

           19         applicant seeking a right-of-way permit from the 

           20         Bureau of Ocean Energy Management for activities 

           21         in placing of a submarine cable in several other 

           22         continental shelves waters.  And it talks about 

           23         National Park Service and how they mandate to 

           24         conserve the scenery and natural and historic 

           25         objects and wildlife here and provide for the 
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            1         enjoyment, let's say, a matter of needs, to leave 

            2         them unimpaired for enjoyment of future 

            3         generations.  

            4                  Importantly, the National Park Service 

            5         urge the Army Corps., the BOEM, to fully analyze a 

            6         no-action alternative for this proposal, pursue 

            7         identification of a full range of reasonable 

            8         alternatives, not rely too heavily on the content 

            9         of the E.R. assessing impacts on this project.  

           10         That may have been done.  I don't know.  I mean, I 

           11         may not be up to speed on it because it's 

           12         something dated February 8, 2018 (sic), but I 

           13         think it's worthy for you to have in your docket.  

           14         May I approach?  Thank you once again the 

           15         opportunity and I'd like to thank my colleagues 

           16         because I think most of my thoughts came from 

           17         their body of knowledge.  So, I don't take 

           18         ownership for all my thoughts.  Thank you.

           19                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Maggie 

           20         Delia.  

           21                  MS. DELIA:  Thank you for the opportunity 

           22         to speak.  Thank you for being here.  My name is 

           23         Maggie Delia.  I've been -- I'm a homeowner in New 

           24         Jersey and Rhode Island.  I have been working to 

           25         attempt to, how I like to put it is to preserve 
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            1         Block Island and preserve what we know, what it 

            2         feels like to be in our natural surroundings for 

            3         the past five years.  My husband and I were 

            4         interveners with the PUC in Docket 4111 when the 

            5         first piece of legislation was introduced to have 

            6         Deepwater have this contract.  It was turned down 

            7         because it was not commercially reasonable.  It 

            8         was not appealed.  Deepwater merely had to go back 

            9         to the former governor and the legislature to get 

           10         a new bill written.  I have to say I was naive 

           11         about how things happened around our Government 

           12         until I got involved with this.  I didn't know 

           13         that a former chief of staff of the Governor could 

           14         become eventually the CEO of the preferred 

           15         developer Deepwater Wind until I got involved with 

           16         this.  I didn't know that we could be championing 

           17         Deepwater Wind who has directors who were formally 

           18         with Enron, GE, former governors, I think, you 

           19         know, and so I thought a lot about what I could 

           20         say here, and I think what I really want to say is 

           21         I talked to a lot of people over five years.  I 

           22         talked to our current governor.  I've talked to 

           23         people who work with Deepwater Wind.  I've talked 

           24         to town council members in Block Island and here 

           25         in Narragansett, talked to National Park Service, 
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            1         I've talked to Rhode Island Historic Preservation, 

            2         I've talked to the PUC, I've talked to lots and 

            3         lots of people.  And one of the things that I have 

            4         noticed is how much resignation we live in.  And 

            5         how much each of us don't know that we could be 

            6         the person that has the future be different.  

            7                  I've had also the opportunity to meet 

            8         some of those great people along this five-year 

            9         journey.  Do you know, in my good moments, I 

           10         really picture that we can have a future where 

           11         going to the beach really is still the shared 

           12         experience and when you say it, people know what 

           13         you mean.  They don't picture industrial wind 

           14         turbines, not just here in Block Island, not just 

           15         in Deepwater projects, but all along our coast.  

           16         The future is really in our hands, and I think 

           17         it's in our hands in a way that's it's never been 

           18         in our hands before.  And, you know, when I listen 

           19         to some of the people talk about the studies that 

           20         shows there's no impact on health, the study that 

           21         shows there's no impact on real estate, there are 

           22         a lot of US studies and there's a lot of pressure 

           23         from the US Government to have this thing happen.  

           24                  I'm old enough to remember when Monsanto 

           25         and Dupont were pesticide companies and chemical 
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            1         companies before they took over our food, and no 

            2         one asked us if we wanted that to happen.  It just 

            3         happened.  I thank God that there are people who 

            4         care enough about what is happening in their 

            5         backyard, that they're getting involved in this 

            6         issue because we didn't get this chance with our 

            7         food, but we're going to get the chance with wind 

            8         turbines, and we're getting a chance with natural 

            9         gas, which I also think is horrendous.  And I 

           10         don't know what the answer is, and I am an 

           11         environmentalist.  I have worked as an 

           12         environmentalist since my father brought my 

           13         sisters and I on walks since we were little kids, 

           14         and help preserve 10,000 acres in the pine 

           15         already -- I won't get into that -- in New Jersey.  

           16         But there's something really wrong, and we can be 

           17         resigned, and I ask you to really do what you can 

           18         do to have something happen because you say so, 

           19         because right now it is lobbyists and corporations 

           20         and hedge funds and all of those people who are 

           21         determining and designing our future.  And we are 

           22         just visitors here.  

           23                  I met a farmer once.  There was an event 

           24         on his farm and people were thanking him for 

           25         sharing, you know, having that event on his farm, 
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            1         and he said, you know, this is not my farm.  I am 

            2         merely the holder of it for maybe not even that 

            3         many more years.  So, this ocean does not belong 

            4         to Rhode Island or to the Governor or to Deepwater 

            5         Wind or to even any of us; but we do have the 

            6         opportunity to preserve it.  We have the 

            7         opportunity to make it important to feel connected 

            8         to the places that we live in.  We have plenty of 

            9         strip malls and parking lots and highways.  Our 

           10         oceans are really, really important, and they're 

           11         not just important for us, they're important for 

           12         the fishermen because I can only imagine what it's 

           13         like to wake up every day knowing the forces that 

           14         you're dealing with to just have the job that you 

           15         have all your life, and to care about future 

           16         generations having that job.  So, I ask you to 

           17         know that I know that you and you and you and I 

           18         and you and all of us are someone who can have 

           19         something happen different about this and does 

           20         not -- we do not need five, 660-foot wind turbines 

           21         as a demonstration project to investors that's 

           22         going to cost people half a billion dollars in 

           23         over market rates.  If we came in and said, 

           24         listen, everyone in Rhode Island has to buy a car 

           25         and you have to buy it for $30,000 more than the 
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            1         people in New York, no one -- it won't even 

            2         happen.  And we're thinking about this.  

            3                  So, thank you for the opportunity.  Thank 

            4         you for listening, and thank you for being someone 

            5         whose life is about making a difference about the 

            6         world that we live in.  

            7                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Maureen 

            8         Oreglado.  

            9                  MS. OREGLADO:  Good evening.  Thank you 

           10         for having this opportunity tonight for people to 

           11         come and share different or same views or points 

           12         of view.  I don't live in Narragansett, but I have 

           13         two grandchildren that I absolutely adore who do 

           14         live here; but I want to give you just a little 

           15         perspective of why I am here.  I don't have a 

           16         scientific background, but my whole life has been 

           17         in education.  I've been a teacher of all grade 

           18         levels and school administrator for a thousand 

           19         years.  

           20                  I live in Charlestown with my husband, 

           21         and we have been daily for the last two and a half 

           22         years fighting the installation of two industrial 

           23         size turbines in a residential neighborhood.  You 

           24         might be sitting here saying tonight why are you 

           25         here.  We're fighting ocean turbines, but I'm here 
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            1         because I think we've learned some valuable 

            2         lessons along the way that might overlap and might 

            3         help you in your journey.  

            4                  We started out, and I heard one gentleman 

            5         who got up and left right after he spoke, but he 

            6         urged you to fast track this project, and I'll 

            7         tell you the hairs on the back of my neck stood up 

            8         because that's exactly what happened in 

            9         Charlestown.  It was a wink and a nod and let's 

           10         help our developer friend.  Things do not go 

           11         through the same process that you or I would have 

           12         to go through if we wanted to put a two-foot 

           13         extension on our deck.  Fast track, fast track, 

           14         fast track, hurry up, let's get this going with 

           15         stimulus money.  I can only get to the roof of 

           16         this town hall and tell you to put on the brakes.  

           17         Go slowly.  There's no big rush.  Make sure you 

           18         know what you're getting into.  We found tons of 

           19         research, and I'm going to tell you when you read 

           20         it, things -- do not believe everything that you 

           21         read.  Be critical readers.  Follow the money.  

           22         Lots of the research projects are funded by 

           23         lobbyist who are paid handsome amounts of money to 

           24         produce reports for the pro wind industry.  We 

           25         have people in our neighborhood said, Maureen, 
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            1         this is a done deal.  There's nothing we can do.  

            2         Please, you can do something.  We are a very 

            3         small, small group that has fought this project 

            4         developer for 2 1/2 years through the courts, got 

            5         injunctions, because there wasn't enough evidence 

            6         to really make us feel comfortable that we were 

            7         going to be safe.  

            8                  I didn't really come prepared to speak 

            9         tonight, but I wrote crazy notes while people were 

           10         speaking, and I'm just going to ask to indulge you 

           11         and I'll try to go as quickly as I can.  We did 

           12         have a gentleman from Falmouth, Massachusetts, 

           13         come to our library a few weeks ago.  He had an 

           14         overflow crowd, standing room only, in the 

           15         library.  He told us things that we didn't know.  

           16         He said because they were town-operated turbines, 

           17         they were able, after two or three years, to get 

           18         them to shut them down during evening times; but 

           19         there's one privately owned turbine that runs 

           20         24-7, because that's where they make their money.  

           21         The two town turbines, who are now only operating 

           22         12 hours a day, they're not even breaking even to 

           23         get some money back to the town for the electric 

           24         rates.  

           25                  People have had a myriad of health 
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            1         issues, and you can poo-poo them.  They brought in 

            2         independent doctors who initially said these 

            3         people from Falmouth, they must be crazy.  To a 

            4         person, they have decided that they are not crazy.  

            5         They are valid.  There have been attempted 

            6         suicides.  When we visited Neil Anderson, he's a 

            7         builder, he's been a builder for 35 years, you can 

            8         imagine a builder, built a beautiful home for 

            9         himself and his family.  His wife lives upstairs 

           10         in this gorgeous home in a small guest bedroom 

           11         from 7 in the morning until 7 at night with a 

           12         machine that produces white noise to try to keep 

           13         her from literally going crazy, listening to the 

           14         effects of the turbines.  

           15                  They have neighbors who just walked out 

           16         and abandoned their homes, beautiful homes.  One 

           17         woman left her home, gave the key to a realtor for 

           18         probably three-quarters of a million dollar home, 

           19         left a very lucrative florist business there, all 

           20         her resources were tied up in this little house.  

           21         She bought a tiny little fixer-upper, 3 or 4 towns 

           22         away because that's all she could afford.  

           23                  Think about the depreciation on your home 

           24         values.  I know this young man from the university 

           25         said that's not true.  I would offer you a 
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            1         different perspective.  My husband and I have been 

            2         in constant contact with the very nationally 

            3         recognized firm, high credential, McCann, 

            4         M-C-C-A-N-N, out of Chicago.  They've done 

            5         national studies.  People within a couple mile 

            6         radius of a wind turbine, your home values will 

            7         start to depreciate by 25 percent.  I don't know 

            8         about you, but I don't want to lose 25 percent off 

            9         the value of my home.  People in Falmouth have 

           10         been forced to leave.  Who's going to buy their 

           11         home?  If it wasn't good enough for them to stay, 

           12         and they're having serious health issues, the 

           13         homes are sitting with for sale signs on them.  

           14         Nobody wants to buy them.  Would you buy that 

           15         house?  I wouldn't buy that house.  

           16                  One of the things that surprised us the 

           17         night, we had Neil Anderson at the library, we had 

           18         a happy accident.  There was a guest in the 

           19         audience, and he's a professor of ocean 

           20         Engineering from the University of Rhode Island.  

           21         His name is Dr. Peter Stapanian (phonetic).  He 

           22         lives in Westerly.  His area of expertise is 

           23         acoustics, and he said to people somebody can come 

           24         in with a machine to measure decibel levels.  Is 

           25         it within the acceptable range or not.  They can 




                     ALLIED COURT REPORTERS, INC. (401) 946-5500     

�


               
                                                                   45

            1         measure the flicker.  But the thing that is the 

            2         most deadly, is very, very expensive to measure 

            3         and in most cases doesn't get measured and that's 

            4         the infrasonic pressure from the turbines.  It's 

            5         unseen.  It's unheard.  It's undetected.  It 

            6         invades homes and it invades bodies.  That is what 

            7         makes people on the Cape ill.  That's what's 

            8         making the people on the Cape sick, and I see 

            9         people in the audience laughing.  You can laugh.  

           10         You can go and do your own research.  You can go 

           11         down and talk to them.  I didn't laugh at your 

           12         presentation.  I don't think these people's lives 

           13         are anything to laugh about.  

           14                  He talked about these impulses.  He made 

           15         an analogy of having your car radio going and you 

           16         hear that thumping noise and over and over and 

           17         over again from the car stereo.  He said you can't 

           18         shut the windows, you can't shut your doors.  It 

           19         invades.  His neighbor, the night before he came 

           20         to speak to us, found 17 dead bats in his backyard 

           21         because the infrasonic pressure makes the bats' 

           22         lungs implode.  That has been scientifically 

           23         documented.  People talked about having good winds 

           24         here on the coast of Rhode Island.  The best wind 

           25         for wind energy are on the plains in the middle of 
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            1         the United States.  They're not on the West Coast.  

            2         They're not on the East Coast.  We talked to a 

            3         gentleman from Deepwater.  He said he can only run 

            4         the wind turbines at 47 percent capacity because 

            5         of the wind.  When the winds are high, they have 

            6         to shut them down.  We had someone in our town 

            7         say, you know what, damn it, if we had those wind 

            8         turbines up, I wouldn't have lost all the meat in 

            9         my freezer during Hurricane Sandy.  I want to 

           10         scream.  This lady thinks she has a plug from her 

           11         refrigerator onto the turbine?  No.  And when the 

           12         winds are high, they shut the turbines down.  So, 

           13         it doesn't matter that we have high winds during 

           14         the hurricane because they shut the thing down.  

           15                  The Deepwater project, that's going to be 

           16         a demo project.  If that's successful, they told 

           17         us, spoke to the gentleman, they're going to put 

           18         hundreds out there off the shore.  Maybe one won't 

           19         affect somebody's health, maybe two won't affect 

           20         somebody's health.  I don't know what the health 

           21         implications are, but I will tell you to go 

           22         slowly.  Do your homework.  

           23                  We saw something on line the other day, 

           24         two scientists from France back in the 1960's who 

           25         work in a laboratory and they were working on 




                     ALLIED COURT REPORTERS, INC. (401) 946-5500     

�


               
                                                                   47

            1         energy.  And as they were working, one man said to 

            2         his colleague, you know, I'm getting a headache, 

            3         and I'm getting light-headed.  I'm going to step 

            4         out to get some fresh air.  The colleague said I'm 

            5         having the same thing.  They went outside.  The 

            6         symptoms abated.  They came back in, they started 

            7         up again.  They did that back and forth a couple 

            8         of times.  Then they noticed the coffee that was 

            9         sitting in the coffee cup was undulating like the 

           10         waves out at Narragansett Beach.  That's when they 

           11         came up with the infrasonic studies and what they 

           12         would be doing and how that energy is emitted 

           13         without you even knowing it, hearing it, smelling 

           14         it, seeing it, or feeling it.  

           15                  I can't implore you enough.  Do not sell 

           16         your souls to the devil to get 15 percent off your 

           17         electric bill.  Is it worth your health?  I don't 

           18         know what the implications are, but I'll tell you 

           19         something, I'll be dammed I'm not going to use my 

           20         four-and-a-half-year and 18-month-old 

           21         grandchildren as a guinea pig to see what the 

           22         implications are going to be for them five or ten 

           23         years down the road.  There's not enough science 

           24         out there yet.  What's the big rush?  If it causes 

           25         harm to one person, it shouldn't happen in the 
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            1         town.  It shouldn't happen anywhere.  But the 

            2         government is pushing this, pushing this, pushing 

            3         this.  If it's so wonderful, take the time, do the 

            4         homework, get all your studies done.  The young 

            5         man who talked about the Massachusetts Department 

            6         of Health report, there's insufficient evidence in 

            7         there and they do acknowledge that.  Maybe people 

            8         don't know it.  That report was funded by the wind 

            9         industry.  They believe the research is not 

           10         substantiated by peer reviews.  There's a 

           11         McPherson study that totally rebuts the whole 

           12         Massachusetts report.  There's several European 

           13         nations now that have moratoriums on turbines, 

           14         mostly because of the health implications.  And 

           15         they decided that there is not a good economic 

           16         return on their investment.  

           17                  I guess I would ask all of you who are in 

           18         the decision making for this whether it happens or 

           19         doesn't happen for Narragansett or Rhode Island, 

           20         I'm not eager to have Rhode Island be a leader in 

           21         this because I think that there's too many 

           22         unanswered questions yet, and I would ask you to 

           23         stop and think what is your legacy going to be to 

           24         this town?  Are you going to allow these monsters 

           25         to go on the water only to find out later with the 
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            1         additional research this was a bad deal for Rhode 

            2         Island, or are you going to take your time and 

            3         protect the legacy for your children, your 

            4         grandchildren and other generations to come.  

            5                  Thank you for the time.  

            6                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Abel 

            7         Collins.  Okay.  Next speaker Mike Delia.  

            8                  MR. DELIA:  Good evening.  Thank you for 

            9         the opportunity to be with you and speak tonight.  

           10         I appreciate it.  I'm a property owner with my 

           11         wife and family on Block Island, and we've been 

           12         active in this conversation with Deepwater since 

           13         they first arrived on Block Island about four or 

           14         five years ago.  So, essentially, I'm opposed to 

           15         the project for quite a few reasons, many of them 

           16         I think from having done the reading I've done, 

           17         fall under the jurisdictions of DEM.  Some of my 

           18         comments, and poignantly so, are outside the 

           19         jurisdiction and the impact of that they're 

           20         outside the jurisdiction, leads me to another 

           21         request.  I was expecting -- I know the Army 

           22         Corps. of Engineers is here tonight, but at this 

           23         point, the Army Corps. is not agreeing to have a 

           24         public hearing for items that are outside your 

           25         jurisdiction, outside the CRMC'S jurisdiction and 
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            1         certainly outside their jurisdiction.  So, 

            2         there's -- Burton Russell was a philosopher who 

            3         created an analogy associated with the 

            4         burden of proof.  It's called Russell's teapot, 

            5         with the scenario of which he claimed that there 

            6         was a teapot, a cosmic tea pot spinning around the 

            7         sun between here and Mars and you couldn't see it.  

            8         You couldn't prove it wasn't true.  Now, it was 

            9         absurd to consider that that was true, but the 

           10         burden of proof was on him to prove it was true 

           11         because it was so absurd.  

           12                  In case of a negative, it's impossible to 

           13         prove it's true and in the case of Deepwater Wind, 

           14         the burden of proof is moved from Deepwater Wind 

           15         to me, who's already here, to my family who are 

           16         here, the landowners, the residents of Block 

           17         Island and Rhode Island.  The -- so proving a 

           18         negative is impossible.  However, my conversation 

           19         specifically particularly surrounds the notion of 

           20         property value, real estate value, the impact of a 

           21         project of this nature on a piece of real estate 

           22         in a, I don't know how you call it, high-end, 

           23         beautiful pristine environment.  Thirty years ago 

           24         when we came to Block Island, it was a blue color 

           25         town, where we could afford to buy a piece of land 
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            1         there.  So, we were blessed and lucky.  We have 14 

            2         acres of land on the ocean.  Our right-of-way to 

            3         our property, we have two ways in, it goes through 

            4         the southeast light.  Our right-of-way is under 

            5         the light.  The only thing between the lighthouse 

            6         and the ocean is us, and the only thing between us 

            7         and the Azores is the ocean.  Our -- a couple of 

            8         references to the people who spoke earlier, and I 

            9         appreciate the Berkeley Lab report on real estate 

           10         for siting.  It's been Ben Hoen, the lead author 

           11         for the Department of Energy is probably -- is 

           12         considered one of the top, if not the top expert 

           13         on the impact of real estate values, as a 

           14         theoretical practice, not as a guy who's spending 

           15         money to buy a piece of land.  

           16                  So, I read his report, and he made a 

           17         couple of points.  One was that ocean front 

           18         property increases value of a piece of property.  

           19         It's measurable.  The earlier speaker made a 

           20         comment that there's no evidence that real estate 

           21         values go down after the installation of a wind 

           22         farm.  In fact, according to Hoen's report, there 

           23         is no evidence that they go down afterwards 

           24         because the study that they did was entirely done 

           25         on interior farms and homes.  Interior of the US 
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            1         is not anywhere near the coastlines.  

            2                  So, the data that they have came from the 

            3         sale of the homes that were sold in areas near 

            4         wind farms.  They may have measured hundreds of 

            5         yards, half a mile, a mile, two miles, three 

            6         miles, different impacts of those things.  So, it 

            7         was curious for me to impact because I'm a buyer 

            8         and, you know, if you put a pair of bananas -- go 

            9         to the store and there's a rotten pair and a 

           10         beautiful pair, more than likely you're going to 

           11         buy the beautiful pair and ignore the other one.  

           12         That's how I feel about Bayonne, New Jersey, and, 

           13         you know, the variety of industrial structures 

           14         that we deal with in our day-to-day lives.  We 

           15         don't even see them anymore.  So, I called and 

           16         conducted an interview with him and asked him some 

           17         questions about the nature of his data and the 

           18         nature of the work that he did.  And so he assured 

           19         me that they have not done any research around 

           20         homes that had ocean front value.  He considered 

           21         it pristine, but he had no data on that.  He 

           22         admitted that the real impact, the normal impact 

           23         about the impact on real estate values is after 

           24         the fact.  Since there aren't any wind turbines in 

           25         ocean front property, then he's not a buyer.  He 
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            1         cannot make an estimate in that.  The problem with 

            2         that is the burden of proof in this regard is upon 

            3         me.  

            4                  The CRMC, who has an obligation under 

            5         their regulations to conduct a study on 

            6         socio-economic impacts, had chosen to decline our 

            7         request to intervene in their process to entertain 

            8         any socio-economic impacts.  The Army Corps. of 

            9         Engineers, at this point, has not chosen to have a 

           10         hearing.  And they are actually, in their 

           11         jurisdiction, able to conduct such a hearing that 

           12         will include socio-economic impacts.  

           13                  So, my assertion, I'm asserting this 

           14         publicly for the record that permitting this 

           15         project amounts to a taking.  The Rhode Island 

           16         Supreme Court, about four years ago, I have 

           17         citations for anything that I say, I have 

           18         citations that I would be glad to present to the 

           19         RIDEM.  What is it?  It's not a commission?  

           20         Department?  Yes.  If you -- so -- if you'd like 

           21         to receive one, I can do that.  But under the US 

           22         Constitution and Rhode Island Constitution, taking 

           23         property requires a process, due process, for 

           24         property owners.  The Rhode Island Constitution -- 

           25         before I get to the Rhode Island Constitution, the 
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            1         Rhode Island Supreme Court four years ago granted 

            2         relief to a plaintiff who sued someone for 

            3         securing a default in an unobstructed view.  So, 

            4         the Rhode Island Supreme Court gave credibility 

            5         and financial relief to someone who claimed that 

            6         his unobstructed pristine view was property.  So, 

            7         although in Rhode Island certain agencies and 

            8         Rhode Island Department of environmental 

            9         Management is one of them that has authority to 

           10         proceed with condemnation to take condemnation 

           11         proceedings on property, my assertion is that 

           12         Deepwater's project has an impact on not only my 

           13         property, but Southeast Lighthouse's property, 

           14         that Deepwater has not proposed mitigation to 

           15         anyone except perhaps the Southeast Light, and 

           16         mitigation, I'm assuming, I'm guessing only 

           17         through conversations I've had with people in 

           18         different associations, historic, and the 

           19         likelihood that the mitigation -- Deepwater is 

           20         going to propose to find something like paying for 

           21         a museum, paying for a museum at the Southeast 

           22         Light doesn't mitigate the fact that there are 

           23         going to be five Washington monument size towers 

           24         sitting 2 miles offshore.  So, although you have 

           25         the authority to do that, you haven't done so.  
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            1         RIDEM has not started condemnation proceedings.  

            2                  Deepwater Wind has not acknowledged the 

            3         financial impact in its environmental assessment.  

            4         Deepwater Wind has not offered mitigation to the 

            5         impact.  The Army Corps. of Engineers, which has 

            6         regulatory obligation to both review the 

            7         socio-economic impact as well as advise Deepwater 

            8         Wind objections to those impacts.  Now, if the 

            9         Army Corps. of Engineers was here as a joint 

           10         sponsor of this, they could listen to that with 

           11         their jurisdictional power that they are actually 

           12         obligated to notify Deepwater Wind of this 

           13         complaint.  They have not done so.  And since they 

           14         have no standing in this hearing, I'm asking you, 

           15         I'm pointing to that is missing from the entire 

           16         proceeding.  So, my assertion is that permitting 

           17         this project is a taking.  It's an unauthorized 

           18         taking.  It's not lawful, and it's not consistent 

           19         with Rhode Island General Law for you to take our 

           20         property, authorize and permit the taking of our 

           21         property with proper procedures.  That would be to 

           22         begin a condemnation procedure as warranted by 

           23         your charter.  So, my English may not be so good, 

           24         I'm not an attorney, but I read a lot.  

           25                  So, the burden of proof is on me that 
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            1         there's no financial impact.  The burden of proof 

            2         belongs on Deepwater Wind.  Deepwater Wind's CEO 

            3         claimed how they are part of the Block Island 

            4         community for the past four, maybe five years.  

            5         I'm probably misquoting, paraphrasing.  I've been 

            6         adopted -- Block Island 30 years.  I own land.  My 

            7         children, every one of them had their first job on 

            8         Block Island.  I'm not an islander.  Ask anyone 

            9         who is an islander.  

           10                  So, I have two requests.  One is that 

           11         you -- I have to read this.  I apologize.  I typed 

           12         all this stuff up, and I can't read my own 

           13         handwriting.  So, one is if you're going to permit 

           14         this project, before you do so, that you start 

           15         condemnation proceedings against my property and 

           16         property of anyone else affected.  The second 

           17         request is that you request the Army Corps. of 

           18         Engineers to hold public hearings on matters that 

           19         are not within the jurisdiction of Rhode Island 

           20         Department of Energy, Environmental Management, in 

           21         order to have those significant substantive 

           22         objections heard in public environment, with an 

           23         opportunity to examine both Deepwater Wind's 

           24         evidence and the evidence of the hundreds of 

           25         people and organizations who objected and 
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            1         submitted timely substantive objections to these 

            2         two projects.  

            3                  Thank you very much.  I appreciate your 

            4         time and the opportunity to have my voice spoken 

            5         in this great nation that needs our voices heard.  

            6         So, thank you very much.

            7                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Terry 

            8         Tierney.  

            9                  MR. TIERNEY:  Good evening, and thank you 

           10         for the opportunity to offer comments on the 

           11         Deepwater Winds proposed dredging activities, and 

           12         its request for issuance of a water quality 

           13         certification under the RIDEM and regulations for 

           14         dredging and the management of dredging materials, 

           15         and state water quality regulations.  

           16                  First, I want to commend RIDEM for 

           17         providing this basic right to comment at a public 

           18         hearing on an unprecedented request to develop 

           19         publicly owned coastal resources for private 

           20         benefit.  As you know, the United States Army 

           21         Corps. of Engineers has not provided such 

           22         opportunities for a public hearing with respect to 

           23         Deepwater Wind's plan to develop Federally 

           24         controlled coastal resources.  And the Corps. of 

           25         Engineers apparently sees no need to even allow 
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            1         the public to comment at a public hearing on such 

            2         plans before it decides whether to grant 

            3         permission to dredge these Federal waters under 

            4         the Clean Water Act.  

            5                  The Army Corps of Engineers' actions in 

            6         this regard are nothing sort of a disgrace.  RIDEM 

            7         was wise not to follow the Federal Government's 

            8         actions in denying requests, numerous requests, 

            9         that a public hearing be convened in the affected 

           10         local communities.  The dredging permits and the 

           11         state water quality certificates for this project 

           12         should be denied.  The plans to disturb and 

           13         destroy winter flounder and lobster breeding 

           14         grounds and to litter the ocean floor with tons of 

           15         discarded metal from an abandoned transmission 

           16         cable are simply unacceptable and RIDEM should 

           17         deny the requested permits.  In fact, Rhode 

           18         Island, excuse me, RIDEM, should not even consider 

           19         the Deepwater request at this juncture.  The 

           20         applicant, as you may know, has not paid the 

           21         application fee due to the Coastal Resources 

           22         Management Council.  And it has not secured 

           23         permission from one of the affected communities to 

           24         carry out the project.  There is no evidence that 

           25         this is likely to occur, and Deepwater has shown 
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            1         no proof that it will secure the needed local 

            2         approvals.  Deepwater Wind's environmental report 

            3         and DEM's notice of public hearing erroneously 

            4         claim that the Block Island transmission system 

            5         cable would, quote, make landfall on the Rhode 

            6         Island mainland in the town of Narragansett.  That 

            7         simply is not true.  The town of Narragansett had 

            8         not granted permission to allow cable to land at 

            9         the town beach.  

           10                  With all due respect to RIDEM, your 

           11         public notice is procedurally defective and very 

           12         misleading to the public in that it claims that 

           13         the transmission cable will land at a location 

           14         where it is not allowed to land.  The public 

           15         notice claims that the onshore facilities will not 

           16         result in fill or discharge into wetlands, but 

           17         there's no factual support for this position in 

           18         the absence of a secured landing area unless and 

           19         until the Town of Narragansett decides if it will 

           20         allow the landing.  This is completely premature 

           21         to ask the public to comment on the environmental 

           22         impact of the project.  At this point, the impacts 

           23         are largely unknown because the landing site has 

           24         not been secured and may never be permitted.  

           25         RIDEM has no business holding a public hearing on 
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            1         a project that is not sufficiently final so as to 

            2         permit the public to have a meaningful opportunity 

            3         to be heard about its expected impacts.  Until 

            4         this project developer can demonstrate a secured 

            5         permission that is needed to carry out the 

            6         proposal, RIDEM is wasting everyone's time.  

            7                  But since RIDEM is processing the 

            8         application as if they were sufficiently complete 

            9         and is essentially turning a blind eye to the lack 

           10         of local permission to land the transmission 

           11         cable, they ought to at least undertake an 

           12         analysis of whether the proposed dredging 

           13         activities are truly in the public interest, and 

           14         the DEM should undertake its own independent 

           15         review of environmental impacts, as well as 

           16         available alternatives to the project and share 

           17         these with the public.  

           18                  To date, the public has had to rely 

           19         solely on information generated and maintained by 

           20         the applicant, and no genuine examination of 

           21         available alternatives has taken place due to the 

           22         applicant's outright refusal to discuss 

           23         alternatives within the environmental report it 

           24         submitted as part of this application.  Numerous 

           25         available alternatives exist for meeting the 
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            1         state's renewable energy goals without sacrificing 

            2         our environmental quality.  These options exist 

            3         but they have not been evaluated by a neutral 

            4         party.  As part of its decision-making process, 

            5         DEM, therefore, needs to ask the hard questions, 

            6         the basic questions that were left unanswered in 

            7         the application, including whether the purported 

            8         benefits to the project can be realized by 

            9         alternative means that will not cause many adverse 

           10         impacts that are documented in developer's own 

           11         environmental report.  

           12                  Deepwater Wind has asserted in their 

           13         environmental report that the location of the 

           14         project has quote/unquote been dictated by a state 

           15         law, but that is a fallacy.  Rhode Island, 

           16         obviously, cannot dictate the location of the 

           17         facilities that are to be located partially in 

           18         Federal waters.  It can dictate anything it wants 

           19         with regard to state waters, but it can't dictate 

           20         anything to the Federal Government, and that 

           21         concept is absurd.  It has become clear that 

           22         Deepwater's project is not a so-called 

           23         demonstration project, as it's claimed, and that a 

           24         much larger offshore wind project is in the works 

           25         in Federal Waters where many of the adverse 
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            1         impacts from this project would not occur.  

            2                  Because this much larger project is 

            3         proceeding, DEM needs to consider the cumulative 

            4         impacts from dredging for both the proposed 

            5         Deepwater project and the much larger project that 

            6         is supposed to go off this year.  Deepwater's 

            7         application fails to include information about 

            8         expected cumulative impacts and DEM really needs 

            9         to acknowledge them and factor them into its 

           10         decision on Deepwater's request.  

           11                  Assertions made by Deepwater are 

           12         questionable in many respects.  The company 

           13         consistently claimed that its impacts to the 

           14         project will be minimal and short term and that 

           15         restrictions on its plans are not necessary.  Of 

           16         course, that's exactly what it said to you about 

           17         the imposition of time-of-year restrictions on 

           18         construction activities.  That is before it 

           19         completely reversed its position and agreed to 

           20         implement such restrictions.  This sort of 

           21         complete reversal of position demonstrates why the 

           22         public is so suspect of the claims made in the 

           23         environmental report concerning the purported lack 

           24         of adverse impacts to the long term.  

           25                  Take the position of Deepwater with 
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            1         regard to winter flounder spawning habitat as an 

            2         example of what I'm speaking to.  The applicant 

            3         admits that winter flounder have designated 

            4         essential fish habitat within the project area, 

            5         and the company also admits that winter flounder 

            6         eggs and larvae along the miles and miles of 

            7         trench for the cable may get buried too deep in 

            8         sediment to recover.  Yet it dismisses these 

            9         natural resource losses as acceptable.  They are 

           10         not.  Winter flounder are a species in severe 

           11         decline in this region as you know, and the plan 

           12         to bury winter flounder eggs and larvae for many 

           13         miles will only make matters worse and prevent the 

           14         recovery of this important fish species.  It only 

           15         stands to reason that many juvenile adult winter 

           16         flounder will ultimately be buried too deep in 

           17         sediment to recover.  We should not allow this to 

           18         occur, at least when there are many available 

           19         alternatives that have yet to be explored by the 

           20         applicant.  Impacts to fish from exposure to 

           21         electromagnetic fields emanating from the 

           22         energized cables is not well understood, and 

           23         additional research should be required to support 

           24         the application before such potential risks are 

           25         allowed to be introduced to the marine 
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            1         environment.  Total reliance by the applicant on 

            2         theories and a so-called theoretical detection 

            3         level with regard to the EMF is not an acceptable 

            4         substitute for science, and that's what should 

            5         guide your decision.  

            6                  The environmental report submitted by 

            7         Deepwater underestimates the adverse impacts from 

            8         dredging by assuming RIDEM will allow it to leave 

            9         the transmission cable on the ocean floor when the 

           10         project reaches the end of its useful life.  RIDEM 

           11         has not granted such permission before and should 

           12         require the applicant's solid waste to be removed.  

           13         No other submerged cable has been abandoned in 

           14         place in the state to my knowledge, and it is 

           15         expected by many citizens that DEM will not allow 

           16         such solid waste disposal to occur on the ocean 

           17         floor.  Accordingly, impacts from dredging should 

           18         be assumed to be double the amount discussed in 

           19         the environmental report to reflect the need to 

           20         dredge in order to remove Deepwater's waste.  

           21                  Finally, DEM is urged to consider the 

           22         socio-economic impacts that will result in the 

           23         proposed project in deciding whether a permit 

           24         should be issued.  Impacts to private property 

           25         owners who will be affected by the project have 




                     ALLIED COURT REPORTERS, INC. (401) 946-5500     

�


               
                                                                   65

            1         not been evaluated by the other state and Federal 

            2         agencies, and RIDEM ought to require as a 

            3         condition of any permit that it grants that 

            4         compensation be made to those who will suffer a 

            5         loss of property value as a result of the proposed 

            6         project of which dredging is an essential part.  

            7                  I just want to conclude by pointing out 

            8         that -- how the project has been misrepresented in 

            9         the environmental report as something that will 

           10         enhance the environment.  When, in reality, it 

           11         will degrade the environmental quality, and this 

           12         is accomplished by Deepwater by overstating the 

           13         purported environmental benefits while parsing out 

           14         and segmenting the adverse impacts.  Deepwater 

           15         parses out the adverse impacts of the two 

           16         components of the overall project environment 

           17         report.  The benefits alleged to flow to Block 

           18         Island are derived from completion of the bit  

           19         cable, which is not dependent on construction of 

           20         the wind farm.  Negative impacts are primarily 

           21         derived from the inappropriate location of the 

           22         wind farm.  The applicant should not be allowed to 

           23         lump the two projects together for the purposes of 

           24         analyzing impacts.  As it stands, the 

           25         environmental report combined the purported 
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            1         benefits to the project and minimizes the adverse 

            2         impact through impermissible segmentation of the 

            3         project.  

            4                  I'll just conclude by saying how the 

            5         environmental report improperly excluded for 

            6         considers numerous risks, potential turbine 

            7         locations on the grounds that it's Rhode Island 

            8         policy dictated, viable alternative location with 

            9         the wind turbine array, but no basis for 

           10         eliminating an alternative analysis to these 

           11         locations that are purportedly dictated by Rhode 

           12         Island.  

           13                  Again, I thank you for your time.

           14                  MR. GAGNON:  Our next speaker is Tina 

           15         Jackson.  

           16                  MS. JACKSON:  Tina Jackson, commercial 

           17         fisherman and speaking for the commercial fishing 

           18         industry in Rhode Island.  I couldn't agree more 

           19         with Terry Tierney and James O'Neil with several 

           20         instances regarding massive impact to marine 

           21         resources and premature -- 

           22                  THE REPORTER:  Can I have you slow down 

           23         just little bit.  Slow down a little bit, please.  

           24                  MS. JACKSON:  Slow down a little?  

           25                  THE REPORTER:  Yes.  Please.  I'm taking 
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            1         it verbatim and I can't even understand you you're 

            2         talking so fast.  I couldn't even understand what 

            3         you're saying.  

            4                  MS. JACKSON:  I couldn't agree more with 

            5         Terry Tierney and Jim O'Neil with regards to the 

            6         impacts on marine resources as well as premature 

            7         permitting of anything for dredging purposes 

            8         regarding Deepwater.  

            9                  There are two purposes here for myself to 

           10         make statements regarding destruction of marine 

           11         resources in the Block Island Sound.  Deepwater, 

           12         and I could go through all the corruption levels 

           13         and backroom deals that were perpetrated regarding 

           14         Deepwater, we all know that; but we still have to 

           15         keep it in the forefront because there are other 

           16         questions as to how this came about, why this came 

           17         about.  And allowing it to continue as the one 

           18         woman said go slow, very slow.  

           19                  When we take a look at Deepwater's 

           20         actions with their test turbines, the first test 

           21         turbine they put up, they couldn't even erect it.  

           22         The second one broke in half during 45 mile an 

           23         hour winds, and we're going to allow them to put 

           24         up 6 megawatt, 650-foot turbines.  They couldn't 

           25         even put the test towers up.  God's honest truth.  
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            1         They have pictures of it over at Quonset Point.  

            2         It was hysterical.  These winds are consistent in 

            3         our area.  Imagine when we get 120 or 140 mile an 

            4         hour hurricanes, what's going to happen to those 

            5         55 turbines.  They're going to be gone.  The 

            6         decommission cost that Deepwater has planned for 

            7         this is only $350,000.  That's the payment that 

            8         they have allocated for decommission costs.  

            9         That's not going to cover the cost to take down 

           10         the blades on the turbines, let alone five 

           11         turbines, at the height they're at.  

           12                  The town of Narragansett council has a 

           13         motion before it on May 6th to suspend talks with 

           14         Deepwater in regards to allow necessary 

           15         transparency for the public benefit to occur.  

           16         Therefore, that, in itself, these hearings 

           17         shouldn't even be in progress at this point.  

           18         Deepwater does not have permission to continue.  

           19         In fact, Deepwater's permit and contractor is 

           20         literally terminated June 30, 2011, I believe, 

           21         because they failed to start breaking ground, so 

           22         to speak, and Torray Plastics actually thought 

           23         they had won their lawsuit based on that 

           24         termination of their contract, but, of course, our 

           25         General Assembly went behind closed doors with the 
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            1         PUC, and did a little (inaudible) next you know 

            2         everything was amended and here we stand today 

            3         still talking about Deepwater.  

            4                  Let's talk about the negative impacts on 

            5         marine resources, FAA radar clutter.  Massive 

            6         impact to boats and planes.  Five airports will be 

            7         severely affected by the radar clutter that's 

            8         coming off the turbines.  We just had a shut down 

            9         for three years winter flounder as Terry Tierney 

           10         was speaking about, and we just got them back.  We 

           11         just got an allocation, a very small allocation 

           12         for the fishing industry, but we just got it back 

           13         and now we're going to allow Deepwater to go into 

           14         their prime breeding grounds and basically blow 

           15         them all up and destroy them for green energy 

           16         that's not really green energy in my eyes, and 

           17         there are many studies that are proving that to be 

           18         true.  

           19                  With regards to the EMF cable study done 

           20         by BOEM in September of 2011, there is high 

           21         impact, high negative impact on marine resources 

           22         specific to migrating whales, dolphins, and 

           23         turtles.  There's a massive negative impact on 

           24         navigation.  There's a massive negative impact on 

           25         feeding.  There's a massive negative impact on 
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            1         breeding habits.  That's just the migrating 

            2         species.  That has nothing to do with species that 

            3         basically make Rhode Island Sound and Block Island 

            4         Sound its home.  

            5                  These turbines are basically in the dead 

            6         center of regular migration routes, which is why 

            7         they basically put it off until 2015 to allow 

            8         migration to continue at certain times of the 

            9         year.  I don't see what difference it's going to 

           10         make if they build them in 2015 or 2020.  

           11         Migration routes are not going to change for the 

           12         White Whales.  This is what they do.  

           13                  This is unacceptable to the fishing 

           14         industry.  Absolutely unacceptable.  The fishing 

           15         industry has had so much taken away from them over 

           16         the last years.  This is a direct correlation of 

           17         the catch-year program that was implemented by 

           18         NOAH in 2010, specific to consolidation of the 

           19         fleet.  And we made the connect a long time ago 

           20         they were whittling us away, whittling us away and 

           21         we all pointed to the oil industry for many, many 

           22         years, but now that there's big money to be made 

           23         in Federal stimulus money regarding wind energy 

           24         and faulty wind energy at that.  Now, we correlate 

           25         it to the proposal of 42 turbines all the way down 
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            1         to Virginia.  What better way to get rid of a 

            2         fishing fleet than to over regulate us out of 

            3         business, therefore cutting back the cost of 

            4         mitigation that Deepwater is basically saying 

            5         they're proposing to the fishing industry here, 

            6         but I can tell you a lot of fishermen don't want 

            7         money.  They don't want Deepwater.  They want to 

            8         be left alone to go to work and make a buck and 

            9         provide jobs and provide a natural food resource 

           10         to the community.  Period.  End of story.  

           11                  Deepwater would save billions.  Actually, 

           12         First Wind, because First Wind is Deepwater and 

           13         Deepwater is First Wind.  Let's all make that 

           14         point very clear here today.  They're all one in 

           15         the same.  Whether they're in Hawaii, Maine, 

           16         California, Oregon, Washington, or The Gulf, it 

           17         doesn't matter, First Wind is all over the 

           18         country.  They're the largest provider of wind 

           19         energy, and they seem to get every single contract 

           20         in every portion of the country.  I wonder why, 

           21         especially connection they had to a (inaudible) 

           22         tower corporation and the corruption scandal that 

           23         just erupted over in Sicily, 17 percent of 

           24         Deepwater, I believe, is still owned by IVPC 

           25         (phonetic) according to one of the leaders -- 
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            1         documents and their research.  Now, if anybody 

            2         doesn't know what IVPC is, it's Italian Vento 

            3         Power Corporation -- 

            4                  THE REPORTER:  Ma'am, I have no idea what 

            5         you just said.

            6                  MS. JACKSON:  I'll go back to IVPC.  

            7                  THE REPORTER:  Thank you. 

            8                  MS. JACKSON:  You're welcome.  You're 

            9         very rude.  I'm sorry -- I'm doing my best -- 

           10                  THE REPORTER:  Ma'am, I have a job to 

           11         do -- excuse me, I have a job to do, and I'm 

           12         trying to do it.  I asked you very nicely to slow 

           13         down.  I can't understand what you're saying, so I 

           14         can't take it down.  I'm not being rude.  I have a 

           15         job to do.  Thank you.  You're being rude to me.  

           16                  MS. JACKSON:  I wasn't trying to be 

           17         fast and/or rude.  I'm trying -- it's okay.  I can 

           18         take the heat.  

           19                  MR. GAGNON:  You'll have enough time.  Go 

           20         ahead.  

           21                  MS. JACKSON:  Thank you.  Let's take a 

           22         look at the Italian Vento Power Corporation 

           23         Connection.  According to my recent research, the 

           24         Italian Vento Power Corporation still holds 17 

           25         percent of Deepwater's subsidy and/or stock.  In 
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            1         2010, the Italian Mafia police confiscated $6 

            2         billion of the Italian Vento Power Corporation's 

            3         assets as well as they arrested 10 executives all 

            4         for wind fraud, every bit of it.  They were 

            5         building turbines, getting massive taxpayer 

            6         subsidies, never producing energy that said they 

            7         were going to.  These turbines are basically 

            8         ineffective and non-working, yet there's people of 

            9         Sicily are still forced to pay exorbitant electric 

           10         rates for power they're not getting.  Now, 

           11         remember, this is all First Wind, but First Wind 

           12         is Deepwater.  Some of the executives that sit on 

           13         First Wind's board are former Enron executives.  

           14         Are these the kind of people that we want to do 

           15         business with?  Patrick Wood, III; (inaudible) 

           16         most of his connection to Enron still 

           17         documentation out there floating around somewhere, 

           18         try to get a hold of it myself.  These are the 

           19         kind of people that we're doing business with.  

           20         Italian Mafia, former Enron executives, and Rhode 

           21         Island DEM, it's been brought to their attention 

           22         prior, not very often, but I have mentioned it in 

           23         passing.  This is energy market manipulation at 

           24         its very best.  And if anybody doesn't remember 

           25         Enron, these people are getting away with doing it 
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            1         again.  And anybody that would like information 

            2         regarding IVPC and the connection to First Wind 

            3         and Deepwater, by all means, come and see me and 

            4         I'll give you the powerpoint presentation 

            5         Deepwater did making their connection to UPC, 

            6         First Wind, and IVPC.  I know, a lot of acronyms, 

            7         I'm sorry.  

            8                  Let's talk about high bird kill ratio.  

            9         Let's talk about the Audubon Society and the Cape 

           10         Wind project, $8 million is waiting in the wings 

           11         for the Audubon Society to count dead birds.  

           12         Since when does the Audubon Society count dead 

           13         birds?  Their function is to protect birds and 

           14         protect species, just as I want to protect my 

           15         marine resources, your marine resources, they 

           16         belong to all of us, and I know it was stated at 

           17         one of the last meetings that the public trust 

           18         documents does not include the sectioning off of 

           19         our oceans and parsing it out to the highest 

           20         bidders.  I say that's not true.  It has 

           21         everything to do with the violation of public 

           22         trust documents.  It has everything to do with 

           23         that ocean being yours and yours alone.  It 

           24         doesn't belong to me.  It doesn't belong to the 

           25         Federal Government.  It doesn't belong to the Army 
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            1         Corps. of Engineers.  It doesn't belong to Rhode 

            2         Island DEM.  It belongs to you, the US Citizens.  

            3         You can look it up.  It's a very simple statement, 

            4         very simple amendment to our Constitution.  

            5                  Currently, all the agencies are reviewing 

            6         the original proposal of 3.6 megawatts to permit 

            7         Deepwater, including this Rhode Island DEM.  

            8         According to some of the sources that I spoke with 

            9         today, these are two complete different projects, 

           10         as we all well know.  But the reviews are being 

           11         based off the initial proposal.  Where is the 

           12         completed environmental impact statement on 6 

           13         megawatt turbine, 650 feet tall?  There isn't one.  

           14         Where is the FAA hazard study, completed FAA 

           15         hazard study in regards to the 6 megawatt 

           16         turbines?  There is a basic dismantling of what 

           17         pilots need regarding the FAA hazard study, 

           18         decommissioning, so to speak, of their ability to 

           19         fly in and out of Block Island.  This will greatly 

           20         affect five airports in our surrounding area.  

           21         When you take a look at Docket 4111 -- 4111, there 

           22         is no indication that there would be any kind of 

           23         change and/or technological advances to basically 

           24         create a new proposal.  These are apples and 

           25         oranges.  We're talking about a turbine that's 300 
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            1         feet higher than the original proposed turbine.  

            2         These have never been built before.  Again, Rhode 

            3         Island gets to be the guinea pig.  I believe 

            4         Christopher Walker said it best at one of the last 

            5         public hearings, that exactly what we are, are 

            6         guinea pigs.  

            7                  I believe over 400,000 pilots have signed 

            8         the petition, 400,000, advocated in opposition of 

            9         the disabling of the flight capability system, 

           10         which the Deepwater project does.  It basically 

           11         disables their GPS, their magnetic GPS compass, 

           12         which is what fishing vessels use, in order to 

           13         navigate the waters, in order to navigate the air.  

           14         Now, they all talked about the effects of the 

           15         flicker and EMF and all that, those are very true.  

           16         The EMF fields are very detrimental to human 

           17         beings, as well as animal species.  

           18                  I can't think of a better way to spend my 

           19         time than to advocate for something I know.  It's 

           20         not only bad for Rhode Island, but it's bad for 

           21         everybody in general.  And in the back of our 

           22         minds, we all know this.  I see people getting up 

           23         here talking about construction jobs that they 

           24         think they're going to get because they own a 

           25         small construction company.  I hear them talking 
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            1         about jobs, jobs, jobs, when, in fact, Deepwater, 

            2         themselves, has stated this will only create 6 

            3         permanent jobs, at a cost of $250 million, and 

            4         those jobs will only be given from within the 

            5         company, won't be you or me or anybody else in 

            6         this room.  It will be Deepwater personnel, First 

            7         Wind personnel.  Nobody but them.  I don't know if 

            8         anybody else has been paying attention to the 

            9         Federal stimulus money and the cost of creating 

           10         these jobs since 2010, but I don't think $250 

           11         million is worth 6 permanent jobs for a company 

           12         that's going to make mass amounts of money off of 

           13         picking our pockets at 24 cents a kilowatt hour.  

           14         The Government's own reimbursement of 2.6 cents 

           15         per kilowatt hour, that leaves a big chunk of 

           16         change coming out of my pocket and your pocket as 

           17         well.  If nothing else, if nothing else, 

           18         regardless of what people feel for environmental 

           19         impact, regardless of what people feel for marine 

           20         resources, regardless of what people feel for 

           21         green energy, I'm the biggest advocate, I want to 

           22         spend the least amount of money with the most 

           23         efficient energy for anybody.  Believe me when I 

           24         tell you, the cost itself, alone, should not be 

           25         allowed.  It is too expensive.  It is faulty to a 




                     ALLIED COURT REPORTERS, INC. (401) 946-5500     

�


               
                                                                   78

            1         T.  We can cite First Wind's project in Hawaii.  I 

            2         mean that's a mess.  Spain, Portugal, many 

            3         European countries are pulling their wind 

            4         projects.  We should learn from their steps.  

            5         They've already been through the process.  It has 

            6         failed again and again and again, and here we sit.  

            7         Here we sit.  Imagine that.  

            8                  The reason history repeats itself is 

            9         because we didn't learn our lesson the first time.  

           10         People say this is a done deal.  I don't believe 

           11         that.  I believe collectively and together we can 

           12         stand up to big corporate crony capitalists 

           13         companies such as First Wind.  I believe that we, 

           14         as a people, it is time that we stand together 

           15         against phony capitalists such as First Wind.  It 

           16         is time that your government listens to us.  We 

           17         pay them.  We elect them.  Next time when we go to 

           18         the voting booth, be very careful who you pick and 

           19         choose to represent you because they just very 

           20         well may sell you down the road as time goes by.

           21                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Miles Grant.  

           22                  MR. GRANT:  Hi.  My name is Miles Grant, 

           23         representing the National Wildlife Federal, and 

           24         I'm a fast speaker, too, so just give me one of 

           25         these things if I'm talking too fast.  The 




                     ALLIED COURT REPORTERS, INC. (401) 946-5500     

�


               
                                                                   79

            1         National Wildlife Federation is here to say that 

            2         it supports offshore wind.  The threat to 

            3         America's wildlife today is the climate crisis.  

            4         We need clean energy.  We need it to be 

            5         responsibly cited, responsibly constructed.  We 

            6         feel that's what this project is.  Our state 

            7         affiliate, the Environment Council of Rhode Island 

            8         represents over 40,000 people in Rhode Island, 

            9         supports this project as well.  

           10                  You know, if you look across this country 

           11         right now at energy resources, we're getting 

           12         energy from coal, from natural gas, from oil.  

           13         You're right that oil tends not to go to     

           14         electricity here in New England.  It goes to our 

           15         cars.  We're going to transition our cars to 

           16         electric energy sources.  We're going to need 

           17         clean energy for those vehicles.  

           18                  I've been to Virginia where they mine 

           19         coal.  Used to be they dug under the ground to get 

           20         coal.  Now, they blow up a mountain and pick up 

           21         the coal from underneath it.  I've been to the 

           22         Gulf to cover the Gulf War disaster.  I've seen 

           23         the impacts of that.  I was actually just in 

           24         Arkansas this month to cover the tar sand spill 

           25         there, want to talk about home values, talk to 
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            1         people in Mayflower, Arkansas.  Actually, I wore 

            2         these jeans tonight because when I got home washed 

            3         out all the mud from walking through the marshes 

            4         down there, looking at the dead ducks, dead 

            5         reptiles, and I still have tar sand on my jeans, 

            6         even after going through the wash cycle.  Imagine 

            7         what it's like for the ducks down there.  

            8                  So, the National Wildlife Federation 

            9         strongly feels again, if these projects were not 

           10         right for wildlife, we'd be among the first to 

           11         stand up against them to say no.  We worked with 

           12         these developers to make them do the best for 

           13         wildlife that they can be.  I've got to tell you, 

           14         go to BP, go to Exxon, and ask them to do what is 

           15         right for wildlife and see how far you get.  Go to 

           16         NWF.  org/offshore wind, we've got reports on this 

           17         and read through.  Contact us.  Let us know the 

           18         questions that you have.  We feel this project and 

           19         others like it need to move forward to protect 

           20         America's wildlife.  Thank you.  

           21                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Karen -- and 

           22         I'm not going to get this last name right -- 

           23         Shabshelowitz. 

           24                  MS. SHABSHELOWITZ:  Thank you for coming 

           25         to Narragansett.  I am a mother of six grown 
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            1         children, who all love the beach and six 

            2         grandchildren.  They all live out of state 'cuz 

            3         there are no jobs in the state, but they've got -- 

            4         they have many happy, happy memories of going down 

            5         along the beach, taking walks, digging out the 

            6         little sand crabs that inhabit the beach, going 

            7         after the little minnows that would go in the 

            8         water, the little fish.  One of my sons absolutely 

            9         loved fish, and he used to go down whenever the 

           10         bluefish were running, they'd run along the wall 

           11         and they'd jump out of the water.  That's right by 

           12         the beach where they'd run and it's just 

           13         fascinating.  It was like a little dolphin show, 

           14         but they were little blue fish.  

           15                  We moved to Rhode Island over 25 years 

           16         ago from northeastern Pennsylvania.  We saw what 

           17         strip mining did to the beautiful mountains in 

           18         Pennsylvania.  There were fires that couldn't be 

           19         put out.  There were -- a lot of people had black 

           20         lungs from breathing in the fumes, and they used 

           21         to try and fill up the mines so houses wouldn't 

           22         sink into the mines.  No one could have predicted 

           23         this was going to happen many years ago when they 

           24         first went after the coal.  And I have similar 

           25         concerns about a cable going for miles under our 
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            1         beautiful beach.  People come to Narragansett 

            2         because of the beauty of the beach, and that's 

            3         year round, and the water is beautiful, the sand 

            4         is beautiful.  I hate to think of that being 

            5         destroyed, ambiance, the charm of the town.  

            6                  I also think back to when they built the 

            7         Jamestown Bridge; and when they were building it, 

            8         they found quite a lot of rock under the bridge 

            9         they did not know was there.  So that impacted how 

           10         they were going to build the bridge.  Also huge 

           11         cost overruns because of the lack of foresight 

           12         into what they'd be running into.  And so with the 

           13         Big Dig, when they built the Big Dig, a lot of 

           14         cost overruns.  

           15                  I went to that meeting at Narragansett 

           16         Elementary School December of 2011.  We were told 

           17         to sign in and they'd be in touch with us.  Fool 

           18         me once, shame on you; fool me twice, shame on me.  

           19         We never heard from them at all.  They didn't give 

           20         a presentation.  So nothing went on the record.  

           21         Went around asking questions of different people, 

           22         and I'm sure we all got different answers to the 

           23         same questions.  We never heard from them.  In 

           24         fact, it was the town member that found out in 

           25         reading the binders down in the library that they 
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            1         intended to bring the cable above ground, rather 

            2         than below ground.  I find it just preposterous, 

            3         as a nurse, that you have -- when you make up a 

            4         plan, you have input from the family.  Deepwater 

            5         didn't care about input from the town.  They 

            6         didn't care about what the people said.  They just 

            7         went ahead and did what they wanted to do.  And I 

            8         think they continue to do that because we've had 

            9         several hearings where people have strongly 

           10         objected to the addition of larger telephone 

           11         poles, higher up in the sky, and additional poles, 

           12         and then we're going to build a substation down 

           13         near the community center which is going to put 

           14         more electrical apparatus.  I have no concerns 

           15         about the upkeep and the cable and what's going to 

           16         happen during the tidal storms that we've 

           17         experienced.  We've had power outages a number of 

           18         times that have lasted five days to a week; and 

           19         when the lines go down, they have to wait for the 

           20         wind to stop before they can go up and try to 

           21         repair them.  Some of the poles have gone down 

           22         also.  

           23                  I have a son that's a New York City 

           24         fireman and he's watched the fire that was in 

           25         Queens, and total neighborhoods were wiped out due 
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            1         to the storm that they had never seen before.  I 

            2         mean generations of people have lived in the areas 

            3         and the whole area is changed now.  Whole 

            4         communities are just gone.  And he described how 

            5         when fire engines went, the hydrants were way down 

            6         below the water because there was flooding 

            7         everywhere.  And they have to try and pump the 

            8         water without the fire hydrants because they were 

            9         so far below.  Meanwhile, 50 houses burnt down in 

           10         one night.  I mention that because I also lived in 

           11         Pennsylvania.  We had a big storm at Adler's 

           12         (phonetic).  There was huge flooding.  It was back 

           13         in '70 -- no, it was in -- '79 -- well, I remember 

           14         going to Hartford to delivery a baby and I didn't 

           15         realize the whole front door was closed down 

           16         because of the floods that happened nine months 

           17         ago.  Trying to remember which child that was, but 

           18         that was totally -- we were totally unprepared for 

           19         that.  Most of you that have watched TV this last 

           20         week and seen these floods that are going on in 

           21         the midwest where barns are just pushed up against 

           22         the harbor.  I mean there's all these changes 

           23         going on, and I just -- I just don't trust a 

           24         company that doesn't want to hear what the 

           25         citizens want to say, and the citizen are 
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            1         interested in and just go ahead and proceed.  You 

            2         know, we've had these hearings and yet they have 

            3         not acknowledged any change in the plans or 

            4         anything like that, and I just wonder, you know, I 

            5         don't want them to destroy the beach, and I find 

            6         them projecting how much the electric bills are 

            7         going to be highly preposterous.  I mean, how can 

            8         they even tell because this is an experimental 

            9         project.  

           10                  And I was an exchange student in Holland 

           11         many years ago.  They have beautiful windmills 

           12         that sort of kept up the ambiance of the 

           13         community.  I just can't see these big turbines 

           14         being at all pretty.  I think they ruin the 

           15         outlook to the ocean.  Also, in Pennsylvania, you 

           16         know, a lot of times hear banging, banging, 

           17         banging, banging.  They were trying to fill up the 

           18         mines.  That was some machines they used trying to 

           19         fill in the mines, so that there wouldn't be land 

           20         further sliding into it.  I have fear of what 

           21         these machines are going to be doing that are 

           22         trying to build this cable, and if they're 6 feet 

           23         under the ground, I have no concerns with what the 

           24         tidal storms will do to that.  

           25                  For a company that doesn't seem to 
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            1         respect us, I have a lot of suspect about what 

            2         they're going to do.  Thank you again for 

            3         listening.

            4                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Abel 

            5         Collins.  

            6                  MR. COLLINS:  My name is Abel Collins.  

            7         I'm a program engineer for the Sierra Club in 

            8         Rhode Island.  We're a chapter of about 2,000 

            9         members, and, nationally, the largest and oldest 

           10         environmental organization in the country.  

           11                  This has been a long project coming.  

           12         Only recently have we come around with all the 

           13         work that Deepwater Wind has put into doing 

           14         studies to agree this is a good project and the 

           15         direction that Rhode Island needs to be heading.  

           16         Speaking about negative impacts, you know, I think 

           17         any human activity is going to have negative 

           18         impacts on the environment.  That's just the way 

           19         we are with the environment.  What we have to do 

           20         is balance which is going to be worse.  And when 

           21         we look at the alternative to renewable energy, it 

           22         is significantly worse, even when we just look at 

           23         the narrow region of our bay.  We have first-hand 

           24         experience with oil spills right off the coast of 

           25         Matunuck where I, myself, live.  We have 
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            1         first-hand experience with the rising sea levels 

            2         which are eating away at our shores.  

            3                  I grew up in Matunuck.  We've lost over a 

            4         hundred feet of shoreline, that's just 10 inches 

            5         of sea level rise.  That's only going to 

            6         accelerate over the next hundred years.  I mean, 

            7         it's hard to imagine, but I think someday I might 

            8         have beach front property living a mile away from 

            9         the beach.  And that's what we had to be concerned 

           10         with.  We have to worry about rising temperatures.  

           11         That's what's affecting the fish population more 

           12         than the cable going on the bottom of the bay.  

           13         Cables have been running across the Atlantic for a 

           14         hundred years now.  This is not new technology 

           15         that we're talking about in this project.  

           16                  Talk about Brayton Point, which is the 

           17         nearest coal burning power plant, the biggest 

           18         power plant in the Northeast, generates about 1300 

           19         megawatts of power.  That has major environmental 

           20         impacts.  They've had to build cooling towers that 

           21         you can see from over a state away, and they had 

           22         to do that because they were heating the waters up 

           23         in the northern parts of the bay affecting the 

           24         fish populations.  Those are the environmental 

           25         impacts that we should be more concerned with.  
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            1                  The project that Deepwater Wind proposes 

            2         is five turbines in this demonstration project.  

            3         They've gone through environmental studies.  

            4         They've done everything to make room for things 

            5         like flight of the birds.  There's the migration 

            6         of the White Whales.  They say they're going to 

            7         postpone it and only do the installation of these 

            8         five turbines when they're not migrating through.  

            9         Allowances have been made for the environmental 

           10         concerns that are out there, and it's a good 

           11         project at this point.  And at some point, we need 

           12         to be transitioning to a renewable energy economy.  

           13         It has to be small scale projects.  I want solar 

           14         panels on my roof.  I want a small turbine in my 

           15         backyard.  And that's important to those sort of 

           16         moderate level things.  It's important to do small 

           17         things like turning off the lights when walking 

           18         out of a room, but it's also critically important 

           19         that we're doing the larger scale projects well.  

           20         It's going to take every level of energy to, you 

           21         know, prevent the worst of climate change, and 

           22         right now we're just not doing it.  

           23                  Last year we saw the second highest jump 

           24         in atmospheric concentrations of carbon dioxide 

           25         record, and we're already higher than we've been 
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            1         in millions of years.  The science behind climate 

            2         change and global warming is on the rise.  Back 

            3         when we still had a beach in Matunuck, when we 

            4         still had dunes that I played on, I did a science 

            5         project in fifth grade, when I was 10, 1988, was 

            6         when the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change 

            7         just started its work addressing climate change.  

            8         To my ten-year-old brain, the science of climate 

            9         change made sense and you could conduct a small 

           10         experiment that made it work.  All you have to do 

           11         is put two terrariums next to each other, put 

           12         carbon dioxide in one of them and measure the 

           13         temperature as you go along.  It's science.  It's 

           14         real, and it's time we started doing something to 

           15         address these changes that have been occurring for 

           16         years, decades, and are now really threatening our 

           17         infrastructure, homeowners along the beach, and 

           18         really the money that's public money that's going 

           19         to go to try to protect these people and this 

           20         infrastructure.  It's time to take action, and 

           21         we're not going to be able to do it all in Rhode 

           22         Island, but we're responsible for a piece, and 

           23         this is one of the ways that we can start doing 

           24         those changes.  So, I encourage everybody to 

           25         support this project.  It's not perfect, but 
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            1         nothing in life is.  And that's good enough for us 

            2         to consider.

            3                  MR. GAGNON:  That concludes all the 

            4         people who have signed up to speak.  Is there 

            5         anyone else who wishes to say anything that hasn't 

            6         signed up before we close the hearing?  Okay.  

            7         Thank you very much.  Thank you for your 

            8         participation and cooperation, and we'll close the 

            9         hearing.  Thank you.  

           10                        (CLOSED AT 8:52 PM)

           11                            ************
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            1                     C-E-R-T-I-F-I-C-A-T-E

            2    
                               I, RONALD M. RONZIO, Notary Public, do 
            3         hereby certify that I reported in shorthand the 
                      foregoing proceedings, and that the foregoing 
            4         transcript contains a true, accurate, and complete 
                      record of the proceedings at the above-entitled 
            5         hearing.
                      
            6                  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set 
                      my hand and seal this 23d day of May, 2013.
            7    
                 
            8    
                 
            9    
                 
           10    
                      ________________________________________________
           11         RONALD M. RONZIO, NOTARY PUBLIC/CERTIFIED COURT 
                      REPORTER
           12    
                 
           13         MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:  July 24, 2013
                 
           14         IN RE:  DEEPWATER WIND PROJECT
                 
           15         DATE:   April 24, 2013
                 
           16    

           17    

           18    

           19    

           20    

           21    

           22    

           23    

           24    

           25    
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 1                       (COMMENCED AT 6:34 PM)
 2                  MR. GAGNON:  Okay.  I'd like to get
 3         started, please.  Thank you.  Welcome, everyone.
 4         Today is Wednesday, April 24, 2013, 6:35.  My name
 5         is Ron Gagnon.  I am chief of the Rhode Island
 6         Department of Environmental Management Office of
 7         Customer and Technical Assistance.  With me today
 8         is Russ Chateauneuf, who is chief in our office of
 9         Water Resources and Richard Bianculli, from the
10         DEM office of legal services.  Also here is
11         Michael Elliott, from the Army Corps of Engineers.
12         We are gathered at the Narragansett Town Hall
13         today regarding a public hearing concerning the
14         application of Deepwater Wind, LLC, for a State of
15         Rhode Island water quality certificate and a
16         dredge permit in accordance and with the
17         department's rules and regulations for dredging
18         and the management of dredge materials and the
19         state water quality regulations.
20                  This hearing is being conducted under the
21         authority of the Administrative Procedures Act
22         located under Chapter 42-35 of the General Laws of
23         Rhode Island.  In accordance with the act's
24         requirements, public notice of this hearing were
25         published in the Narragansett Times, the South
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 1         County Independent, and the Block Island Times.
 2         Notice was also posted on the department's web
 3         site.
 4                  The purpose of this hearing is to afford
 5         interested parties an opportunity to comment on
 6         the noted application.  This hearing is not
 7         intended as a means of providing a forum for
 8         discussion, debating, arguing, or otherwise having
 9         any dialogue at this time with members of the
10         department.  Please be silent when an individual
11         is making his or her comments.  Full copies of the
12         application have been placed in the public
13         libraries of Narragansett and New Shoreham.  We
14         have also extended the written public comment
15         period to 4 P.M. Wednesday, May 22, 2013.  A
16         second public hearing shall be held at the New
17         Shoreham Town Hall on May 8, 2013, at 5 P.M.
18                  The procedure we would use for those who
19         wish to speak is as follows.  If you have not
20         already done so, please register in the rear of
21         the auditorium.  I will call the speakers in the
22         order of registration.  We will allow
23         approximately 5 minutes for each individual to
24         make comments on the record.  When your name is
25         called, please come to the podium here and speak
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 1         clearly and slowly so that the stenographer can
 2         accurate transcribe your comments.  Written
 3         comments may also be submitted before or after
 4         your presentation is made.  Please note that I
 5         will use a yellow cardboard sign to indicate you
 6         have approximately one minute remaining for your
 7         comments.  And at the end of the five-minute
 8         period, I will raise a red cardboard sign.  I'll
 9         try not to use those too much.  We ask that you
10         please respect the time limits so that all
11         commentors may be heard.  Thank you for your
12         cooperation.  After the time has elapsed for the
13         submission of the written comments, the department
14         will prepare a written response to all comments,
15         and then we will complete the review process and
16         issue the final determination.
17                  At this time, we can start with the
18         registered speakers for public comment.  The first
19         registered speaker is Jackie Sotnik.
20                  MS. SOTNIK:  Good evening.  I notice
21         there's still a lot of confusion about the plan
22         and what is going to happen and comments about
23         proposals as to how the power will be transmitted,
24         and so I'm not completely fully informed.  And
25         it's good to know that there will be some more
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 1         advanced plans at the library to become more up to
 2         speed on that so I'm thankful for that.  Also, I'd
 3         like to state that I am a proponent of developing
 4         alternate energy sources.  I think that's
 5         obviously something we need to do.  The only thing
 6         I'm speaking of is in regard to not only the town
 7         of Narragansett, but the state of Rhode Island and
 8         all of its citizens because Narragansett is such
 9         an important part of the state.  It represents the
10         tourism industry, and it's the playground where
11         people come to try to enjoy and take advantage of
12         what we have here in our town.  I think the town
13         has a certain responsibility to try to preserve
14         that as much as possible.  So, whoever is
15         responsible for mandating some constraints or
16         requirements to the project, I'm hopeful that they
17         will be cognizant of the people of the state and
18         the town, especially regarding the esthetics of
19         how this is going to work, how it is going to
20         look, what types of structures would have to be
21         put up, so that they're being mindful of the
22         sensitivity of the ecology and the beauty of our
23         area.  That's all I'm saying.
24                  MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Next speaker is
25         Stanley, and excuse my pronunciation,
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 1         Wojciechowski.
 2                  MR. WOJCIECHOWSKI:  I know many will
 3         speak from a geographical perspective, so I'm
 4         going to limit my comments to the financial
 5         perspective here.  And, you know, are we in the
 6         Soviet Union where bribery causes a project to
 7         proceed, or is this America where capitalistic
 8         motives are used and that's what makes our country
 9         so great.  Now, speaking about, I used to work in
10         private industry; and unless we received a 15
11         percent return, the project wouldn't proceed.  You
12         know, you've got to have it to justify the
13         project, no matter how good it was.  I heard now
14         that our electric bills are going to increase.
15         Now, this is the absolute disincentive that should
16         stall this thing immediately.  If we're going to
17         increase the amount of money that people have to
18         pay for electric bills, it doesn't work.  Stop.
19         We must re-engineer it.  That's what I was told
20         when I worked in engineering and research.  I
21         don't care how good the idea was.  Financially, it
22         had to pass the muster, that 15 percent.  That's
23         the old days.  And until we have the commitment
24         that our bills will go down 15 percent with this
25         project, we're just engineering, so our bills are
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 1         reduced by 15 percent, you must disapprove this
 2         project.  Send it back to the drawing boards.
 3         This has to happen.  There's no discussion about
 4         that.
 5                  On the other hand, should you allow some
 6         lump sum bribe given to Narragansett, whoever, I
 7         feel that this is so un-American and it's bribery,
 8         bribe the town, bribe somebody, give a lump sum
 9         payment to this, we'll do that.  You know, it will
10         make all our citizens have to pay more per month.
11         And, yes, it's only a dollar, seems like it's only
12         a dollar.  Half a million people, a dollar, that's
13         quite a bit of money.  And I feel that the state
14         of the government today may be just constantly
15         finding projects that are only costing us a
16         dollar, and these dollars are valuable.  I don't
17         think you should allow one more dollar be taken
18         away from the people of this state.  It must stop
19         somewhere, and I'm kind of asking and maybe
20         demanding that you stop this until there's a 15
21         percent return.  And there's no stealing of that
22         one dollar a month from all our people.  It sounds
23         like very little, but it's on top of the many
24         dollars and other projects that are in the past
25         and the future coming.  Therefore, please help
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 1         here.  Thank you.
 2                  MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Next speaker is
 3         David Maar.
 4                  MR. MAAR:  Can everyone hear me?  Thanks.
 5         My name is David Maar, and I'm a student at Unity
 6         College in Maine studying environmental policy and
 7         sustainable energy management.  But I've grown up
 8         on the waters of Rhode Island my entire life.
 9         It's a very special place near and dear to my
10         heart, as I'm sure it is to you as well.
11                  The current level of CO2 in the
12         atmosphere is 398.36 parts per million.  As some
13         of you may know, this is a very dangerous level;
14         and as a community, if we don't make changes to
15         combat climate change, we must get used to the
16         norm of more winter storms, Nemo's, and Super
17         Storm Sandies.
18                  THE REPORTER:  Sir, you really need to
19         slow down just a little bit.  I'm having trouble
20         hearing you.  Thank you.
21                  MR. MAAR:  Rhode Island is in a unique
22         position where we can take the lead in combating
23         climate disruption.  This offshore wind project
24         does more good than harm.  The arguments posed
25         against the wind turbines at the CRMC hearing for
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 1         the intervener status are severely flawed.
 2                  People have said that wind turbines will
 3         decrease their property value and this is
 4         inherently false.  A three-year study by the U.S.
 5         Department of Energy's Lawrence Berkeley National
 6         Laboratory concludes that neither the view of wind
 7         energy facilities nor the distance of the home to
 8         those facilities were found to have any consistent
 9         measurable and significant effects on selling
10         prices of nearby homes.  No matter how we looked
11         at the data, the same results kept coming back --
12         no evidence of widespread impacts.
13                  People in the past and present have
14         complained about the annoyance of the flicker
15         effect and noise.  The Massachusetts Department of
16         Environmental Protection in collaboration with the
17         Massachusetts Department of Public Health convened
18         an independent panel of experts to study the
19         potential health impacts of wind turbines.  Their
20         result was that they found was insufficient
21         evidence that noise from wind turbines directly
22         causes health problems or disease.  And for those
23         worried about noise affecting the ocean, it is of
24         little environmental concern.  And this is from a
25         Ph.D. biologist at the University of Liverpool's
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 1         Center for Marine and Coastal Studies.  Flicker
 2         effect will not be an issue because the turbine is
 3         in the ocean three miles away from Block Island.
 4                  The other argument is that wind turbines
 5         kill birds.  Yes, wind turbines kill birds, but
 6         more birds are killed by cats, power lines,
 7         communication towers, and windows annually per
 8         year.  People argue that wind turbines will
 9         decrease tourism, but the opposite is true.
10         According to a 2007 University of Delaware study,
11         44.5 percent of out-of-state tourists were more
12         likely to take a boat tour of a wind facility.
13                  Now, in conclusion, some of you may
14         wonder why I'm here, coming down in the middle of
15         a school day kind of thing, and why I'm standing
16         here today, and I have a really simple answer, and
17         that's family.  I am blessed to have a grandfather
18         who taught me to fish, clam, lobster right out
19         there in Point Judith, and I don't want the
20         opportunity to be taken from other kids of my
21         generation.  It would just be a horrible loss.
22         So, on the positive note, we must move forward on
23         climate and this can be Rhode Island's first big
24         step.
25                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Kirsten
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 1         Maar.
 2                  MS. MAAR:  Thank you very much.  I have a
 3         tough act to follow after my son, but I'm very
 4         proud of the fact that where we talk here about
 5         problems that are associated with wind turbines,
 6         my son works on them.  He's out there building
 7         them, working on them.  As a mother, do you think
 8         I would put my son in harm's way?  Absolutely not.
 9         So, what you hear tonight is you'll hear it's
10         going to decrease property values, we're going to
11         get radiation from power lines, we're going to get
12         all of these horrible things.  If any of this were
13         statistically or significantly true, please look
14         at Europe.  Please look at the amount of offshore
15         wind that is provided by in Europe, in Denmark.
16         Their electric bills are reduced.  There are no
17         health effects, tourism increases.  We're facing a
18         horrible future in Rhode Island if we look at last
19         storms.  If we don't go to renewable energy, if we
20         don't adapt to a post-carbon climate future, it's
21         not even going to be an issue about a power line
22         on the beach because the beach will be gone.
23         Those houses will be gone.  And we have an
24         opportunity to lead the country.  We're a small
25         state.  We can act like a big state and support
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 1         this wonderful project.  Thank you.
 2                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is John
 3         Thompson
 4                  MR. THOMPSON:  Thank you.  I'm a resident
 5         at 20 Narragansett Avenue, so I could see those
 6         power lines coming in now.  As it turns out, I
 7         went to the public hearing that the Waterwind had
 8         in December of 2011 for Narragansett residents
 9         where they showed us how the power lines, the
10         transmission line, will not affect us because it
11         will all be going underground.  Everything's going
12         to be underground, won't have to worry about it.
13         Hurricane wind comes through, you won't have to
14         worry about these high tension lines coming down.
15         In fact, it turns out, the latest plans had them
16         all above ground.  We hear about the (inaudible)
17         utility poles, upgraded poles.  To me, making a
18         pole larger and more ugly does not upgrade or
19         enhance it.  I'm all in favor of renewable energy,
20         but it should be done the right way, and the right
21         way is not to put high tension wires across the
22         most scenic part of Narragansett and destroy the
23         view.  Do we want to have to redraw the town seal
24         and put the high tension wires in front of
25         everything that's going to happen?  That's not how
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 1         we do things.
 2                  We talk about Hurricane Sandy and the
 3         things that it has knocked down.  If you've lived
 4         in Narragansett the last couple of years, you know
 5         you can lose power a lot when those lines come
 6         down, and it's a big issue.  So, I'm very
 7         concerned about (inaudible) follow through because
 8         they haven't followed through on what they
 9         promised us in December of 2011.  They have
10         changed the plans, and we signed up for a
11         notification if there are any changes or any other
12         information they had, they would let us know.
13         We've never received notification that this had
14         changed.  In fact, we were astounded to find out
15         from others that they had changed.  The other
16         thing they don't tell you right now is is not just
17         (inaudible) lines, there's plans to put up
18         possibly a couple hundred more out there in
19         another area.
20                  So, when you look at the environmental
21         impact statement that's now available, it just
22         talks about the minimal impact of 5 turbines.
23         What's going to happen when there's 200 turbines
24         out there?  It's going to have a huge impact so
25         that when they talk about minimal impact with just
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 1         five, multiply that by 40, then you can see what
 2         the impact is going to be.  So, the minimal impact
 3         that they're referring to here is really just to
 4         get a foothold.  So, once they have five in there,
 5         they can say, oh, well, there wasn't a big impact
 6         with five, so we'll put another 200 in.  In fact,
 7         if you actually read the environmental impact
 8         report, which, in fact, is quite tough reading
 9         because it's, at least the version I have, is 373
10         pages long, does seem quite repetitive in terms of
11         saying well, we don't know how this is going to
12         affect the fish, we don't know how this is going
13         to affect things because it hasn't been studied.
14         We don't know how this dredging is going to affect
15         marine life, and so we'll find out.  Again, the
16         studies started before installation, before
17         dredging, and then follow for afterwards.
18                  Again, based on the behavior I've seen so
19         far, I don't believe that we're necessarily going
20         to have the follow-through and actually see what's
21         happening, what the impact of these stations are.
22         So, again, I'm, as the last two speakers, I'm
23         fully in favor of renewable energies sources, but
24         it has to be done the right way.  It has to be
25         done in an economically sound way and an
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 1         environmentally sound way.  Just because it's
 2         renewable doesn't mean it's environmentally sound.
 3         You can do things really badly, and under the
 4         guise of renewable energy, that's what (inaudible)
 5         we're talking about doing renewable energy, which
 6         everybody's in favor of, but only at the expense
 7         of Rhode Island rate payers, at the expense of the
 8         environment out in the ocean, because we don't
 9         know the impact of the dredging, we don't know the
10         impact of putting all these, not just five, but
11         hundreds of wind turbines out in the bay that we
12         rely on for both the scenic beauty as well as the
13         fishing and shellfish and everything else that's
14         out there.
15                  It is going to be an impact that we don't
16         understand right now; and to approve this without
17         really understanding it, I think is a huge
18         mistake, especially since it is not economically
19         sound or else they wouldn't have to rely on the
20         Rhode Island taxpayers and rate payers to
21         subsidize this project.  And that's exactly what
22         it is.  It's not -- it's one thing if it's being
23         completely funded by Deepwater Wind.  In fact,
24         it's not.  It's being funded by Rhode Island
25         taxpayers, and that's something that I don't think
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 1         is the right thing to do.  If they can't fund this
 2         on their own, it shouldn't be built.  There are
 3         other alternatives for renewable energy sources
 4         beyond wind turbines that don't make economic
 5         sense, and we have unknown environmental effects.
 6         Thank you.
 7                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Bob
 8         Donaldson.
 9                  MR. DONALDSON:  Good evening.  I have a
10         house at 75 Boon Street in Narragansett, and I
11         have actually been working on wind power for
12         private plants, being an electrical engineer, and
13         I've been doing this for like three or four years
14         now, and this, to me, is both economically and
15         environmentally unfeasible.  I subscribe to MIT
16         Technology Review.  Just published.  Be happy to
17         send anybody a copy of this if you'd like.  But
18         I'd like to quote here from David Victor, an
19         energy expert from the University of California in
20         San Diego, there's going to be a blood bath in
21         wind power, and the reason for that is that it
22         just doesn't make economic sense.
23                  They are talking -- first of all, we pay
24         at the moment depending on whether you have
25         local -- a local generator or you're National Grid
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 1         or one of those, you pay between 4 and 8 cents a
 2         kilowatt hour for generation.  They are proposing
 3         to sell this stuff for somewhere around 20 cents,
 4         18 to 22 cents a kilowatt hour.  So, you're
 5         talking about at least a three-fold increase in
 6         the cost of generation.  People just aren't going
 7         to pay this.  That's too far out of bed.  There
 8         are alternatives.  I happen to have my whole house
 9         is filled with LED lights, and my energy bill has
10         gone down by approximately 25 percent since I've
11         install those.  Dow Chemical is building solar
12         shingles, which means you're going to put up a
13         panel, just outfit your house with solar shingles
14         that has proven to be economically feasible.  They
15         are currently building a huge plant in Michigan to
16         be able to supply the whole country.  At the
17         moment, they supply a few states, and it's working
18         out very well.  They're now building a big plant
19         to be able to supply more of these.  So, there are
20         other ways of providing energy.
21                  I have maps, which you can get online.
22         This is Rhode Island average -- annual average
23         wind speed at a height of 80 meters.  I apologize
24         again.  I can give these to the people if you'd
25         like to see them.  If you look at Block Island out
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 1         here, and that's -- there, I believe on the
 2         southeast corner is where they're proposing to put
 3         these.  Those are marginally feasible to put wind
 4         turbines.  These are not the best places in the
 5         country to put a wind turbine.  And you can see
 6         like the yellow is completely -- it's half the
 7         average wind power you need.  So, I looked at this
 8         in some detail.
 9                  Environmentally, if you look at what
10         they're now talking, I believe 30 megawatts; and
11         if you take 30 megawatts and you're running 35
12         kilowatt, 35 KV line, that amounts to, I believe,
13         somewhere between 5 and 600 amps.  You need to
14         look into that.  I don't know exactly what the
15         effects on humans are, but our bodies are made up
16         of several billion in magnetic di-poles, and
17         that's why MRI's work.  So, we may be imposing
18         24-7 MRI's on people, and that needs to be looked
19         into.  I don't know if that's true.  So, all I
20         know is when you have that much current, you have
21         a big magnetic field and there's wires, and some
22         distance away from them, I know in Massachusetts,
23         I play golf on a golf course where there's power
24         lines going overhead and the golf clubs in my bag
25         rattle.  Truly, it does.  I can tell you it's a
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 1         newer country club.
 2                  So, anyway, I think that we need to look
 3         here.  First, the feasibility of the project is --
 4         there's just other methods that are better to do
 5         renewable energy.  I'm all in favor, but I think
 6         we need renewable energy.  We need to approach it
 7         systematically, analytically, and do it correctly,
 8         and I think this is jumping off a cliff.  We're
 9         going too fast.  We should -- I'm unaware of any
10         results from wind turbines, yet, that demonstrates
11         that these are literally a good thing to do.  So,
12         where are the test results from projects that
13         already exist because there are projects that
14         exist, and I don't know where there are any
15         results.  Thank you.
16                  MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Our next speaker
17         is Robert Malin.
18                  MR. MALIN:  Hello.  I'm a big supporter
19         of renewable resources, and I've personally been
20         toward a smaller scale, as you've heard a lot of
21         people for a lot of reasons.  However, in watching
22         this project develop over the years, what I've
23         seen is global warming has advanced at a much
24         faster rate, and we need to add these industrial
25         solutions.  It's not my first pick, but I think
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 1         it's been picked for us.  And I think that it also
 2         provides an economic opportunity for Rhode Island
 3         to become a leader in having the first wind farms
 4         and developing this technology and build the
 5         turbines at Quonset Point.  They can build it for
 6         a submarine.  They can build a turbine for a wind
 7         turbine.  I think that there are some issues that
 8         need -- the cable changing from the underground,
 9         underwater cable to the transmission line.  It's,
10         you know, in the air, I think is an outstanding
11         issue.
12                  However, the economics of it I think are
13         unfairly waived for the fossil fuel industries.
14         Right now, Senator Whitehouse is working on a fee
15         and dividend system where fossil fuels will have
16         to pay for their byproduct.  You pay to have your
17         garbage picked up.  I pay for mine, but fossil
18         fuel industries don't pay for theirs, and that
19         plays into the economics of it.  Another thing
20         that's changed, as I have been watching this, is
21         the Federal Aviation Association reports a 70
22         percent -- I'm sorry, a 40 percent increase in
23         wind speeds.  So, we're basing some of these
24         output on, you know, on historic wind speed
25         average, but we're already seeing greater wind
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 1         speeds, and it makes sense to harvest it.
 2                  So, for me, I think what's most important
 3         is to find the right mix, but this needs to be
 4         fast-tracked, and this symbolic nature of this, of
 5         this project going ahead in Rhode Island gives us
 6         an advantage in developing this industry in the
 7         future.  And we can't forget that our economy, I
 8         don't tell anybody any surprise, is essentially in
 9         a shambles.  And this provides an opportunity for
10         us to turn this around.  So, with a few
11         reservations, things that still need to do, needs
12         to be a fair deal for people.  That's been my big
13         reservation from the beginning.  I thought it
14         should be a public utility project, because when
15         we had Narragansett Electric and we paid the bills
16         from them, it was a lot less than what we're
17         paying through National Grid now.  But that being
18         said, I think that it's been rained in, and the
19         site -- the siting is very specific to where they
20         have those five turbines.  I was there at the
21         hearing where they did the siting map.  I don't
22         know who it was, a couple of Federal people came
23         down or something, and they were very specific
24         that to expand beyond this would take the same
25         sort of study and expansion isn't automatic.  Of
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 1         course, their record will speak loudly.  They
 2         don't perform well, then they're not going to get
 3         that chance to expand either.
 4                  So, that's how I feel.  I feel that needs
 5         an industrial solution.  We need to go forward.
 6         However, we need to continue to make sure that
 7         rate payers are covered and, that we need to do
 8         this in the most environmentally sound way which,
 9         from what I understand, was the cable -- the
10         transmission being a cable, and that's where I
11         thought the agreement was.  Thank you.
12                  MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Next speaker is
13         Marie Schopac.
14                  MS. SCHOPAC:  I'm going to pass.
15                  MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Next speaker is
16         Dick Gruchek.
17                  MR. GRUCHEK:  Thank you.  My name is Dick
18         Gruchek.  I'm a fishing vessel owner out of Point
19         Judith, out of Narragansett, Galilee.  If anybody
20         doesn't understand it, we have an extensive
21         fishing industry locally.  We've been under siege
22         from a lot of different directions.  The
23         environmental non-Government organizations are
24         claiming that we tear up the bottom with our nets,
25         so that we should be put out of business.  They
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 1         claim that we should have marine protected areas
 2         so that the fish will thrive, and fishermen are
 3         kept out, the fish will thrive and stop wrecking
 4         the bottom.
 5                  Now, to be quite blunt about it, this is
 6         got to be the worst, most ridiculous idea I have
 7         ever heard in my life.  You're putting a very
 8         ancient form of energy production with, I've
 9         heard, 8,000 moving parts, there are
10         transmissions, there is hydraulic oil in the worst
11         possible environment known to man, the North
12         Atlantic Ocean.  It's either flat calm and fog or
13         it's blowing gale.  And usually those things
14         happen within the same day.  You start out in the
15         morning with flat calm so that the windmills will
16         be clamped in.  You go to the southwest breeze
17         coming in the afternoons and you're going 25 to
18         35, sometimes 40 knots, every day.  As the land
19         heats, it sucks in cool ocean air and creates a
20         wind flow.
21                  Now, I understand that windmills operate
22         within a certain range.  I understand that.  One
23         of the problems we have is that 3 miles off of
24         Block Island are some of the richest fishing
25         grounds known to man.  The windmills will tear up
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 1         the bottom.  The transmission lines will tear up
 2         the bottom.  There's been no research done in
 3         terms of the magnetic fields that these
 4         transmission lines, for instance, carrying
 5         megawatts of power are going to create, the
 6         situation will create for the fish, for the
 7         spawning, and that's all the time.  The initial
 8         shock of driving sheet pile 250 feet into the
 9         substraight or concrete pilings, whichever one
10         they're going to use, also is going to have a
11         devastating effect on our lobster, our Yellow
12         Tail, our Cod.  We have cod spawning grounds right
13         in the area that these are proposed to be put.
14                  So, I can go on for 3 hours.  I've been
15         to a lot of meetings from Bureau of Ocean Energy
16         Management, the Department of the Interior, the
17         Minerals Management fame by the way folks, the
18         overseers of the Deepwater Horizon spill, these
19         are the people from the Federal Government that
20         are pushing this.  I've been to many, many, many
21         meetings in New Bedford and Glocester, up and down
22         the coast, speaking up for fishing.  Another
23         problem we have with this is that the transmission
24         lines are going to be buried they said.  Well,
25         they're going to bury them 6 feet.  Anybody that's
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 1         had any dealing with the ocean bottom out here
 2         knows that after a storm, the whole thing changes.
 3         It's dynamic.  It's a dynamic environment where
 4         the wrecks will actually -- World War II wrecks
 5         will actually emerge after a storm, the sand
 6         shifts so much.  So, if you put transmission lines
 7         6 feet under the mud or under the sand, they're
 8         going to be exposed in no time flat.  They're not
 9         going to go over rocks; they're not going to drill
10         6 feet into rock to put these transmission lines
11         down.  They're going to be exposed.  They're going
12         to be flopping around out there, as a matter of
13         fact.  We're not going to be able to fish around
14         them.  There's going to be a security zone.
15         There's going to be an area where we can't go near
16         it.
17                  The other factor is it's a hazard to
18         navigation.  The Coast Guard and the FAA, somebody
19         mentioned the FAA, found that the windmills
20         interfere with radar reception.  So, coming in in
21         a foggy evening when your radar goes out, you're
22         in really tough luck.  So, on a lot of different
23         levels, I can't speak for all fishermen.  I know a
24         lot of my fellow fishermen agree with me that this
25         is a very bad idea, extremely bad idea.  I would
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 1         say if you want to build windmills, subsidize
 2         homeowners and apartment building owners to
 3         install smaller units along with photovoltaic
 4         shingles like somebody was just talking about.
 5         There are a lot of alternatives than creating
 6         havoc on some of the best fishing grounds in the
 7         world.  It's not only five.  They're planning --
 8         BOEM, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, is
 9         talking about 200 windmills right off of
10         Nantucket.  Now, Nantucket Shoals is an area
11         that -- a large part of it has been closed to
12         fishing for 18 years.  We can't even steam through
13         there, no less fish in those areas.  That's
14         exactly where they're going to put these
15         windmills, 600-foot-tall towers.
16                  I lived in a 30-story tower in New York
17         City, and it was high.  Twice that is going to be
18         very, very high; very, very big, very, very wide
19         base, and a lot of disturbance.  There's people
20         talking about how great they are in Europe.  If
21         you read into it a little bit, you find that a lot
22         of foundations are crumbling, a lot of the
23         Hawaiian wind farms were a debacle.  They're
24         falling apart.  These things are maintenance
25         intensive.  In fact, Portsmouth, Rhode Island, has
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 1         a windmill that the city bought, and it's been out
 2         of commission for 8 or 9 months and they can't fix
 3         it because it cost $250,000 or something like that
 4         to put a new transmission in.  So, the maintenance
 5         is incredible on these.  When you put them in, the
 6         most hostile environment that you can imagine,
 7         you're really asking for trouble.  You're asking
 8         for incredible maintenance costs.
 9                  Jobs, yeah, there'll be an influx of
10         jobs.  There will be a lot of people from Oklahoma
11         and Texas coming to build this and then they're
12         going to disappear, and then you're going to have
13         a skeleton crew flying around in helicopters
14         replacing parts.  That's what it's going to be and
15         you're going to have 5 people doing that probably.
16         I put $1400 worth of zincs in my boat every year
17         to keep it from corroding, okay, and that's an
18         80-foot vessel.  Can you imagine the corrosion of
19         straight current corrosion that's going to be
20         happening on these?  The maintenance is going to
21         be overwhelming.
22                  I don't want to go on and on and on.
23         Thank you for listening, and I just want to
24         sincerely object to any such project as this.  We
25         are all for renewable energy.  Our ocean has
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 1         warmed incredibly.  We have fish that never got
 2         above Cape Hatteras, going up to Long Island and
 3         off Nantucket now because the ocean is warming.
 4         We could stop using so much oil.  That's a
 5         possibility, and there are a lot of other projects
 6         that could be funded to supply some clean energy
 7         besides wind.  So, thank you very much.
 8                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Jim O'Neil.
 9                  MR. O'NEIL:  Good evening, gentlemen.
10         I'd like to begin by thanking you for providing
11         those of us who are interested in this issue the
12         opportunity to address you.  Not to be
13         cantankerous, like I can be on occasion, but as I
14         understand it, the purpose of this evening's
15         public comment opportunity is to address
16         Deepwater's application for water quality
17         certification in accord with the rules and regs.
18         for dredging.  So, it seems to me that while I
19         certainly appreciate the opportunity for us to
20         talk from a philosophical event, and a factual
21         event, like the gentleman before me just did, but
22         it seems to me that what is before us is whether
23         or not they should be permitted to dredge.  I
24         think that's why we're here.  If I'm wrong, I
25         stand to be corrected.
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 1                  Now, my position, obviously, is I'm in
 2         opposition to the Deepwater project in its
 3         entirety, and my position this evening is that it
 4         is premature for DEM to entertain an application
 5         for a dredging permit when we don't know exactly
 6         where that dredging will take place.  There has
 7         been no decision made by the Town of Narragansett
 8         with respect to the proposal to bring a cable
 9         ashore at the south end of the town beach.  I know
10         about every grain of sand in that area.  I used to
11         be a lifeguard about six years there, and when we
12         talk about shifting sand, believe me they do
13         shift, but we don't know if it's going to be
14         there.  We don't know whether we have overhead
15         telephone poles that are going to be extended 10
16         feet in the air here in Narragansett.  We don't
17         know if we're going to have a substation as
18         proposed next to the senior center down by Sprague
19         Park.  We don't know any of that at this juncture.
20                  So, obviously I have the greatest respect
21         for DEM.  I think we worked together before, and I
22         think you all understand that in my other life, I
23         served as the environmental advocate for the
24         state, but what I don't know is this issue is
25         right at this juncture.  So, I'll put that before
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 1         you as food for thought for openers.  Then if I
 2         could move on to the thought that I don't know the
 3         weight and dimensions of the cable itself, let
 4         alone the location, I'm sure you probably do know
 5         the weight and dimension of it, but I did hear
 6         some conversation when certain parties inquired as
 7         to the disposition of this cable after the 15 or
 8         20 years of shelf life of the project and
 9         turbines, what would become of the cable, and it
10         was indicated that the cable would remain in the
11         ocean floor.  When the question why was posed
12         would it remain on the ocean floor, I understand
13         that the response was, and I can't tell you who
14         responded in this fashion, I apologize for that,
15         it was the industry standard to leave steel cable
16         on the  ocean floor.  I'm sure there's no one at
17         this table that agrees with that.  I don't know
18         what the industry standard would be because this
19         is somewhat of a situation of first impression.
20         We haven't had a project of this nature to
21         entertain before.  But what will happen is, in
22         fact, the cable has to be removed.  The cost of
23         that will be on the backs of the rate payers.  And
24         there's been much talk of the cost.
25                  I'd like to refer you to the PUC
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 1         hearings, and this was on the record at the PUC
 2         hearings.  This project will result in
 3         above-market cost to the rate payers over the
 4         20-year period of the project totaling $490
 5         million.  That is going to cause the 38 Studios to
 6         look like a day at the beach.  $490 million cost
 7         to the rate payers over a 20-year period.
 8                  The gentleman who testified,
 9         Mr. Donaldson, the engineer, he certainly had
10         wonderful facts to share with us all.  We
11         appreciate those facts.  Somewhat parallel the
12         fact that I received when I first got into this
13         issue in February of 2010 from a gentleman named
14         Roy Bonner, B-O-N-N-E-R.  He was on Governor
15         Carcieri's stakeholders' committee.  He's a
16         professor of engineering at Brown University.
17         He's now retired in Little Compton where he heads
18         up a coalition opposing the construction of wind
19         turbines in that area.  He's an incredible source
20         of information, but his thoughts definitely
21         parallel those shared with you tonight by
22         Mr. Donaldson; and Dick Gruchek, there's no one
23         that can say it better.  I mean, you think to
24         yourselves, if we've ever given this $60 million
25         tax credit scam, scheme, whatever you want to
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 1         characterize it as, to the fishing industry, give
 2         them an opportunity to carry on with the great
 3         tradition the fishing fleet enjoys here in
 4         Narragansett, Point Judith, and I know, I packed
 5         fish at the co-op when I was 16 and 17 years old.
 6         That was a long time ago.  We have a reunion every
 7         year, as a matter of fact.  Imagine if they ever
 8         got this type of economic assistance.
 9                  Now, the idea of climate change, there's
10         not one of us in here, I don't think, that is --
11         that doesn't consider themselves an
12         environmentalist.  And I think it's wonderful that
13         that young man from Unity College and his mom
14         could speak towards the issue.  And I certainly
15         commend them and I appreciate their thoughts.  But
16         we need to know all.
17                  Sources of energies purchased by National
18         Grid don't consist of fossil fuels.  We all know
19         the majority of energy purchased by the Grid is in
20         the form of natural gas.  We don't use oil.
21         Everybody talks about oil dependency.  That's not
22         the case.  That's not where we get our energy
23         from.  The majority -- when we say the majority,
24         we're talking about 78 percent.  The other idea is
25         there was talk about flicker effect.  Well, I can
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 1         say when you're 3 miles offshore, I really have to
 2         address the issue of flicker effect because there
 3         is an organization in Charlestown, citizens'
 4         group, I mean two folks have come here today,
 5         hopefully they address you.  They had a guest
 6         speaker three weeks ago from Falmouth, Mass, where
 7         they're tearing down the turbines because of the
 8         flicker effect.  The adverse effect the turbines
 9         have had on people's health, not to mention the
10         value of their property; but it's resulting in the
11         turbines being torn down.
12                  Now, lastly, if I may, there was some
13         representation in Europe, these are the concept of
14         the day.  Well, just a week or two ago, the United
15         Kingdom, which we know is not in Europe, it's the
16         United Kingdom, but the United Kingdom has banned
17         any and all wind turbines being constructed on
18         land.  So, Europe, United Kingdom, are now
19         catching up with this concept that this is not
20         feasible, not to mention that those who are
21         dependent on turbines and wind in Europe, they
22         have socialized programs.  This is not a
23         socialized program that we participate in in the
24         United States of America last time I checked.
25                  Now, the other thing, I leave you with
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 1         this.  We're talking about towers that are 650
 2         feet tall.  Can you imagine the stress that the
 3         ocean floor is going to sustain when the pilings
 4         are constructed to support those turbines?  I
 5         don't think we can ever be in a position to even
 6         measure the negative impact at this juncture.  And
 7         lastly, I'd like to close by providing you a
 8         document I think you probably already have, and I
 9         know Mike Elliott from the Army Corps. of
10         Engineers, I'd like to thank him.  He's been so
11         cooperative in passing on information as you folks
12         are as well.  But he received a communication from
13         the United States Department of the Interior.  I
14         don't know, Mr. Gagnon, whether you or your
15         colleagues have received that.  I'd like to pass
16         it on to you, but I'll take the liberty of doing
17         so at this time.  It talks about -- I'm going to
18         cut my comments short, but it talks about the
19         applicant seeking a right-of-way permit from the
20         Bureau of Ocean Energy Management for activities
21         in placing of a submarine cable in several other
22         continental shelves waters.  And it talks about
23         National Park Service and how they mandate to
24         conserve the scenery and natural and historic
25         objects and wildlife here and provide for the
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 1         enjoyment, let's say, a matter of needs, to leave
 2         them unimpaired for enjoyment of future
 3         generations.
 4                  Importantly, the National Park Service
 5         urge the Army Corps., the BOEM, to fully analyze a
 6         no-action alternative for this proposal, pursue
 7         identification of a full range of reasonable
 8         alternatives, not rely too heavily on the content
 9         of the E.R. assessing impacts on this project.
10         That may have been done.  I don't know.  I mean, I
11         may not be up to speed on it because it's
12         something dated February 8, 2018 (sic), but I
13         think it's worthy for you to have in your docket.
14         May I approach?  Thank you once again the
15         opportunity and I'd like to thank my colleagues
16         because I think most of my thoughts came from
17         their body of knowledge.  So, I don't take
18         ownership for all my thoughts.  Thank you.
19                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Maggie
20         Delia.
21                  MS. DELIA:  Thank you for the opportunity
22         to speak.  Thank you for being here.  My name is
23         Maggie Delia.  I've been -- I'm a homeowner in New
24         Jersey and Rhode Island.  I have been working to
25         attempt to, how I like to put it is to preserve
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 1         Block Island and preserve what we know, what it
 2         feels like to be in our natural surroundings for
 3         the past five years.  My husband and I were
 4         interveners with the PUC in Docket 4111 when the
 5         first piece of legislation was introduced to have
 6         Deepwater have this contract.  It was turned down
 7         because it was not commercially reasonable.  It
 8         was not appealed.  Deepwater merely had to go back
 9         to the former governor and the legislature to get
10         a new bill written.  I have to say I was naive
11         about how things happened around our Government
12         until I got involved with this.  I didn't know
13         that a former chief of staff of the Governor could
14         become eventually the CEO of the preferred
15         developer Deepwater Wind until I got involved with
16         this.  I didn't know that we could be championing
17         Deepwater Wind who has directors who were formally
18         with Enron, GE, former governors, I think, you
19         know, and so I thought a lot about what I could
20         say here, and I think what I really want to say is
21         I talked to a lot of people over five years.  I
22         talked to our current governor.  I've talked to
23         people who work with Deepwater Wind.  I've talked
24         to town council members in Block Island and here
25         in Narragansett, talked to National Park Service,
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 1         I've talked to Rhode Island Historic Preservation,
 2         I've talked to the PUC, I've talked to lots and
 3         lots of people.  And one of the things that I have
 4         noticed is how much resignation we live in.  And
 5         how much each of us don't know that we could be
 6         the person that has the future be different.
 7                  I've had also the opportunity to meet
 8         some of those great people along this five-year
 9         journey.  Do you know, in my good moments, I
10         really picture that we can have a future where
11         going to the beach really is still the shared
12         experience and when you say it, people know what
13         you mean.  They don't picture industrial wind
14         turbines, not just here in Block Island, not just
15         in Deepwater projects, but all along our coast.
16         The future is really in our hands, and I think
17         it's in our hands in a way that's it's never been
18         in our hands before.  And, you know, when I listen
19         to some of the people talk about the studies that
20         shows there's no impact on health, the study that
21         shows there's no impact on real estate, there are
22         a lot of US studies and there's a lot of pressure
23         from the US Government to have this thing happen.
24                  I'm old enough to remember when Monsanto
25         and Dupont were pesticide companies and chemical
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 1         companies before they took over our food, and no
 2         one asked us if we wanted that to happen.  It just
 3         happened.  I thank God that there are people who
 4         care enough about what is happening in their
 5         backyard, that they're getting involved in this
 6         issue because we didn't get this chance with our
 7         food, but we're going to get the chance with wind
 8         turbines, and we're getting a chance with natural
 9         gas, which I also think is horrendous.  And I
10         don't know what the answer is, and I am an
11         environmentalist.  I have worked as an
12         environmentalist since my father brought my
13         sisters and I on walks since we were little kids,
14         and help preserve 10,000 acres in the pine
15         already -- I won't get into that -- in New Jersey.
16         But there's something really wrong, and we can be
17         resigned, and I ask you to really do what you can
18         do to have something happen because you say so,
19         because right now it is lobbyists and corporations
20         and hedge funds and all of those people who are
21         determining and designing our future.  And we are
22         just visitors here.
23                  I met a farmer once.  There was an event
24         on his farm and people were thanking him for
25         sharing, you know, having that event on his farm,
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 1         and he said, you know, this is not my farm.  I am
 2         merely the holder of it for maybe not even that
 3         many more years.  So, this ocean does not belong
 4         to Rhode Island or to the Governor or to Deepwater
 5         Wind or to even any of us; but we do have the
 6         opportunity to preserve it.  We have the
 7         opportunity to make it important to feel connected
 8         to the places that we live in.  We have plenty of
 9         strip malls and parking lots and highways.  Our
10         oceans are really, really important, and they're
11         not just important for us, they're important for
12         the fishermen because I can only imagine what it's
13         like to wake up every day knowing the forces that
14         you're dealing with to just have the job that you
15         have all your life, and to care about future
16         generations having that job.  So, I ask you to
17         know that I know that you and you and you and I
18         and you and all of us are someone who can have
19         something happen different about this and does
20         not -- we do not need five, 660-foot wind turbines
21         as a demonstration project to investors that's
22         going to cost people half a billion dollars in
23         over market rates.  If we came in and said,
24         listen, everyone in Rhode Island has to buy a car
25         and you have to buy it for $30,000 more than the
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 1         people in New York, no one -- it won't even
 2         happen.  And we're thinking about this.
 3                  So, thank you for the opportunity.  Thank
 4         you for listening, and thank you for being someone
 5         whose life is about making a difference about the
 6         world that we live in.
 7                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Maureen
 8         Oreglado.
 9                  MS. OREGLADO:  Good evening.  Thank you
10         for having this opportunity tonight for people to
11         come and share different or same views or points
12         of view.  I don't live in Narragansett, but I have
13         two grandchildren that I absolutely adore who do
14         live here; but I want to give you just a little
15         perspective of why I am here.  I don't have a
16         scientific background, but my whole life has been
17         in education.  I've been a teacher of all grade
18         levels and school administrator for a thousand
19         years.
20                  I live in Charlestown with my husband,
21         and we have been daily for the last two and a half
22         years fighting the installation of two industrial
23         size turbines in a residential neighborhood.  You
24         might be sitting here saying tonight why are you
25         here.  We're fighting ocean turbines, but I'm here
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 1         because I think we've learned some valuable
 2         lessons along the way that might overlap and might
 3         help you in your journey.
 4                  We started out, and I heard one gentleman
 5         who got up and left right after he spoke, but he
 6         urged you to fast track this project, and I'll
 7         tell you the hairs on the back of my neck stood up
 8         because that's exactly what happened in
 9         Charlestown.  It was a wink and a nod and let's
10         help our developer friend.  Things do not go
11         through the same process that you or I would have
12         to go through if we wanted to put a two-foot
13         extension on our deck.  Fast track, fast track,
14         fast track, hurry up, let's get this going with
15         stimulus money.  I can only get to the roof of
16         this town hall and tell you to put on the brakes.
17         Go slowly.  There's no big rush.  Make sure you
18         know what you're getting into.  We found tons of
19         research, and I'm going to tell you when you read
20         it, things -- do not believe everything that you
21         read.  Be critical readers.  Follow the money.
22         Lots of the research projects are funded by
23         lobbyist who are paid handsome amounts of money to
24         produce reports for the pro wind industry.  We
25         have people in our neighborhood said, Maureen,


Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500







Page 42


 1         this is a done deal.  There's nothing we can do.
 2         Please, you can do something.  We are a very
 3         small, small group that has fought this project
 4         developer for 2 1/2 years through the courts, got
 5         injunctions, because there wasn't enough evidence
 6         to really make us feel comfortable that we were
 7         going to be safe.
 8                  I didn't really come prepared to speak
 9         tonight, but I wrote crazy notes while people were
10         speaking, and I'm just going to ask to indulge you
11         and I'll try to go as quickly as I can.  We did
12         have a gentleman from Falmouth, Massachusetts,
13         come to our library a few weeks ago.  He had an
14         overflow crowd, standing room only, in the
15         library.  He told us things that we didn't know.
16         He said because they were town-operated turbines,
17         they were able, after two or three years, to get
18         them to shut them down during evening times; but
19         there's one privately owned turbine that runs
20         24-7, because that's where they make their money.
21         The two town turbines, who are now only operating
22         12 hours a day, they're not even breaking even to
23         get some money back to the town for the electric
24         rates.
25                  People have had a myriad of health
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 1         issues, and you can poo-poo them.  They brought in
 2         independent doctors who initially said these
 3         people from Falmouth, they must be crazy.  To a
 4         person, they have decided that they are not crazy.
 5         They are valid.  There have been attempted
 6         suicides.  When we visited Neil Anderson, he's a
 7         builder, he's been a builder for 35 years, you can
 8         imagine a builder, built a beautiful home for
 9         himself and his family.  His wife lives upstairs
10         in this gorgeous home in a small guest bedroom
11         from 7 in the morning until 7 at night with a
12         machine that produces white noise to try to keep
13         her from literally going crazy, listening to the
14         effects of the turbines.
15                  They have neighbors who just walked out
16         and abandoned their homes, beautiful homes.  One
17         woman left her home, gave the key to a realtor for
18         probably three-quarters of a million dollar home,
19         left a very lucrative florist business there, all
20         her resources were tied up in this little house.
21         She bought a tiny little fixer-upper, 3 or 4 towns
22         away because that's all she could afford.
23                  Think about the depreciation on your home
24         values.  I know this young man from the university
25         said that's not true.  I would offer you a
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 1         different perspective.  My husband and I have been
 2         in constant contact with the very nationally
 3         recognized firm, high credential, McCann,
 4         M-C-C-A-N-N, out of Chicago.  They've done
 5         national studies.  People within a couple mile
 6         radius of a wind turbine, your home values will
 7         start to depreciate by 25 percent.  I don't know
 8         about you, but I don't want to lose 25 percent off
 9         the value of my home.  People in Falmouth have
10         been forced to leave.  Who's going to buy their
11         home?  If it wasn't good enough for them to stay,
12         and they're having serious health issues, the
13         homes are sitting with for sale signs on them.
14         Nobody wants to buy them.  Would you buy that
15         house?  I wouldn't buy that house.
16                  One of the things that surprised us the
17         night, we had Neil Anderson at the library, we had
18         a happy accident.  There was a guest in the
19         audience, and he's a professor of ocean
20         Engineering from the University of Rhode Island.
21         His name is Dr. Peter Stapanian (phonetic).  He
22         lives in Westerly.  His area of expertise is
23         acoustics, and he said to people somebody can come
24         in with a machine to measure decibel levels.  Is
25         it within the acceptable range or not.  They can
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 1         measure the flicker.  But the thing that is the
 2         most deadly, is very, very expensive to measure
 3         and in most cases doesn't get measured and that's
 4         the infrasonic pressure from the turbines.  It's
 5         unseen.  It's unheard.  It's undetected.  It
 6         invades homes and it invades bodies.  That is what
 7         makes people on the Cape ill.  That's what's
 8         making the people on the Cape sick, and I see
 9         people in the audience laughing.  You can laugh.
10         You can go and do your own research.  You can go
11         down and talk to them.  I didn't laugh at your
12         presentation.  I don't think these people's lives
13         are anything to laugh about.
14                  He talked about these impulses.  He made
15         an analogy of having your car radio going and you
16         hear that thumping noise and over and over and
17         over again from the car stereo.  He said you can't
18         shut the windows, you can't shut your doors.  It
19         invades.  His neighbor, the night before he came
20         to speak to us, found 17 dead bats in his backyard
21         because the infrasonic pressure makes the bats'
22         lungs implode.  That has been scientifically
23         documented.  People talked about having good winds
24         here on the coast of Rhode Island.  The best wind
25         for wind energy are on the plains in the middle of
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 1         the United States.  They're not on the West Coast.
 2         They're not on the East Coast.  We talked to a
 3         gentleman from Deepwater.  He said he can only run
 4         the wind turbines at 47 percent capacity because
 5         of the wind.  When the winds are high, they have
 6         to shut them down.  We had someone in our town
 7         say, you know what, damn it, if we had those wind
 8         turbines up, I wouldn't have lost all the meat in
 9         my freezer during Hurricane Sandy.  I want to
10         scream.  This lady thinks she has a plug from her
11         refrigerator onto the turbine?  No.  And when the
12         winds are high, they shut the turbines down.  So,
13         it doesn't matter that we have high winds during
14         the hurricane because they shut the thing down.
15                  The Deepwater project, that's going to be
16         a demo project.  If that's successful, they told
17         us, spoke to the gentleman, they're going to put
18         hundreds out there off the shore.  Maybe one won't
19         affect somebody's health, maybe two won't affect
20         somebody's health.  I don't know what the health
21         implications are, but I will tell you to go
22         slowly.  Do your homework.
23                  We saw something on line the other day,
24         two scientists from France back in the 1960's who
25         work in a laboratory and they were working on
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 1         energy.  And as they were working, one man said to
 2         his colleague, you know, I'm getting a headache,
 3         and I'm getting light-headed.  I'm going to step
 4         out to get some fresh air.  The colleague said I'm
 5         having the same thing.  They went outside.  The
 6         symptoms abated.  They came back in, they started
 7         up again.  They did that back and forth a couple
 8         of times.  Then they noticed the coffee that was
 9         sitting in the coffee cup was undulating like the
10         waves out at Narragansett Beach.  That's when they
11         came up with the infrasonic studies and what they
12         would be doing and how that energy is emitted
13         without you even knowing it, hearing it, smelling
14         it, seeing it, or feeling it.
15                  I can't implore you enough.  Do not sell
16         your souls to the devil to get 15 percent off your
17         electric bill.  Is it worth your health?  I don't
18         know what the implications are, but I'll tell you
19         something, I'll be dammed I'm not going to use my
20         four-and-a-half-year and 18-month-old
21         grandchildren as a guinea pig to see what the
22         implications are going to be for them five or ten
23         years down the road.  There's not enough science
24         out there yet.  What's the big rush?  If it causes
25         harm to one person, it shouldn't happen in the
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 1         town.  It shouldn't happen anywhere.  But the
 2         government is pushing this, pushing this, pushing
 3         this.  If it's so wonderful, take the time, do the
 4         homework, get all your studies done.  The young
 5         man who talked about the Massachusetts Department
 6         of Health report, there's insufficient evidence in
 7         there and they do acknowledge that.  Maybe people
 8         don't know it.  That report was funded by the wind
 9         industry.  They believe the research is not
10         substantiated by peer reviews.  There's a
11         McPherson study that totally rebuts the whole
12         Massachusetts report.  There's several European
13         nations now that have moratoriums on turbines,
14         mostly because of the health implications.  And
15         they decided that there is not a good economic
16         return on their investment.
17                  I guess I would ask all of you who are in
18         the decision making for this whether it happens or
19         doesn't happen for Narragansett or Rhode Island,
20         I'm not eager to have Rhode Island be a leader in
21         this because I think that there's too many
22         unanswered questions yet, and I would ask you to
23         stop and think what is your legacy going to be to
24         this town?  Are you going to allow these monsters
25         to go on the water only to find out later with the
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 1         additional research this was a bad deal for Rhode
 2         Island, or are you going to take your time and
 3         protect the legacy for your children, your
 4         grandchildren and other generations to come.
 5                  Thank you for the time.
 6                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Abel
 7         Collins.  Okay.  Next speaker Mike Delia.
 8                  MR. DELIA:  Good evening.  Thank you for
 9         the opportunity to be with you and speak tonight.
10         I appreciate it.  I'm a property owner with my
11         wife and family on Block Island, and we've been
12         active in this conversation with Deepwater since
13         they first arrived on Block Island about four or
14         five years ago.  So, essentially, I'm opposed to
15         the project for quite a few reasons, many of them
16         I think from having done the reading I've done,
17         fall under the jurisdictions of DEM.  Some of my
18         comments, and poignantly so, are outside the
19         jurisdiction and the impact of that they're
20         outside the jurisdiction, leads me to another
21         request.  I was expecting -- I know the Army
22         Corps. of Engineers is here tonight, but at this
23         point, the Army Corps. is not agreeing to have a
24         public hearing for items that are outside your
25         jurisdiction, outside the CRMC'S jurisdiction and
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 1         certainly outside their jurisdiction.  So,
 2         there's -- Burton Russell was a philosopher who
 3         created an analogy associated with the
 4         burden of proof.  It's called Russell's teapot,
 5         with the scenario of which he claimed that there
 6         was a teapot, a cosmic tea pot spinning around the
 7         sun between here and Mars and you couldn't see it.
 8         You couldn't prove it wasn't true.  Now, it was
 9         absurd to consider that that was true, but the
10         burden of proof was on him to prove it was true
11         because it was so absurd.
12                  In case of a negative, it's impossible to
13         prove it's true and in the case of Deepwater Wind,
14         the burden of proof is moved from Deepwater Wind
15         to me, who's already here, to my family who are
16         here, the landowners, the residents of Block
17         Island and Rhode Island.  The -- so proving a
18         negative is impossible.  However, my conversation
19         specifically particularly surrounds the notion of
20         property value, real estate value, the impact of a
21         project of this nature on a piece of real estate
22         in a, I don't know how you call it, high-end,
23         beautiful pristine environment.  Thirty years ago
24         when we came to Block Island, it was a blue color
25         town, where we could afford to buy a piece of land
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 1         there.  So, we were blessed and lucky.  We have 14
 2         acres of land on the ocean.  Our right-of-way to
 3         our property, we have two ways in, it goes through
 4         the southeast light.  Our right-of-way is under
 5         the light.  The only thing between the lighthouse
 6         and the ocean is us, and the only thing between us
 7         and the Azores is the ocean.  Our -- a couple of
 8         references to the people who spoke earlier, and I
 9         appreciate the Berkeley Lab report on real estate
10         for siting.  It's been Ben Hoen, the lead author
11         for the Department of Energy is probably -- is
12         considered one of the top, if not the top expert
13         on the impact of real estate values, as a
14         theoretical practice, not as a guy who's spending
15         money to buy a piece of land.
16                  So, I read his report, and he made a
17         couple of points.  One was that ocean front
18         property increases value of a piece of property.
19         It's measurable.  The earlier speaker made a
20         comment that there's no evidence that real estate
21         values go down after the installation of a wind
22         farm.  In fact, according to Hoen's report, there
23         is no evidence that they go down afterwards
24         because the study that they did was entirely done
25         on interior farms and homes.  Interior of the US


Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500







Page 52


 1         is not anywhere near the coastlines.
 2                  So, the data that they have came from the
 3         sale of the homes that were sold in areas near
 4         wind farms.  They may have measured hundreds of
 5         yards, half a mile, a mile, two miles, three
 6         miles, different impacts of those things.  So, it
 7         was curious for me to impact because I'm a buyer
 8         and, you know, if you put a pair of bananas -- go
 9         to the store and there's a rotten pair and a
10         beautiful pair, more than likely you're going to
11         buy the beautiful pair and ignore the other one.
12         That's how I feel about Bayonne, New Jersey, and,
13         you know, the variety of industrial structures
14         that we deal with in our day-to-day lives.  We
15         don't even see them anymore.  So, I called and
16         conducted an interview with him and asked him some
17         questions about the nature of his data and the
18         nature of the work that he did.  And so he assured
19         me that they have not done any research around
20         homes that had ocean front value.  He considered
21         it pristine, but he had no data on that.  He
22         admitted that the real impact, the normal impact
23         about the impact on real estate values is after
24         the fact.  Since there aren't any wind turbines in
25         ocean front property, then he's not a buyer.  He
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 1         cannot make an estimate in that.  The problem with
 2         that is the burden of proof in this regard is upon
 3         me.
 4                  The CRMC, who has an obligation under
 5         their regulations to conduct a study on
 6         socio-economic impacts, had chosen to decline our
 7         request to intervene in their process to entertain
 8         any socio-economic impacts.  The Army Corps. of
 9         Engineers, at this point, has not chosen to have a
10         hearing.  And they are actually, in their
11         jurisdiction, able to conduct such a hearing that
12         will include socio-economic impacts.
13                  So, my assertion, I'm asserting this
14         publicly for the record that permitting this
15         project amounts to a taking.  The Rhode Island
16         Supreme Court, about four years ago, I have
17         citations for anything that I say, I have
18         citations that I would be glad to present to the
19         RIDEM.  What is it?  It's not a commission?
20         Department?  Yes.  If you -- so -- if you'd like
21         to receive one, I can do that.  But under the US
22         Constitution and Rhode Island Constitution, taking
23         property requires a process, due process, for
24         property owners.  The Rhode Island Constitution --
25         before I get to the Rhode Island Constitution, the
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 1         Rhode Island Supreme Court four years ago granted
 2         relief to a plaintiff who sued someone for
 3         securing a default in an unobstructed view.  So,
 4         the Rhode Island Supreme Court gave credibility
 5         and financial relief to someone who claimed that
 6         his unobstructed pristine view was property.  So,
 7         although in Rhode Island certain agencies and
 8         Rhode Island Department of environmental
 9         Management is one of them that has authority to
10         proceed with condemnation to take condemnation
11         proceedings on property, my assertion is that
12         Deepwater's project has an impact on not only my
13         property, but Southeast Lighthouse's property,
14         that Deepwater has not proposed mitigation to
15         anyone except perhaps the Southeast Light, and
16         mitigation, I'm assuming, I'm guessing only
17         through conversations I've had with people in
18         different associations, historic, and the
19         likelihood that the mitigation -- Deepwater is
20         going to propose to find something like paying for
21         a museum, paying for a museum at the Southeast
22         Light doesn't mitigate the fact that there are
23         going to be five Washington monument size towers
24         sitting 2 miles offshore.  So, although you have
25         the authority to do that, you haven't done so.
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 1         RIDEM has not started condemnation proceedings.
 2                  Deepwater Wind has not acknowledged the
 3         financial impact in its environmental assessment.
 4         Deepwater Wind has not offered mitigation to the
 5         impact.  The Army Corps. of Engineers, which has
 6         regulatory obligation to both review the
 7         socio-economic impact as well as advise Deepwater
 8         Wind objections to those impacts.  Now, if the
 9         Army Corps. of Engineers was here as a joint
10         sponsor of this, they could listen to that with
11         their jurisdictional power that they are actually
12         obligated to notify Deepwater Wind of this
13         complaint.  They have not done so.  And since they
14         have no standing in this hearing, I'm asking you,
15         I'm pointing to that is missing from the entire
16         proceeding.  So, my assertion is that permitting
17         this project is a taking.  It's an unauthorized
18         taking.  It's not lawful, and it's not consistent
19         with Rhode Island General Law for you to take our
20         property, authorize and permit the taking of our
21         property with proper procedures.  That would be to
22         begin a condemnation procedure as warranted by
23         your charter.  So, my English may not be so good,
24         I'm not an attorney, but I read a lot.
25                  So, the burden of proof is on me that
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 1         there's no financial impact.  The burden of proof
 2         belongs on Deepwater Wind.  Deepwater Wind's CEO
 3         claimed how they are part of the Block Island
 4         community for the past four, maybe five years.
 5         I'm probably misquoting, paraphrasing.  I've been
 6         adopted -- Block Island 30 years.  I own land.  My
 7         children, every one of them had their first job on
 8         Block Island.  I'm not an islander.  Ask anyone
 9         who is an islander.
10                  So, I have two requests.  One is that
11         you -- I have to read this.  I apologize.  I typed
12         all this stuff up, and I can't read my own
13         handwriting.  So, one is if you're going to permit
14         this project, before you do so, that you start
15         condemnation proceedings against my property and
16         property of anyone else affected.  The second
17         request is that you request the Army Corps. of
18         Engineers to hold public hearings on matters that
19         are not within the jurisdiction of Rhode Island
20         Department of Energy, Environmental Management, in
21         order to have those significant substantive
22         objections heard in public environment, with an
23         opportunity to examine both Deepwater Wind's
24         evidence and the evidence of the hundreds of
25         people and organizations who objected and
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 1         submitted timely substantive objections to these
 2         two projects.
 3                  Thank you very much.  I appreciate your
 4         time and the opportunity to have my voice spoken
 5         in this great nation that needs our voices heard.
 6         So, thank you very much.
 7                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Terry
 8         Tierney.
 9                  MR. TIERNEY:  Good evening, and thank you
10         for the opportunity to offer comments on the
11         Deepwater Winds proposed dredging activities, and
12         its request for issuance of a water quality
13         certification under the RIDEM and regulations for
14         dredging and the management of dredging materials,
15         and state water quality regulations.
16                  First, I want to commend RIDEM for
17         providing this basic right to comment at a public
18         hearing on an unprecedented request to develop
19         publicly owned coastal resources for private
20         benefit.  As you know, the United States Army
21         Corps. of Engineers has not provided such
22         opportunities for a public hearing with respect to
23         Deepwater Wind's plan to develop Federally
24         controlled coastal resources.  And the Corps. of
25         Engineers apparently sees no need to even allow
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 1         the public to comment at a public hearing on such
 2         plans before it decides whether to grant
 3         permission to dredge these Federal waters under
 4         the Clean Water Act.
 5                  The Army Corps of Engineers' actions in
 6         this regard are nothing sort of a disgrace.  RIDEM
 7         was wise not to follow the Federal Government's
 8         actions in denying requests, numerous requests,
 9         that a public hearing be convened in the affected
10         local communities.  The dredging permits and the
11         state water quality certificates for this project
12         should be denied.  The plans to disturb and
13         destroy winter flounder and lobster breeding
14         grounds and to litter the ocean floor with tons of
15         discarded metal from an abandoned transmission
16         cable are simply unacceptable and RIDEM should
17         deny the requested permits.  In fact, Rhode
18         Island, excuse me, RIDEM, should not even consider
19         the Deepwater request at this juncture.  The
20         applicant, as you may know, has not paid the
21         application fee due to the Coastal Resources
22         Management Council.  And it has not secured
23         permission from one of the affected communities to
24         carry out the project.  There is no evidence that
25         this is likely to occur, and Deepwater has shown
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 1         no proof that it will secure the needed local
 2         approvals.  Deepwater Wind's environmental report
 3         and DEM's notice of public hearing erroneously
 4         claim that the Block Island transmission system
 5         cable would, quote, make landfall on the Rhode
 6         Island mainland in the town of Narragansett.  That
 7         simply is not true.  The town of Narragansett had
 8         not granted permission to allow cable to land at
 9         the town beach.
10                  With all due respect to RIDEM, your
11         public notice is procedurally defective and very
12         misleading to the public in that it claims that
13         the transmission cable will land at a location
14         where it is not allowed to land.  The public
15         notice claims that the onshore facilities will not
16         result in fill or discharge into wetlands, but
17         there's no factual support for this position in
18         the absence of a secured landing area unless and
19         until the Town of Narragansett decides if it will
20         allow the landing.  This is completely premature
21         to ask the public to comment on the environmental
22         impact of the project.  At this point, the impacts
23         are largely unknown because the landing site has
24         not been secured and may never be permitted.
25         RIDEM has no business holding a public hearing on
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 1         a project that is not sufficiently final so as to
 2         permit the public to have a meaningful opportunity
 3         to be heard about its expected impacts.  Until
 4         this project developer can demonstrate a secured
 5         permission that is needed to carry out the
 6         proposal, RIDEM is wasting everyone's time.
 7                  But since RIDEM is processing the
 8         application as if they were sufficiently complete
 9         and is essentially turning a blind eye to the lack
10         of local permission to land the transmission
11         cable, they ought to at least undertake an
12         analysis of whether the proposed dredging
13         activities are truly in the public interest, and
14         the DEM should undertake its own independent
15         review of environmental impacts, as well as
16         available alternatives to the project and share
17         these with the public.
18                  To date, the public has had to rely
19         solely on information generated and maintained by
20         the applicant, and no genuine examination of
21         available alternatives has taken place due to the
22         applicant's outright refusal to discuss
23         alternatives within the environmental report it
24         submitted as part of this application.  Numerous
25         available alternatives exist for meeting the
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 1         state's renewable energy goals without sacrificing
 2         our environmental quality.  These options exist
 3         but they have not been evaluated by a neutral
 4         party.  As part of its decision-making process,
 5         DEM, therefore, needs to ask the hard questions,
 6         the basic questions that were left unanswered in
 7         the application, including whether the purported
 8         benefits to the project can be realized by
 9         alternative means that will not cause many adverse
10         impacts that are documented in developer's own
11         environmental report.
12                  Deepwater Wind has asserted in their
13         environmental report that the location of the
14         project has quote/unquote been dictated by a state
15         law, but that is a fallacy.  Rhode Island,
16         obviously, cannot dictate the location of the
17         facilities that are to be located partially in
18         Federal waters.  It can dictate anything it wants
19         with regard to state waters, but it can't dictate
20         anything to the Federal Government, and that
21         concept is absurd.  It has become clear that
22         Deepwater's project is not a so-called
23         demonstration project, as it's claimed, and that a
24         much larger offshore wind project is in the works
25         in Federal Waters where many of the adverse
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 1         impacts from this project would not occur.
 2                  Because this much larger project is
 3         proceeding, DEM needs to consider the cumulative
 4         impacts from dredging for both the proposed
 5         Deepwater project and the much larger project that
 6         is supposed to go off this year.  Deepwater's
 7         application fails to include information about
 8         expected cumulative impacts and DEM really needs
 9         to acknowledge them and factor them into its
10         decision on Deepwater's request.
11                  Assertions made by Deepwater are
12         questionable in many respects.  The company
13         consistently claimed that its impacts to the
14         project will be minimal and short term and that
15         restrictions on its plans are not necessary.  Of
16         course, that's exactly what it said to you about
17         the imposition of time-of-year restrictions on
18         construction activities.  That is before it
19         completely reversed its position and agreed to
20         implement such restrictions.  This sort of
21         complete reversal of position demonstrates why the
22         public is so suspect of the claims made in the
23         environmental report concerning the purported lack
24         of adverse impacts to the long term.
25                  Take the position of Deepwater with
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 1         regard to winter flounder spawning habitat as an
 2         example of what I'm speaking to.  The applicant
 3         admits that winter flounder have designated
 4         essential fish habitat within the project area,
 5         and the company also admits that winter flounder
 6         eggs and larvae along the miles and miles of
 7         trench for the cable may get buried too deep in
 8         sediment to recover.  Yet it dismisses these
 9         natural resource losses as acceptable.  They are
10         not.  Winter flounder are a species in severe
11         decline in this region as you know, and the plan
12         to bury winter flounder eggs and larvae for many
13         miles will only make matters worse and prevent the
14         recovery of this important fish species.  It only
15         stands to reason that many juvenile adult winter
16         flounder will ultimately be buried too deep in
17         sediment to recover.  We should not allow this to
18         occur, at least when there are many available
19         alternatives that have yet to be explored by the
20         applicant.  Impacts to fish from exposure to
21         electromagnetic fields emanating from the
22         energized cables is not well understood, and
23         additional research should be required to support
24         the application before such potential risks are
25         allowed to be introduced to the marine
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 1         environment.  Total reliance by the applicant on
 2         theories and a so-called theoretical detection
 3         level with regard to the EMF is not an acceptable
 4         substitute for science, and that's what should
 5         guide your decision.
 6                  The environmental report submitted by
 7         Deepwater underestimates the adverse impacts from
 8         dredging by assuming RIDEM will allow it to leave
 9         the transmission cable on the ocean floor when the
10         project reaches the end of its useful life.  RIDEM
11         has not granted such permission before and should
12         require the applicant's solid waste to be removed.
13         No other submerged cable has been abandoned in
14         place in the state to my knowledge, and it is
15         expected by many citizens that DEM will not allow
16         such solid waste disposal to occur on the ocean
17         floor.  Accordingly, impacts from dredging should
18         be assumed to be double the amount discussed in
19         the environmental report to reflect the need to
20         dredge in order to remove Deepwater's waste.
21                  Finally, DEM is urged to consider the
22         socio-economic impacts that will result in the
23         proposed project in deciding whether a permit
24         should be issued.  Impacts to private property
25         owners who will be affected by the project have
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 1         not been evaluated by the other state and Federal
 2         agencies, and RIDEM ought to require as a
 3         condition of any permit that it grants that
 4         compensation be made to those who will suffer a
 5         loss of property value as a result of the proposed
 6         project of which dredging is an essential part.
 7                  I just want to conclude by pointing out
 8         that -- how the project has been misrepresented in
 9         the environmental report as something that will
10         enhance the environment.  When, in reality, it
11         will degrade the environmental quality, and this
12         is accomplished by Deepwater by overstating the
13         purported environmental benefits while parsing out
14         and segmenting the adverse impacts.  Deepwater
15         parses out the adverse impacts of the two
16         components of the overall project environment
17         report.  The benefits alleged to flow to Block
18         Island are derived from completion of the bit
19         cable, which is not dependent on construction of
20         the wind farm.  Negative impacts are primarily
21         derived from the inappropriate location of the
22         wind farm.  The applicant should not be allowed to
23         lump the two projects together for the purposes of
24         analyzing impacts.  As it stands, the
25         environmental report combined the purported
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 1         benefits to the project and minimizes the adverse
 2         impact through impermissible segmentation of the
 3         project.
 4                  I'll just conclude by saying how the
 5         environmental report improperly excluded for
 6         considers numerous risks, potential turbine
 7         locations on the grounds that it's Rhode Island
 8         policy dictated, viable alternative location with
 9         the wind turbine array, but no basis for
10         eliminating an alternative analysis to these
11         locations that are purportedly dictated by Rhode
12         Island.
13                  Again, I thank you for your time.
14                  MR. GAGNON:  Our next speaker is Tina
15         Jackson.
16                  MS. JACKSON:  Tina Jackson, commercial
17         fisherman and speaking for the commercial fishing
18         industry in Rhode Island.  I couldn't agree more
19         with Terry Tierney and James O'Neil with several
20         instances regarding massive impact to marine
21         resources and premature --
22                  THE REPORTER:  Can I have you slow down
23         just little bit.  Slow down a little bit, please.
24                  MS. JACKSON:  Slow down a little?
25                  THE REPORTER:  Yes.  Please.  I'm taking
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 1         it verbatim and I can't even understand you you're
 2         talking so fast.  I couldn't even understand what
 3         you're saying.
 4                  MS. JACKSON:  I couldn't agree more with
 5         Terry Tierney and Jim O'Neil with regards to the
 6         impacts on marine resources as well as premature
 7         permitting of anything for dredging purposes
 8         regarding Deepwater.
 9                  There are two purposes here for myself to
10         make statements regarding destruction of marine
11         resources in the Block Island Sound.  Deepwater,
12         and I could go through all the corruption levels
13         and backroom deals that were perpetrated regarding
14         Deepwater, we all know that; but we still have to
15         keep it in the forefront because there are other
16         questions as to how this came about, why this came
17         about.  And allowing it to continue as the one
18         woman said go slow, very slow.
19                  When we take a look at Deepwater's
20         actions with their test turbines, the first test
21         turbine they put up, they couldn't even erect it.
22         The second one broke in half during 45 mile an
23         hour winds, and we're going to allow them to put
24         up 6 megawatt, 650-foot turbines.  They couldn't
25         even put the test towers up.  God's honest truth.
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 1         They have pictures of it over at Quonset Point.
 2         It was hysterical.  These winds are consistent in
 3         our area.  Imagine when we get 120 or 140 mile an
 4         hour hurricanes, what's going to happen to those
 5         55 turbines.  They're going to be gone.  The
 6         decommission cost that Deepwater has planned for
 7         this is only $350,000.  That's the payment that
 8         they have allocated for decommission costs.
 9         That's not going to cover the cost to take down
10         the blades on the turbines, let alone five
11         turbines, at the height they're at.
12                  The town of Narragansett council has a
13         motion before it on May 6th to suspend talks with
14         Deepwater in regards to allow necessary
15         transparency for the public benefit to occur.
16         Therefore, that, in itself, these hearings
17         shouldn't even be in progress at this point.
18         Deepwater does not have permission to continue.
19         In fact, Deepwater's permit and contractor is
20         literally terminated June 30, 2011, I believe,
21         because they failed to start breaking ground, so
22         to speak, and Torray Plastics actually thought
23         they had won their lawsuit based on that
24         termination of their contract, but, of course, our
25         General Assembly went behind closed doors with the
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 1         PUC, and did a little (inaudible) next you know
 2         everything was amended and here we stand today
 3         still talking about Deepwater.
 4                  Let's talk about the negative impacts on
 5         marine resources, FAA radar clutter.  Massive
 6         impact to boats and planes.  Five airports will be
 7         severely affected by the radar clutter that's
 8         coming off the turbines.  We just had a shut down
 9         for three years winter flounder as Terry Tierney
10         was speaking about, and we just got them back.  We
11         just got an allocation, a very small allocation
12         for the fishing industry, but we just got it back
13         and now we're going to allow Deepwater to go into
14         their prime breeding grounds and basically blow
15         them all up and destroy them for green energy
16         that's not really green energy in my eyes, and
17         there are many studies that are proving that to be
18         true.
19                  With regards to the EMF cable study done
20         by BOEM in September of 2011, there is high
21         impact, high negative impact on marine resources
22         specific to migrating whales, dolphins, and
23         turtles.  There's a massive negative impact on
24         navigation.  There's a massive negative impact on
25         feeding.  There's a massive negative impact on


Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500







Page 70


 1         breeding habits.  That's just the migrating
 2         species.  That has nothing to do with species that
 3         basically make Rhode Island Sound and Block Island
 4         Sound its home.
 5                  These turbines are basically in the dead
 6         center of regular migration routes, which is why
 7         they basically put it off until 2015 to allow
 8         migration to continue at certain times of the
 9         year.  I don't see what difference it's going to
10         make if they build them in 2015 or 2020.
11         Migration routes are not going to change for the
12         White Whales.  This is what they do.
13                  This is unacceptable to the fishing
14         industry.  Absolutely unacceptable.  The fishing
15         industry has had so much taken away from them over
16         the last years.  This is a direct correlation of
17         the catch-year program that was implemented by
18         NOAH in 2010, specific to consolidation of the
19         fleet.  And we made the connect a long time ago
20         they were whittling us away, whittling us away and
21         we all pointed to the oil industry for many, many
22         years, but now that there's big money to be made
23         in Federal stimulus money regarding wind energy
24         and faulty wind energy at that.  Now, we correlate
25         it to the proposal of 42 turbines all the way down
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 1         to Virginia.  What better way to get rid of a
 2         fishing fleet than to over regulate us out of
 3         business, therefore cutting back the cost of
 4         mitigation that Deepwater is basically saying
 5         they're proposing to the fishing industry here,
 6         but I can tell you a lot of fishermen don't want
 7         money.  They don't want Deepwater.  They want to
 8         be left alone to go to work and make a buck and
 9         provide jobs and provide a natural food resource
10         to the community.  Period.  End of story.
11                  Deepwater would save billions.  Actually,
12         First Wind, because First Wind is Deepwater and
13         Deepwater is First Wind.  Let's all make that
14         point very clear here today.  They're all one in
15         the same.  Whether they're in Hawaii, Maine,
16         California, Oregon, Washington, or The Gulf, it
17         doesn't matter, First Wind is all over the
18         country.  They're the largest provider of wind
19         energy, and they seem to get every single contract
20         in every portion of the country.  I wonder why,
21         especially connection they had to a (inaudible)
22         tower corporation and the corruption scandal that
23         just erupted over in Sicily, 17 percent of
24         Deepwater, I believe, is still owned by IVPC
25         (phonetic) according to one of the leaders --
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 1         documents and their research.  Now, if anybody
 2         doesn't know what IVPC is, it's Italian Vento
 3         Power Corporation --
 4                  THE REPORTER:  Ma'am, I have no idea what
 5         you just said.
 6                  MS. JACKSON:  I'll go back to IVPC.
 7                  THE REPORTER:  Thank you.
 8                  MS. JACKSON:  You're welcome.  You're
 9         very rude.  I'm sorry -- I'm doing my best --
10                  THE REPORTER:  Ma'am, I have a job to
11         do -- excuse me, I have a job to do, and I'm
12         trying to do it.  I asked you very nicely to slow
13         down.  I can't understand what you're saying, so I
14         can't take it down.  I'm not being rude.  I have a
15         job to do.  Thank you.  You're being rude to me.
16                  MS. JACKSON:  I wasn't trying to be
17         fast and/or rude.  I'm trying -- it's okay.  I can
18         take the heat.
19                  MR. GAGNON:  You'll have enough time.  Go
20         ahead.
21                  MS. JACKSON:  Thank you.  Let's take a
22         look at the Italian Vento Power Corporation
23         Connection.  According to my recent research, the
24         Italian Vento Power Corporation still holds 17
25         percent of Deepwater's subsidy and/or stock.  In
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 1         2010, the Italian Mafia police confiscated $6
 2         billion of the Italian Vento Power Corporation's
 3         assets as well as they arrested 10 executives all
 4         for wind fraud, every bit of it.  They were
 5         building turbines, getting massive taxpayer
 6         subsidies, never producing energy that said they
 7         were going to.  These turbines are basically
 8         ineffective and non-working, yet there's people of
 9         Sicily are still forced to pay exorbitant electric
10         rates for power they're not getting.  Now,
11         remember, this is all First Wind, but First Wind
12         is Deepwater.  Some of the executives that sit on
13         First Wind's board are former Enron executives.
14         Are these the kind of people that we want to do
15         business with?  Patrick Wood, III; (inaudible)
16         most of his connection to Enron still
17         documentation out there floating around somewhere,
18         try to get a hold of it myself.  These are the
19         kind of people that we're doing business with.
20         Italian Mafia, former Enron executives, and Rhode
21         Island DEM, it's been brought to their attention
22         prior, not very often, but I have mentioned it in
23         passing.  This is energy market manipulation at
24         its very best.  And if anybody doesn't remember
25         Enron, these people are getting away with doing it
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 1         again.  And anybody that would like information
 2         regarding IVPC and the connection to First Wind
 3         and Deepwater, by all means, come and see me and
 4         I'll give you the powerpoint presentation
 5         Deepwater did making their connection to UPC,
 6         First Wind, and IVPC.  I know, a lot of acronyms,
 7         I'm sorry.
 8                  Let's talk about high bird kill ratio.
 9         Let's talk about the Audubon Society and the Cape
10         Wind project, $8 million is waiting in the wings
11         for the Audubon Society to count dead birds.
12         Since when does the Audubon Society count dead
13         birds?  Their function is to protect birds and
14         protect species, just as I want to protect my
15         marine resources, your marine resources, they
16         belong to all of us, and I know it was stated at
17         one of the last meetings that the public trust
18         documents does not include the sectioning off of
19         our oceans and parsing it out to the highest
20         bidders.  I say that's not true.  It has
21         everything to do with the violation of public
22         trust documents.  It has everything to do with
23         that ocean being yours and yours alone.  It
24         doesn't belong to me.  It doesn't belong to the
25         Federal Government.  It doesn't belong to the Army
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 1         Corps. of Engineers.  It doesn't belong to Rhode
 2         Island DEM.  It belongs to you, the US Citizens.
 3         You can look it up.  It's a very simple statement,
 4         very simple amendment to our Constitution.
 5                  Currently, all the agencies are reviewing
 6         the original proposal of 3.6 megawatts to permit
 7         Deepwater, including this Rhode Island DEM.
 8         According to some of the sources that I spoke with
 9         today, these are two complete different projects,
10         as we all well know.  But the reviews are being
11         based off the initial proposal.  Where is the
12         completed environmental impact statement on 6
13         megawatt turbine, 650 feet tall?  There isn't one.
14         Where is the FAA hazard study, completed FAA
15         hazard study in regards to the 6 megawatt
16         turbines?  There is a basic dismantling of what
17         pilots need regarding the FAA hazard study,
18         decommissioning, so to speak, of their ability to
19         fly in and out of Block Island.  This will greatly
20         affect five airports in our surrounding area.
21         When you take a look at Docket 4111 -- 4111, there
22         is no indication that there would be any kind of
23         change and/or technological advances to basically
24         create a new proposal.  These are apples and
25         oranges.  We're talking about a turbine that's 300
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 1         feet higher than the original proposed turbine.
 2         These have never been built before.  Again, Rhode
 3         Island gets to be the guinea pig.  I believe
 4         Christopher Walker said it best at one of the last
 5         public hearings, that exactly what we are, are
 6         guinea pigs.
 7                  I believe over 400,000 pilots have signed
 8         the petition, 400,000, advocated in opposition of
 9         the disabling of the flight capability system,
10         which the Deepwater project does.  It basically
11         disables their GPS, their magnetic GPS compass,
12         which is what fishing vessels use, in order to
13         navigate the waters, in order to navigate the air.
14         Now, they all talked about the effects of the
15         flicker and EMF and all that, those are very true.
16         The EMF fields are very detrimental to human
17         beings, as well as animal species.
18                  I can't think of a better way to spend my
19         time than to advocate for something I know.  It's
20         not only bad for Rhode Island, but it's bad for
21         everybody in general.  And in the back of our
22         minds, we all know this.  I see people getting up
23         here talking about construction jobs that they
24         think they're going to get because they own a
25         small construction company.  I hear them talking
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 1         about jobs, jobs, jobs, when, in fact, Deepwater,
 2         themselves, has stated this will only create 6
 3         permanent jobs, at a cost of $250 million, and
 4         those jobs will only be given from within the
 5         company, won't be you or me or anybody else in
 6         this room.  It will be Deepwater personnel, First
 7         Wind personnel.  Nobody but them.  I don't know if
 8         anybody else has been paying attention to the
 9         Federal stimulus money and the cost of creating
10         these jobs since 2010, but I don't think $250
11         million is worth 6 permanent jobs for a company
12         that's going to make mass amounts of money off of
13         picking our pockets at 24 cents a kilowatt hour.
14         The Government's own reimbursement of 2.6 cents
15         per kilowatt hour, that leaves a big chunk of
16         change coming out of my pocket and your pocket as
17         well.  If nothing else, if nothing else,
18         regardless of what people feel for environmental
19         impact, regardless of what people feel for marine
20         resources, regardless of what people feel for
21         green energy, I'm the biggest advocate, I want to
22         spend the least amount of money with the most
23         efficient energy for anybody.  Believe me when I
24         tell you, the cost itself, alone, should not be
25         allowed.  It is too expensive.  It is faulty to a
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 1         T.  We can cite First Wind's project in Hawaii.  I
 2         mean that's a mess.  Spain, Portugal, many
 3         European countries are pulling their wind
 4         projects.  We should learn from their steps.
 5         They've already been through the process.  It has
 6         failed again and again and again, and here we sit.
 7         Here we sit.  Imagine that.
 8                  The reason history repeats itself is
 9         because we didn't learn our lesson the first time.
10         People say this is a done deal.  I don't believe
11         that.  I believe collectively and together we can
12         stand up to big corporate crony capitalists
13         companies such as First Wind.  I believe that we,
14         as a people, it is time that we stand together
15         against phony capitalists such as First Wind.  It
16         is time that your government listens to us.  We
17         pay them.  We elect them.  Next time when we go to
18         the voting booth, be very careful who you pick and
19         choose to represent you because they just very
20         well may sell you down the road as time goes by.
21                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Miles Grant.
22                  MR. GRANT:  Hi.  My name is Miles Grant,
23         representing the National Wildlife Federal, and
24         I'm a fast speaker, too, so just give me one of
25         these things if I'm talking too fast.  The
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 1         National Wildlife Federation is here to say that
 2         it supports offshore wind.  The threat to
 3         America's wildlife today is the climate crisis.
 4         We need clean energy.  We need it to be
 5         responsibly cited, responsibly constructed.  We
 6         feel that's what this project is.  Our state
 7         affiliate, the Environment Council of Rhode Island
 8         represents over 40,000 people in Rhode Island,
 9         supports this project as well.
10                  You know, if you look across this country
11         right now at energy resources, we're getting
12         energy from coal, from natural gas, from oil.
13         You're right that oil tends not to go to
14         electricity here in New England.  It goes to our
15         cars.  We're going to transition our cars to
16         electric energy sources.  We're going to need
17         clean energy for those vehicles.
18                  I've been to Virginia where they mine
19         coal.  Used to be they dug under the ground to get
20         coal.  Now, they blow up a mountain and pick up
21         the coal from underneath it.  I've been to the
22         Gulf to cover the Gulf War disaster.  I've seen
23         the impacts of that.  I was actually just in
24         Arkansas this month to cover the tar sand spill
25         there, want to talk about home values, talk to
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 1         people in Mayflower, Arkansas.  Actually, I wore
 2         these jeans tonight because when I got home washed
 3         out all the mud from walking through the marshes
 4         down there, looking at the dead ducks, dead
 5         reptiles, and I still have tar sand on my jeans,
 6         even after going through the wash cycle.  Imagine
 7         what it's like for the ducks down there.
 8                  So, the National Wildlife Federation
 9         strongly feels again, if these projects were not
10         right for wildlife, we'd be among the first to
11         stand up against them to say no.  We worked with
12         these developers to make them do the best for
13         wildlife that they can be.  I've got to tell you,
14         go to BP, go to Exxon, and ask them to do what is
15         right for wildlife and see how far you get.  Go to
16         NWF.  org/offshore wind, we've got reports on this
17         and read through.  Contact us.  Let us know the
18         questions that you have.  We feel this project and
19         others like it need to move forward to protect
20         America's wildlife.  Thank you.
21                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Karen -- and
22         I'm not going to get this last name right --
23         Shabshelowitz.
24                  MS. SHABSHELOWITZ:  Thank you for coming
25         to Narragansett.  I am a mother of six grown
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 1         children, who all love the beach and six
 2         grandchildren.  They all live out of state 'cuz
 3         there are no jobs in the state, but they've got --
 4         they have many happy, happy memories of going down
 5         along the beach, taking walks, digging out the
 6         little sand crabs that inhabit the beach, going
 7         after the little minnows that would go in the
 8         water, the little fish.  One of my sons absolutely
 9         loved fish, and he used to go down whenever the
10         bluefish were running, they'd run along the wall
11         and they'd jump out of the water.  That's right by
12         the beach where they'd run and it's just
13         fascinating.  It was like a little dolphin show,
14         but they were little blue fish.
15                  We moved to Rhode Island over 25 years
16         ago from northeastern Pennsylvania.  We saw what
17         strip mining did to the beautiful mountains in
18         Pennsylvania.  There were fires that couldn't be
19         put out.  There were -- a lot of people had black
20         lungs from breathing in the fumes, and they used
21         to try and fill up the mines so houses wouldn't
22         sink into the mines.  No one could have predicted
23         this was going to happen many years ago when they
24         first went after the coal.  And I have similar
25         concerns about a cable going for miles under our
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 1         beautiful beach.  People come to Narragansett
 2         because of the beauty of the beach, and that's
 3         year round, and the water is beautiful, the sand
 4         is beautiful.  I hate to think of that being
 5         destroyed, ambiance, the charm of the town.
 6                  I also think back to when they built the
 7         Jamestown Bridge; and when they were building it,
 8         they found quite a lot of rock under the bridge
 9         they did not know was there.  So that impacted how
10         they were going to build the bridge.  Also huge
11         cost overruns because of the lack of foresight
12         into what they'd be running into.  And so with the
13         Big Dig, when they built the Big Dig, a lot of
14         cost overruns.
15                  I went to that meeting at Narragansett
16         Elementary School December of 2011.  We were told
17         to sign in and they'd be in touch with us.  Fool
18         me once, shame on you; fool me twice, shame on me.
19         We never heard from them at all.  They didn't give
20         a presentation.  So nothing went on the record.
21         Went around asking questions of different people,
22         and I'm sure we all got different answers to the
23         same questions.  We never heard from them.  In
24         fact, it was the town member that found out in
25         reading the binders down in the library that they
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 1         intended to bring the cable above ground, rather
 2         than below ground.  I find it just preposterous,
 3         as a nurse, that you have -- when you make up a
 4         plan, you have input from the family.  Deepwater
 5         didn't care about input from the town.  They
 6         didn't care about what the people said.  They just
 7         went ahead and did what they wanted to do.  And I
 8         think they continue to do that because we've had
 9         several hearings where people have strongly
10         objected to the addition of larger telephone
11         poles, higher up in the sky, and additional poles,
12         and then we're going to build a substation down
13         near the community center which is going to put
14         more electrical apparatus.  I have no concerns
15         about the upkeep and the cable and what's going to
16         happen during the tidal storms that we've
17         experienced.  We've had power outages a number of
18         times that have lasted five days to a week; and
19         when the lines go down, they have to wait for the
20         wind to stop before they can go up and try to
21         repair them.  Some of the poles have gone down
22         also.
23                  I have a son that's a New York City
24         fireman and he's watched the fire that was in
25         Queens, and total neighborhoods were wiped out due
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 1         to the storm that they had never seen before.  I
 2         mean generations of people have lived in the areas
 3         and the whole area is changed now.  Whole
 4         communities are just gone.  And he described how
 5         when fire engines went, the hydrants were way down
 6         below the water because there was flooding
 7         everywhere.  And they have to try and pump the
 8         water without the fire hydrants because they were
 9         so far below.  Meanwhile, 50 houses burnt down in
10         one night.  I mention that because I also lived in
11         Pennsylvania.  We had a big storm at Adler's
12         (phonetic).  There was huge flooding.  It was back
13         in '70 -- no, it was in -- '79 -- well, I remember
14         going to Hartford to delivery a baby and I didn't
15         realize the whole front door was closed down
16         because of the floods that happened nine months
17         ago.  Trying to remember which child that was, but
18         that was totally -- we were totally unprepared for
19         that.  Most of you that have watched TV this last
20         week and seen these floods that are going on in
21         the midwest where barns are just pushed up against
22         the harbor.  I mean there's all these changes
23         going on, and I just -- I just don't trust a
24         company that doesn't want to hear what the
25         citizens want to say, and the citizen are
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 1         interested in and just go ahead and proceed.  You
 2         know, we've had these hearings and yet they have
 3         not acknowledged any change in the plans or
 4         anything like that, and I just wonder, you know, I
 5         don't want them to destroy the beach, and I find
 6         them projecting how much the electric bills are
 7         going to be highly preposterous.  I mean, how can
 8         they even tell because this is an experimental
 9         project.
10                  And I was an exchange student in Holland
11         many years ago.  They have beautiful windmills
12         that sort of kept up the ambiance of the
13         community.  I just can't see these big turbines
14         being at all pretty.  I think they ruin the
15         outlook to the ocean.  Also, in Pennsylvania, you
16         know, a lot of times hear banging, banging,
17         banging, banging.  They were trying to fill up the
18         mines.  That was some machines they used trying to
19         fill in the mines, so that there wouldn't be land
20         further sliding into it.  I have fear of what
21         these machines are going to be doing that are
22         trying to build this cable, and if they're 6 feet
23         under the ground, I have no concerns with what the
24         tidal storms will do to that.
25                  For a company that doesn't seem to
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 1         respect us, I have a lot of suspect about what
 2         they're going to do.  Thank you again for
 3         listening.
 4                  MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Abel
 5         Collins.
 6                  MR. COLLINS:  My name is Abel Collins.
 7         I'm a program engineer for the Sierra Club in
 8         Rhode Island.  We're a chapter of about 2,000
 9         members, and, nationally, the largest and oldest
10         environmental organization in the country.
11                  This has been a long project coming.
12         Only recently have we come around with all the
13         work that Deepwater Wind has put into doing
14         studies to agree this is a good project and the
15         direction that Rhode Island needs to be heading.
16         Speaking about negative impacts, you know, I think
17         any human activity is going to have negative
18         impacts on the environment.  That's just the way
19         we are with the environment.  What we have to do
20         is balance which is going to be worse.  And when
21         we look at the alternative to renewable energy, it
22         is significantly worse, even when we just look at
23         the narrow region of our bay.  We have first-hand
24         experience with oil spills right off the coast of
25         Matunuck where I, myself, live.  We have
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 1         first-hand experience with the rising sea levels
 2         which are eating away at our shores.
 3                  I grew up in Matunuck.  We've lost over a
 4         hundred feet of shoreline, that's just 10 inches
 5         of sea level rise.  That's only going to
 6         accelerate over the next hundred years.  I mean,
 7         it's hard to imagine, but I think someday I might
 8         have beach front property living a mile away from
 9         the beach.  And that's what we had to be concerned
10         with.  We have to worry about rising temperatures.
11         That's what's affecting the fish population more
12         than the cable going on the bottom of the bay.
13         Cables have been running across the Atlantic for a
14         hundred years now.  This is not new technology
15         that we're talking about in this project.
16                  Talk about Brayton Point, which is the
17         nearest coal burning power plant, the biggest
18         power plant in the Northeast, generates about 1300
19         megawatts of power.  That has major environmental
20         impacts.  They've had to build cooling towers that
21         you can see from over a state away, and they had
22         to do that because they were heating the waters up
23         in the northern parts of the bay affecting the
24         fish populations.  Those are the environmental
25         impacts that we should be more concerned with.
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 1                  The project that Deepwater Wind proposes
 2         is five turbines in this demonstration project.
 3         They've gone through environmental studies.
 4         They've done everything to make room for things
 5         like flight of the birds.  There's the migration
 6         of the White Whales.  They say they're going to
 7         postpone it and only do the installation of these
 8         five turbines when they're not migrating through.
 9         Allowances have been made for the environmental
10         concerns that are out there, and it's a good
11         project at this point.  And at some point, we need
12         to be transitioning to a renewable energy economy.
13         It has to be small scale projects.  I want solar
14         panels on my roof.  I want a small turbine in my
15         backyard.  And that's important to those sort of
16         moderate level things.  It's important to do small
17         things like turning off the lights when walking
18         out of a room, but it's also critically important
19         that we're doing the larger scale projects well.
20         It's going to take every level of energy to, you
21         know, prevent the worst of climate change, and
22         right now we're just not doing it.
23                  Last year we saw the second highest jump
24         in atmospheric concentrations of carbon dioxide
25         record, and we're already higher than we've been
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 1         in millions of years.  The science behind climate
 2         change and global warming is on the rise.  Back
 3         when we still had a beach in Matunuck, when we
 4         still had dunes that I played on, I did a science
 5         project in fifth grade, when I was 10, 1988, was
 6         when the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
 7         just started its work addressing climate change.
 8         To my ten-year-old brain, the science of climate
 9         change made sense and you could conduct a small
10         experiment that made it work.  All you have to do
11         is put two terrariums next to each other, put
12         carbon dioxide in one of them and measure the
13         temperature as you go along.  It's science.  It's
14         real, and it's time we started doing something to
15         address these changes that have been occurring for
16         years, decades, and are now really threatening our
17         infrastructure, homeowners along the beach, and
18         really the money that's public money that's going
19         to go to try to protect these people and this
20         infrastructure.  It's time to take action, and
21         we're not going to be able to do it all in Rhode
22         Island, but we're responsible for a piece, and
23         this is one of the ways that we can start doing
24         those changes.  So, I encourage everybody to
25         support this project.  It's not perfect, but
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 1         nothing in life is.  And that's good enough for us
 2         to consider.
 3                  MR. GAGNON:  That concludes all the
 4         people who have signed up to speak.  Is there
 5         anyone else who wishes to say anything that hasn't
 6         signed up before we close the hearing?  Okay.
 7         Thank you very much.  Thank you for your
 8         participation and cooperation, and we'll close the
 9         hearing.  Thank you.
10                        (CLOSED AT 8:52 PM)
11                            ************
12
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 1                     C-E-R-T-I-F-I-C-A-T-E
 2
                    I, RONALD M. RONZIO, Notary Public, do
 3         hereby certify that I reported in shorthand the
           foregoing proceedings, and that the foregoing
 4         transcript contains a true, accurate, and complete
           record of the proceedings at the above-entitled
 5         hearing.
 6                  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set
           my hand and seal this 23d day of May, 2013.
 7
 8
 9
10
           ________________________________________________
11         RONALD M. RONZIO, NOTARY PUBLIC/CERTIFIED COURT
           REPORTER
12
13         MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:  July 24, 2013
14         IN RE:  DEEPWATER WIND PROJECT
15         DATE:   April 24, 2013
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